Public Document Pack

Argyll

Argyll and Bute Council

Combhairle Earra Ghaidheal agus Bhoid l%}?Bl‘lte
Corporate Services COU NCIL

Director: Nigel Stewart

Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT

Tel: 01546 602127 Fax: 01546 604444
DX 599700 LOCHGILPHEAD

e.mail —nigel.stewart@argyll-bute.gov.uk

12 March 2009

NOTICE OF MEETING

A meeting of the EXECUTIVE will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY,
LOCHGILPHEAD on THURSDAY, 19 MARCH 2009 at 10:00 AM, which you are requested to
attend.

Nigel Stewart
Director of Corporate Services

BUSINESS
1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (IF ANY)
3. MINUTES

(a) Executive 19 February 2009 (Pages 1 - 16)
(b)  Special Committee for Older People's Services 26 February 2009 (Pages 17 -
20)

4. LEADER'S REPORT
Report by Leader of the Council (Pages 21 - 28)

# 5. EDUCATION AND LIFELONG LEARNING
Report by Spokesperson (Pages 29 - 32)

6. SOCIAL SERVICES
Report by Spokesperson (Pages 33 - 36)

7. INVESTMENT IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING
Report by Director of Community Services (Pages 37 - 58)

8. MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES IN ARGYLL AND BUTE - REDESIGN AND
MODERNISATION
Report by Director of Community Services and Extract from Minutes of Social Affairs
Policy and Performance Group 9 March 2009 (Pages 59 - 100)



10.

11.

12.

13.

E1 14.

# 15.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY SCHEME: DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION
Report by Chief Executive (Pages 101 - 170)

REPORT ON PLANNING ON THE CONSULTATION BY THE SCOTTISH
GOVERNMENT ON HOUSEHOLD PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS
Report by Head of Planning Services (Pages 171 - 180)

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT PLAN SCHEME
Report by Director of Development Services (Pages 181 - 194)

TWINNING VISIT TO KORCULA
Report by Director of Corporate Services (Pages 195 - 196)

PORT ASKAIG REDEVELOPMENT

Extract from Minutes of Organisational Development Policy and Performance Group
11 February 2009 and Report by Head of Roads and Amenity Services (Pages 197
-214)

HELENSBURGH OFFICE RATIONALISATION - REVISED OUTLINE BUSINESS
CASE
Report by Director of Operational Services (Pages 215 - 280)

JOINT CONTRACTS INVOLVING SCHOOL TRANSPORT AND LOCAL BUS
SERVICES - BUTE AND COWAL
Report by Director of Development Services (Pages 281 - 288)

Iltems marked with # denote matters to be considered as part of the Council’s function as
Education Authority.

The Committee will be asked to pass a resolution in terms of Section 50(A)(4) of the Local
Government (Scotland) Act 1973 to exclude the public for items of business with an “E” on
the grounds that it is likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in the
appropriate paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 7a to the Local Government (Scotland) Act

1973.

The appropriate paragraphs are:-

E1 Paragraph 8 The amount of any expenditure proposed to be incurred by
the authority under any particular contract for the acquisition of property or
the supply of goods or services.

Paragraph 9 Any terms proposed or to be proposed by or to the authority in
the course of negotiations for a contract for the acquisition or disposal of
property or the supply of goods or services.

EXECUTIVE

Maureen Arthur Jane Brown

Councillor Robin Currie Councillor Vivien Dance

Fiona Fisher Councillor George Freeman

Councillor Alison Hay Councillor Donald Macdonald

Councillor Robert Macintyre Councillor Duncan Maclntyre

David McEwan Councillor Donald MclIntosh

Councillor Ellen Morton Alison Palmer



Councillor Douglas Philand Councillor James Robb
Councillor Elaine Robertson Councillor Len Scoullar
Councillor Isobel Strong Councillor Dick Walsh

Contact: Fiona McCallum Tel: 01546 604406



This page is intentionally left blank



Present:

Also Present:

Page 1

Agenda ltem 3a

MINUTES of MEETING of the EXECUTIVE held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY,
LOCHGILPHEAD
on THURSDAY, 19 FEBRUARY 2009

Councillor Robin Currie
Councillor Vivien Dance
Councillor George Freeman
Councillor Alison Hay
Councillor Donald Macdonald
Councillor Duncan Maclintyre
Councillor Robert Macintyre
Councillor Ellen Morton
Councillor Douglas Philand

Councillor Anne Horn
Councillor Alister MacAlister
Councillor John McAlpine
Councillor Donald MacMillan
Councillor Alex McNaughton

Councillor Dick Walsh (Chair)

Councillor James Robb
Councillor Elaine Robertson
Councillor Len Scoullar
Councillor Isobel Strong
Maureen Arthur

Fiona Fisher

David McEwan

Alison Palmer

Councillor Andrew Nisbet
Councillor Al Reay
Councillor John Semple
Councillor Ron Simon
Provost William Petrie

Attending:

Apologies:

Councillor Bruce Marshall

Nigel Stewart, Director of Corporate Services

Andrew Law, Director of Operational Services

Bruce West, Head of Strategic Finance

Angus Gilmour, Head of Planning

Robert Pollock, Head of Development and Strategic Transportation
Malcolm MacFadyen, Head of Community Regeneration

Jane Fowler, European Manager

Brian Barker, Policy and Strategy Manager

Fergus Murray, Development Services

Mark Lodge, Development Services

Councillor Donald Mclntosh Jane Brown

The Chair ruled, and the Executive agreed, to consider as a matter of urgency a report
regarding Dunoon Hostel by reason of the need to allow works to proceed. This report
is dealt with at item 18 of this Minute.

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None declared.

2.  MINUTES

(a) EMPLOYEE JOINT CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 5 SEPTEMBER 2008

The Minutes of the Employee Joint Consultative Committee meeting held
on 5 September 2008 were noted.



Page 2

(b) EXECUTIVE 22 JANUARY 2009

The Minutes of the Executive of 22 January 2009 were approved as a
correct record.

LEADER'S REPORT

The Leader of the Council submitted a report which highlighted issues he had
recently been involved with including:-

His presentation to the “Aspiring to be a Head of Service” seminar on 13 January
2009; his attendance at the Community Planning Management Committee on 21
January 2009; his attendance at the COSLA Leaders meeting on 30 January
2009; and he reported on Council Tax collections and collections of Non-
Domestic Rates to the end of January 2009.

Decision

To note the contents of the report for the period 24 December 2008 — 30 January
2009.

(Reference: Report by Leader of the Council for period 24 December 2008 to 30
January 2009, submitted).

SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE ON AREA CAPACITY
EVALUATIONS

Following recommendations by the Reporter, which were accepted by the
Council, a report detailing Supplementary Planning Guidance developed to
provide guidance on the circumstances when an Area Capacity Evaluation
(ACE) should be carried out, who should do it, what it should contain and how it
should be used to inform the development management decision making
process was considered.

Decision

1. To note the contents of the report and endorse the Supplementary Planning
Guidance on the use of Area Capacity Evaluations in the Development
Management process as detailed at Appendix A of the report; and

2. To establish a protocol for dealing with applications which require Area
Capacity Assessments and the ACE which accompanies them as detailed at
paragraph 2.2 of the report.

(Reference: Report by Director of Development Services, submitted)

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING TO 31 DECEMBER 2008

A report summarising the Revenue Budget position of the Council as at 31
December 2008 was considered.

Decision



Page 3

To note the Revenue Budget position of the Council as at 31 December 2008.

(Reference: Report by Head of Strategic Finance, Joint Report by Chief
Executive and Head of Strategic Finance, Joint Report by Director of Community
Services and Head of Strategic Finance, Joint Report by Director of Corporate
Services and Head of Strategic Finance, Joint Report by Director of
Development Services and Head of Strategic Finance and Joint Report by
Director of Operational Services and Head of Strategic Finance, tabled)

CAPITAL PLAN MONITORING TO 31 DECEMBER 2008

A report summarising the position for all Services on the Capital Plan as at 31
December 2008 was considered. The report compared expenditure levels and
project performance in terms of costs, timescale, benefits and risks. Where
Services had projects classified as red then a separate report from the relevant
Head of Service was also considered.

Decision
To note the Capital Plan position of the Council as at 31 December 2008.

(Reference: Report by Head of Strategic Finance dated 22 January 2009, Report
by Head of Democratic Services and Governance dated 26 January 2009,
Report by Head of ICT and Financial Services dated 16 January 2009, Report by
Head of Community Regeneration dated 27 January 2009, Report by Head of
Roads and Amenity Services dated 26 January 2009 and Report by Head of
Facility Services dated 20 January 2009, tabled)

TREASURY MANAGEMENT MONITORING TO 31 DECEMBER 2008

A report summarising the monitoring as at 31 December 2008 of the Council’s
Overall Borrowing Position, Borrowing Requirement for the Year, Treasury
Management Activity, and Prudential Indicators was considered.

Decision

To note the Treasury Management monitoring report as at 31 December 2008.

(Reference: Report by Head of Strategic Finance dated 30 January 2009,
submitted)

FAIRER ARGYLL AND BUTE (FAB) PLAN

The Executive on 18 December 2008 received a report about the Fairer Argyll
and Bute (FAB) Plan and the process for allocating the Fairer Scotland Fund
(FSF). The FAB Partnership met for the first time on 19 December 2008 and
considered the draft Plan and funding allocations within the Plan. The
recommended Plan, which will form part of the 2009 Single Outcome
Agreement, and FSF allocations were before the Executive for consideration.

Decision

1. To agree the scope for the Fairer Argyll and Bute Plan;



Page 4

2. To approve the recommendations for the allocation of the Fairer Scotland
Fund made by the FAB Partnership;

3. To note the criteria used to assess proposals;
4. To note that the recommended allocation to the third sector will be made
pending agreement of detailed implementation plans with the Third Sector

Steering Group;

5. To agree that work should begin now to look at the implications of historic
and prospective funding circumstances; and

6. To agree that a seminar on this should be arranged for Members in the
Autumn of 2009.

(Report by Chief Executive, submitted)

Provost William Petrie left the meeting during discussion of the foregoing item.

Maureen Arthur and Alison Palmer left the meeting.

9.

10.

ARTS, CULTURE, LEISURE AND SPORT

The Depute Spokesperson for Arts, Culture, Leisure and Sport submitted a

report which detailed various meetings he had attended between 2 September

and 15 December 2008.

Decision

1. To note the contents of the report; and

2. To agree that the Social Affairs Policy and Performance Group should look at
presenting a case for the use of sports facilities within Argyll and Bute at the

2014 Commonwealth Games.

(Reference: Report by Depute Spokesperson for Arts, Culture, Leisure and Sport
dated 8 January 2009, submitted)

STRATEGIC TRANSPORT PROJECTS REVIEW UPDATE

A report advising the Executive of the impact that the Strategic Transport

Projects Review (STPR) may have on the road and rail infrastructure within the

Argyll and Bute Council area was considered.

Decision

1. To note the contents of the report;

2. To delegate to the Director of Development Services, in consultation with the
Leader of the Council, to draw up a list of schemes and to press to the

Scottish Government, MPs and MSPs to recognise the importance of these
schemes; and



Page 5

3. To request that appropriate Member and Officer intervention is made to
ensure that the proposals within the Argyll and Bute Council area are
realised.

(Reference: Report by Director of Operational Services dated 28 January 2009,
submitted)

Councillor Donald MacMillan left the meeting.

1.

12.

DRIVING IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE MANAGEMENT AND MAINTENANCE
OF THE SCOTTISH TRUNK ROAD NETWORK

Transport Scotland had issued consultation documents in December 2008
seeking views of key stakeholders on the shape of the 4" Generation Term
Contracts for the Management and Maintenance of the Scottish Trunk Road
Network. A proposed response to this consultation was before the Executive for
consideration.

Decision

To agree the response as detailed at Appendix A of the report subject to the
following amendments and to instruct the Head of Roads and Amenity Services
to submit this as Argyll and Bute Council’s formal response to the consultation to
Transport Scotland by 23 February 2009:-

1. Additional sentence to be added to the response to question 6 to read “The
Council would welcome discussion on partnership arrangements that would
lead to a greater collaborative framework with local authorities”; and

2. Additional sentence to be added to the response to question 11 to read “The
Council believes there is a need to improve communication between
Scotland Transerv and Transport Scotland with the public, communities and
road users.

(Reference: Report by Director of Operational Services dated 27 January 2009,
submitted)

ENVIRONMENT POLICY AND PERFORMANCE GROUP WORK
PROGRAMME

A report summarising the key activity areas and current work programme of the
Environment Policy and Performance Group was considered.

Decision

To note the forward work programme of the Environment Policy and
Performance Group and that a future report on progress will be brought to the
Executive in August 2009.

(Reference: Report by Chair of Environment Policy and Performance Group
dated 5 February 2009, submitted)



13.

Page 6
ISLE OF TIREE SUSTAINABLE DESIGN GUIDANCE

Argyll and Bute Council had approved the new Argyll and Bute Sustainable
Design Guidance at the Strategic Policy Committee on 21 September 2006. The
most challenging component of the new guidance had been to embrace the
varying and distinctive landscapes and settlements within Argyll and Bute and
provide appropriate design guidance for these. In recognition of this and given
the unique and distinctive landscape and built form on the island of Tiree it was
determined that area specific guidance should be developed for the island which
would supplement the more general Argyll and Bute guidance.

The Oban, Lorn and the Isles Area Committee, on 4 February 2009, had
approved the Isle of Tiree’s Sustainable Design Guidance as supplementary
planning guidance and this was now before the Executive for ratification.
Decision

To endorse the decision of the Oban, Lorn and the Isles Area Committee to
approve the new Isle of Tiree Sustainable Design Guidance as supplementary
planning guidance.

(Reference: Report by Director of Development Services, submitted)

The Chair ruled, and the Executive agreed, to adjourn the meeting for lunch at 12.50
pm and reconvene at 1.20 pm.

David McEwan, Fiona Fisher and Councillors Anne Horn, John McAlpine, Alex
McNaughton, Bruce Marshall and Ron Simon did not return to the meeting.

14.

CONSULTATION ON FORESTRY PROVISIONS IN THE SCOTTISH CLIMATE
CHANGE BILL

The Executive, at its meeting on 22 January 2009, had considered a proposed
response to the consultation on the Forestry Provisions in the Scottish Climate
Change Bill. A further report proposing the way forward on the consultation was
before the Executive for consideration.

Decision
1. To note that the meeting with the Minister had been rescheduled; and

2. In light of the extended deadline, afforded to the Council, for submissions
being today, to endorse the discussion paper, as adjusted and appended to
this Minute, as the Council’s response to the consultation and to request the
Leader in addition to develop these points further at the meeting with the
Minister.

(Reference: Report by Leader of the Council and Extract from Minutes of Mid
Argyll, Kintyre and the Islands Area Committee of 4 February 2009, submitted)

Councillor John Semple left during discussion of the foregoing item.



15.

Page 7

NATIONAL PLANNING FRAMEWORK FOR SCOTLAND 2 - GRID
ELECTRICITY TRANSMISSION ISSUES

The Scottish Government had issued a consultation on the National Planning
Framework for Scotland 2 (NPF2) Discussion Draft in early 2008 which set out a
spatial strategy for Scotland’s development to 2030, providing a national
strategic context for development plans and planning decisions and helping to
inform the wider programmes of government, public agencies and local
authorities in Scotland. The Council had made representation to the Scottish
Government on a number of issues which it felt had not been fully addressed
including the lack of any mention of the proposal to develop the Hunterston to
Carradale sub-sea cable link, which it was felt should be included as part of the
transmission system reinforcements.

A report updating Members as to the current position with regard to the NPF2
and advising Members that, given the tight parliamentary timeframe,
representation had now been made to the Scottish Parliament on the specific
issue of electricity grid reinforcements as contained in the NPF2, as they related
to Argyll and Bute. This matter was initially raised following a debate at the
Economy Policy and Performance Group on 28 January 2009.

Decision

To note that the Council has now written to the Clerk to the Local Government
and Communities Committee at the Scottish Parliament and all Argyll and Bute
Members of Parliament seeking the inclusion of a new sub-sea cable link from
Hunterston to Carradale in the future electricity grid reinforcements identified
within the National Planning Framework for Scotland 2.

(Reference: Report by Director of Development Services, submitted)

Councillor Robin Currie left during discussion of the forgoing item.

16.

LOCH LOMOND AND THE TROSSACHS NATIONAL PARK CONSULTATIVE
DRAFT LOCAL PLAN

A report summarising the main issues contained within the Local Lomond and
the Trossachs National Park Consultative Draft Local Plan November 2008 and
recommendations from the Helensburgh and Lomond and Bute and Cowal Area
Committees were considered.

Decision

To agree the following recommendations and include these as the Council’s
formal response to the Loch Lomond and the Trossachs National Park Authority
consultation on the proposed Loch Lomond and the Trossachs National Park
Local Plan which ends on 28 February 2009:-

1. That Argyll and Bute Council is broadly supportive of the Loch Lomond and
the Trossachs first local plan and in particular welcomes the proposed
policies which accord with the aims and objectives of the Argyll and Bute
Structure and Local Plans, in particular, Policies TRAN 1 and TRAN 3;



Page 8

That the Council strongly objects to COM 2 where it seeks to prevent change
of use of Libraries and Schools unless they have been marketed for such
uses for 12 months, because these services are predominantly provided by
local authorities within the areas which they are responsible for, as such no
alternative market exists for these uses where a local authority declares them
surplus to requirements due to closure or replacement;

That the Council object to RET1 in relation to retail development, because
the lack of reference to sequential approach and definition of small scale
retail development is not consistent with the approach advocated by SPP8 or
the Argyll and Bute Structure Plan as it applies to the Argyll and Bute sector
of the National Park;

To insert the word ‘adverse’ at paragraph 3.7 of the report, 4™ sentence, so
that it reads “This policy could therefore have adverse implications for
services provided by Argyll and Bute Council, such as schools and libraries”;
and

That the Council recommend that minor amendments be made to the policies
on drainage and flooding in order to take cognisance of the Council’s role as
flooding authority as follows: ENV 12 delete last sentence and replace with
“Consideration should also be given to the impact of discharging surface
water from developments to any watercourse by undertaking a Drainage
Impact Assessment in consultation with the flooding authority”. ENV 16 —
add to the end of 2™ sentence “for approval by the flooding authority” and to
part b) add “vi) Cognisance has been taken of the Association of British
Insurers template of flood events for particular development risks”. Reason —
in order to highlight residential occupancy risks greater than normal and
subsequently require more onerous storm return periods to be designed for.

(Reference: Report by Director of Development Services, Extract from Minutes of
Helensburgh and Lomond Area Committee of 3 February 2009 and Extract from
Minutes of Bute and Cowal Area Committee of 3 February 2009, submitted)

Councillors Alister MacAlister, Duncan Maclntyre and Al Reay left during discussion of
the foregoing item.

Councillor Robert Macintyre left the meeting.

17.

EUROPEAN COMMISSION CONSULTATION ON TERRITORIAL COHESION

In October 2008 the European Commission launched its Green Paper on
Territorial Cohesion for consultation amongst EU member states. A draft
response to this consultation along with a recommendation from the Economy
Policy and Performance Group was considered.

Decision

To approve the draft response subject to the following amendments:-

1.

Reference should be made within the response to the Council’s preference
for co-terminosity; and



18.

Page 9

2. In light of the stance taken by the CPMR, to add a paragraph referring to the
Council’s desire to see improved grid connections and pricing structure.

(Reference: Report by European Manager and Extract from Minutes of Economy
Policy and Performance Group of 28 January 2009, submitted)

DUNOON HOSTEL - UPDATE ON INCREASED COSTS OF FIRE SAFETY
UPGRADING WORKS

A report seeking funding to cover the cost of additional works identified following
an inspection by the Care Commission on 16 January 2009 was considered.

Decision
To approve the additional £135,000 required to complete this project to the
appropriate standards to be vired from elsewhere within the Community Services

Block Allocation for 2009/2010.

(Reference: Joint Report by Director of Community Services and Director of
Operational Services dated 19 February 2009, tabled)

The Committee resolved in terms of Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government
(Scotland) Act 1973 to exclude the public for the following 4 items of business on the
grounds that they were likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined
in Paragraphs 1; 1; 8 and 9; and 6 and 9 respectively of Part 1 of Schedule 7A to the
Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

19.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S UNIT: FUTURE STAFFING FOCUS
A report inviting the Executive to endorse a significant development of direction
in the delivery of the Chief Executive’s function to secure and lead improvement
in light of the Council’s approval of the Improvement Plan on 22 January 2009
was considered.
Decision
1. To endorse
a) The arrangements as set out in Appendix 1 to the report;
b) A reconfigured post of Head of Improvement and HR; and
2. To appoint a Recruitment Panel comprising the Leader, the Depute Leader,
Councillor Ellen Morton, Councillor Alison Hay and 3 other Councillors, to be
notified to the Director of Corporate Services by the Leader, to short leet,
interview the short listed candidates and make an appointment to the

reconfigured post of Head of Improvement and HR.

(Reference: Report by Chief Executive dated 10 February 2009, submitted)



20.

21,

22,

Page 10

BEST VALUE REVIEW OF PROTECTIVE SERVICES AND LICENSING
FUNCTIONS

A report on the outcome of the Best Value Review of Protective Services,
Licensing and support services function in Legal and Protective Services was
considered.

Decision

1. To approve the report and action plan arising from the Best Value Review;
and

2. To approve the approach to implementing the action plan outlined in
paragraphs 3.5 — 3.8 and appendix 1 of the report and the arrangements set
out therein.

(Reference: Report by Director of Corporate Services dated 9 February 2009,
submitted)

FLEXIBLE NEW DEAL

Delivery of the Government’s service to the unemployed is undergoing
significant change. This service is currently delivered via a series of tendered
contracts which include New Deal. As part of a streamlining and simplification
exercise, the Department of Work and Pensions is introducing a new approach
to delivery called Flexible New Deal. This will consolidate a large number of
existing individual contracts for different types of support thus reducing the
number of contractors who deliver this service. The Council’s Employability
Service is one of 15 Prime contractors in Scotland and delivers services to the
unemployed in Argyll and Bute and West Dunbartonshire. The Employability
Service approach to delivering support to clients is recognised across Scotland
as best practice. A series of papers have been considered by the Economy
Policy and Performance Group giving a range of options for the Council’s
approach to New Deal changes. The PPG is recommending to the Executive
that the first stage in a tendering process be approved by the completion of a Pre
Qualification Questionnaire (PQQ) which must be submitted by March 2009.

Decision

1. To approve the submission of a PQQ as the first non-binding stage of a
tendering process; and

2. To agree to consider a further series of papers on Flexible New Deal detailing
the resources required and risk associated with the tendering process and
subsequent service delivery if successful.

(Reference: Report by European Officer and Extract from Minutes of Economy
Policy and Performance Group of 28 January 2009, submitted)

LEASE OF SITE AT DUNOON STADIUM

A report advising the Executive of a request for lease of a site at Dunoon
Stadium was considered.



Page 11

Decision
To agree the recommendation as detailed in the report dated 10 February 2009.
(Reference: Reports by Director of Corporate Services dated 26 January, 3

February and 10 February 2009 and Extract from Minutes of Bute and Cowal
Area Committee of 3 February 2009, submitted)



Page 12

Appendix

—

VIEWS OF ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL FOR DISCUSSION WITH THE
MINISTER FOR THE ENVIRONMENT
ON THE CONSULTATION PROPOSALS ON FORESTRY PROVISIONS IN
THE SCOTTISH CLIMATE CHANGE BILL.

. We appreciate this opportunity to have a discussion with the Minister on the

consultation on forestry provisions in the Scottish Climate Change Bill.

Our request for this meeting follows our not being formally consulted, as part
of the process and our need to secure further detail. We fully recognise that
a number of principles require to be established to take forward the proposals
but understand that many of the respondents to the consultation have
expressed concerns on the lack of detail.

As a Council we are aware that there exists significant opposition and
objection to the principle of the proposal from Forestry Trade Unions and
from communities as well as community council representatives

Our Council recognises that the purpose of the consultation is to seek views
on the use of a proposed measure in the Scottish Climate Change Bill that
would give Scottish Ministers powers, through secondary legislation, to
modify the functions of the Forestry Commission in Scotland where
necessary or expedient, to address climate change and to provide greater
flexibility in maximising the potential of the National Forest Estate to help
combat climate change. However, the ability of the proposals to deliver the
desired outcomes is uncertain given the lack of detail. In addition
consideration of other solutions does not appear to have taken place.

Our Council further recognises that the Scottish Government places a high
priority on the efficient management of its capital assets and that the National
Forest Estate is the single largest public land resource held by Scottish
government. It has a capital value estimated to be around £850 million and
delivers a wide range of benefits, including the production of timber for
Scotland’s wood processing industries, opportunities for education,
recreation, wildlife conservation, community engagement and partnership
working.

Argyll and Bute Council noted the following in respect of forest expansion in
its response to the consultation on the SFS in 2006 — “The Draft Scottish
Forestry Strategy has set a target of 25% of woodland cover by 2050 from
the current level of 17"/,%. Currently the Argyll area has approximately 30%
of its area covered by forestry, exceeding the Scotland wide target and
contains over 20% of Scotland’s broad leaved woodland. Any proposed
increases in forestry in the Argyll and Bute area need to take the existing high
levels of forestry into account. It is proposed that the detailed delivery of this
Scottish Forestry Strategy target should be dealt with through the Regional
Forestry Forums and Indicative Forestry Strategies (IFS), in order that
appropriate account can be taken of local circumstances. The element of
local accountability which IFS provide has been noted as valuable by the



Page 13

Scottish Ministers and should be recognised in the Scottish Forestry Strategy.
An IFS is an important reference source across a range of forestry decisions
including targeting.

7. Another target is a sustained level of production by 2025. It should be noted
that timber production is set to double in the next decade in Argyll.
Consideration requires to be given to the infrastructure issues which are
particularly acute in Argyll. Currently, assistance is primarily targeted to
Trunk roads whereas it is the fragile rural roads which are liable to bear the
brunt of sustaining this increased level of production. Pressure on the more
fragile rural areas could conflict with the Scottish Executive policies in terms
of the environment and tourism.” Given the above the significance of this
issue to the people/communities of Argyll and Bute can be appreciated;
especially when considering that 25% of this will be the subject of this
consultation.

8 Increased forest traffic impacts on and increases deterioration of our fragile
rural roads which will require increased Government support to sustain that
local road network.

8. At this point in time in view of the lack of detailed information we are aware
that there is much public concern regarding the potential economic, social
and environmental impact of what is proposed here, with many public
meetings taking place across Argyll and Bute. There is therefore an urgent
need for further and informed comment.

9. We are aware of the views being expressed on the consultation, especially
the plausible submission from the Forestry Commission Trade Unions and
those from the forest industry operating in the Argyll and Bute area. We hope
that all will be very carefully considered, with information, conditions and
assurances provided that recognise all the important points being made.

10.A number of issues raised within the consultation are worthy of discussion
here today :-

Joint venture

12.The issue of joint venture, which we generally support with the proviso that all
relevant European, national and local policies are addressed. Further, that
consideration being given to National Forest Estate (NFE) continuing to play
a leading role in delivering on climate change, as well as recognition of the
many joint venture arrangements currently in place, and promoted by
Forestry Commission Scotland.

Leasing of land

13.The issue giving cause for real concern and opposition by many, is the
proposal to pre-selling of the Forestry Commission timber reserves through a
land- lease proposal. Part of this concern relates to the possible loss of a long
term income stream that the Forestry Commission relies on to deliver much
of its conservation, education and recreation programmes. There are
questions around the lack of evidence to support the value of leasing or
cutting rights on large areas of FCS land. We understand that the removal of



Page 14

100,000ha of the most commercial areas from FCS management (approx
25% of the NFE woodland cover) is equivalent to removing nearly 35% of the
income from FCS. If correct then careful consideration will require to be given
on the impacts of this.

14.Further careful consideration needs to be given to the various points raised
by the Forestry Commission Trade Unions in their submission at section 9,
relating to the potential disadvantages to Scottish Government and the
Forestry Commission. They illustrate previous bad experiences by other
governments with; leasing, the change in emphasis in forest policy over
recent years, the value of any leasing and its relationship to capital values,
rotation lengths and improved carbon sequestration, the issues around
impacts on staff , future employment and its sustainability, the lack of
flexibility to redeploy staff , maintaining the commitment to no compulsory
redundancies, and as a result provide safeguards/resources to FCS on the
likely future cost implications of all of this.

15.The Council shares the concern regarding future employment in Argyll and
Bute in the forestry sector which employs a significant number of people; in
particular the remoter, rural and island areas. The Council expects that
should future leasing arrangements go ahead they will not compromise the
ability of the FC to continue to run the Modern Apprenticeship Schemes. It is
unclear how this would be achieved with the significant reduction in income.

16.Further detail needs to be provided regarding the benefits and any disbenefits
of a leasing arrangement in a transparent way through ongoing dialogue with
all interested stakeholders. There will need to be clearer demonstration of
contractual conditions that safeguard the public and their concerns.

17.Argyll and Bute Council will require further detail with cast iron guarantees,
through contractual conditions, that in the event of a leasing arrangement and
the generation of £200m, that a significant proportion of this will be spent in
Argyll and Bute to deliver the objectives of the Single Outcome Agreement..

18.Consideration being given to the provisions for land management,
infrastructure deterioration and flooding issues, as a consequence of leasing,
must ensure no detriment from the proposals impacting on communities and
individuals. It is unclear what consideration was given to other methods of
achieving the desired outcomes.

Trusts

19.There are questions around the need to form Trusts to hold funds.

20.1t has been suggested that Scottish Government could give Forest Enterprise
“trading status” and allow it to hold over such funds for the purpose of climate
change. This may provide for greater flexibility.

General re questions 4, 5, and 6.

21.Argyll and Bute Council, in partnership with the Forestry Commission and

Scottish Enterprise Forest Industries Cluster, are currently commissioning a
new Indicative Forest Strategy (IFS) for Argyll and Bute, excluding the loch



Page 15

Lomond and Trossachs National Park.

22.This strategy is looking at all aspects of the future of forestry (private and
public), as it affects our area, including for example; identifying new
afforestation opportunities, the incorporation of renewable energy (biomass),
tackling timber transport issues and the development of forest crofts. This will
accord with Circular 9/1999 (currently being revised by the Scottish
Government) and the Scottish Forestry Strategy aims. Given the lack of
detail it is unclear if the ability to deliver the outcomes identified in the locally
developed IFS will be compromised.

23.A major concern already identified is the fact that over 90% of the existing
forest product is exported from our area, normally by road, with no added
value being applied. If this situation is allowed to continue then the expansion
of forestry will simply add to the emissions generated by this transportation
method and will significantly impact on climate change. This reinforces the
point that although there are costs to Argyll and Bute there is a need for
added value to be invested in the communities of Argyll and Bute.

24 1t is our belief that the future forest management policy should be integrated
with the broader land management pattern and spatial planning objectives.
The importance of climate change must be assessed in context with other
objectives such as the need for reducing transport and producing food locally.
The IFS is one way of achieving this.

25.The Scottish Rural Development Programme (SRDP) was recently agreed
with the European Union but the level of support, particularly relating to
forestry and agriculture, was limited. A report of the Royal Society of
Edinburgh’s Independent Inquiry into the future of Scotland’s hills and islands
sets out very clearly the issues preventing the achievement of Scottish
government targets for woodland expansion. The IFS is one vehicle for
improving take up of SRDP related to increasing /enhancing forestry and
woodlands.

26.There is an urgent need to ensure the sustainability of population and
employment in rural areas. The allocation of additional resources to those
which are currently approved to help achieve woodland expansion and
targets, as well as to sustain agricultural activity in all our remote, rural areas
of Scotland requires endorsement by the EU.



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES

Page 17 Agenda ltem 3b

of MEETING of SPECIAL COMMITTEE FOR OLDER PEOPLE'S SERVICES held in

the BOARD ROOM, SCOTTISH NATURAL HERITAGE, KILMORY INDUSTRIAL ESTATE,

Present:

LOCHGILPHEAD
on THURSDAY, 26 FEBRUARY 2009

Councillor Dick Walsh (Chair)

Councillor George Freeman Councillor Ellen Morton
Councillor Donald MclIntosh Councillor Gary Mulvaney
Councillor Robert Macintyre Councillor Len Scoullar

Also Present: Councillor Elaine Robertson

Attending:

Douglas Hendry, Director of Community Services

Jim Robb, Head of Adult Care

David Logan — Quality Information Officer — Special Projects
Chris Dalgarno-Platt, Finance Manager — Special Projects
Joanna Miller, Finance Manager — Community Services

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
None declared.
MINUTES

The Minutes of the Special Committee for Older People’s Services of 13 August 2008
were approved as a correct record.

REPORT ON REVIEW OF OLDER PEOPLE'S SERVICES WITH APPRAISAL
BRIEF

A report updating Members in regard to the options appraisal process in respect of
the Review of Older People’s Services was considered.

Decision
1. To note the contents of the report;

2. To request that a further report detailing the rationale and thought processes
behind the scoring of all options be prepared and presented to the next meeting of
the Project Board before any decision is taken;

3. To note that Financial appraisal on the recommended options contained within this
report will commence and will be due for completion by July 2009. However, the
Project Team may undertake further financial appraisals on other options if
required, following discussion of the further report detailing rationale of scoring of
all options;

4. To note that a presentation will made to the Project Board explaining the process
followed in scoring of all options; and



Page 18

5. To agree that consultation with Community Care Fora should be undertaken to
seek their views on criteria used for short-listing of options.

(Reference: Report by Director of Community Services, submitted)

REPORT ON PROPOSED CONSULTATION IN REVIEW OF OLDER PEOPLE'S
SERVICES

A report setting out the proposed format for the public consultations that will be held in
regard to the emerging options for the re-design of older people’s services in Argyll
and Bute was considered.

Decision

1. To note the contents of the report;

2. To note that the Head of Service and Managers will meet with staff on a ongoing
basis to keep them advised of the process;

3. To note that individual briefing sessions will be held for Elected Members,
MPs/MSPs and the press;

4. To note that formal views will be requested from the CHP, Community Care Fora
and Community Councils; and

5. To note that local radio will be used to publicise this exercise.

(Reference: Report by Director of Community Services dated February 2009,
submitted)

REPORT ON PROGRESSIVE CARE PILOT

As part of the Expressions of Interest sought for Older People’s services in July 2007,
contact was made with providers of Sheltering Housing to ascertain their interest in
developing Sheltered Housing complexes to offer Progressive Care facilities and the
Special Committee for Older People’s Services agreed, at its meeting on 24 June
2008, that the scoping out of 3 pilots be taken forward in the areas with a current gap
in provision. A report providing detail of the work carried out to date in the scoping out
of these pilot projects was considered.

Decision

To note the content of the report detailing the scoping work carried out to date and
agree the Project Plan detailed in Appendix 1 of the report.

(Reference: Report by Director of Community Services, submitted)

REPORT ON REVIEW OF LEARNING DISABILITY SERVICES WITH APPRAISAL
BRIEF

A report updating Members in regard to the options appraisal process in respect of
the review of Learning Disability Services was considered.



Page 19

Decision

To note the contents of the report and that initial consultation will be carried out with
Learning Disability groups.

(Reference: Report by Director of Community Services, submitted)

REPORT ON PROPOSED CONSULTATION IN REGARD TO LEARNING
DISABILITY SERVICES

Following on the consultation exercise undertaken in the Review of Older People’s
Services, the Learning Disability Project Team have identified the need for a series of
initial consultation events across the Council area in advance of any further formal
consultation process that will follow during the review process.

Decision

1.

2.

To note the contents of the report;

To agree that five initial consultation events be undertaken to inform both the
Project Board and Project Team of the views of service users and carers prior to
the short listing of options;

To appoint Alex Davidson to co-ordinate these events; and
To undertake a review of Fyne View Respite House within the Learning Disability

options appraisal. Consequently all client groups will be consulted as part of the
consultation process.

(Reference: Report by Director of Community Services dated 19 February 2009,
submitted)

REPORT ON NOMINATIONS TO THE PROJECT BOARD IN RESPECT OF
LEARNING DISABILITY SERVICES

A report seeking approval of nominations to the Learning Disability Project Board was
considered.

Decision

1.

2.

To note the contents of the report;

To invite the two identified nominees to become members of the Project Board;
and,;

To instruct the Head of Adult Care to seek to identify and appoint, from the
nominations received, an additional representative from the Helensburgh and
Lomond area and to report back to the Committee if unable to do so.

(Reference: Report by Director of Community Services, submitted)



Page 20

9. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

To agree that a further meeting be arranged within the next 6-8 weeks in order for the
Project Board to give further consideration to the Older Person’s options appraisal.



Page 21 Agenda ltem 4

LEADER’S REPORT: 30 January- 30 February

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL EXECUTIVE MEETING: 19 March 2009

1. Launch of National Books of Scottish Connection, 6" February

| was delighted to be able to give the official welcome to everyone who attended
this historic day at Kilmartin Museum on Friday 6th February and together with Jim
Mather, Minister for Enterprise, Energy and Tourism, launch the national Book of
Scottish Connections.

The Book of Scottish Connections will record the; births, deaths, marriages and
civil partnerships; involving Scottish people, that take place outside of Scotland.
Lolita and David Lavery from Campbeltown were presented with the first ever
certificate from the book by Jim Mather MSP, following their marriage in South
Africa.

Lolita is originally from Cape Town and moved to Scotland to trace her roots,
meeting David in the process. The couple had since set up Kintyre's only 5-star
guest house and are expecting triplets in July.

It gave me great pleasure to present David and Lolita with a commemorative bottle
of Springbank Whisky, which was very kindly donated by the distillery.

| feel that The Book of Scottish Connections is an extremely important document
and to be able to launch it at Kilmartin was a great honour, especially during this
Year of Homecoming Scotland. It was a most fitting location for such an event
given the historic significance of Dunaad.

The book will enable the Scottish diaspora to establish their link to Scotland in a
new public record and to obtain a copy of the entry for commemorative purposes.
Although the Book of Scottish Connections will have no legal standing, applications
will be rigorously checked to ensure their authenticity and will help generations to
come to trace their Scottish roots.

| was so pleased that the very first entry in the newly created register would feature
an Argyll and Bute family and felt proud that one of our historic locations had been
selected for the launch

2. Process for Change Up-Date, High Level Design, 24" February

| was pleased to introduce the update seminar for the Process for Change, the
purpose of which was to share the results of the high level design phase of the
process and consult on which of the seven identified themes should be progressed
to the next “detailed design phase”.



Page 22

The Council received £150,000 at the end of last financial year towards completing
the National Shared Services Diagnostic. This was completed and reported to
Council on 2nd October 2008. The Council decided to take forward 7 themes for
further investigation, as an integrated programme and allocated funds of £221,000
for this high level design stage. This programme was branded “Process for
Change” with myself as Sponsor for the overall programme along with the Chief
Executive.

The high level design stage has now been completed and the results of this were
disseminated at the seminar. The Project Managers discussed their respective
themes in turn giving an overview of what the future design would look like and
showed us their re-worked business cases.

After hearing about each theme, members were asked to decide which of these
they would like to have progressed to “Detailed Design”. This would be the stage of
the process in which; process maps for service redesign would be produced
identifying which posts would be affected, developing criteria for any new system
specifications, and determining any changes required to premises, etc.

Having decided which themes we would like to take forward to detailed design, we
would then have to; consider the costs involved, how we would fund this further
work and ensure we have the capacity to go forward from detailed design to
implementation.

The Process for Change is not just about service delivery and where monetary
savings can be made. It is about how we as representatives of Argyll and Bute
Council can provide a better services to the people we represent.

Now that the themes have been discussed at this forum, there is a short time
available to review and amend proposals before they go to Council formally for
consideration on 5" March.

Members were asked to consider if this was sufficient time or whether we needed
longer to consider the issues.

Economic Summit 2009

On 25" February, | gave the welcome at the Argyll and Bute 2009 Economic
Summit, which was hosted in our own Council Chamber.

The attendees on the day were a broad representation of businesses from across
the area who had come together to listen to our speakers, share thoughts and
discuss the challenges and opportunities facing businesses in Argyll and Bute.

Since the previous Economic Summit, just over a year earlier, a lot had changed in
the national and global economic arena with the result that everyone now faced
financial challenges. This was reflected in the presentations from the speakers who
included; Liz Cameron (Chief Executive, Scottish Chambers) David Douglas,



Page 23

(Regional Director, Clydesdale Bank Plc) and David Sutherland (Chairman, Tulloch
Group PlIc). Our Chair for the day was Mr. Michael Levack, Chair of the Scottish
Building Federation, the leading trade body for the Construction Industry in
Scotland.

| described how Argyll and Bute was doing everything possible to work with
partners to remain in-tune with the needs of communities and businesses and
respond positively to this sudden and increasing downturn in the prospect for
growth and jobs.

| spoke about how Argyll and Bute Council had welcomed the recognition given to
Local Government by Scottish Government, especially the acknowledgement of the
important part that we play in the governance of Scotland and the potential that we
have to influence the economic health of our area.

| described how Argyll and Bute Council values partnership working, as we see it
as the only way forward for the development of our communities and businesses in
such times. Also our overall approach this year being to deliberately align our
budget processes with opportunities for delivering sustainable economic growth.

| continued in some detail with the specific examples of the investments the Council
had committed to including:-

e our £30m+ programme of major realm works which would be delivered through
the CHORD programme,

e our future in the retention and development of wind energy manufacturing
processes for Kintyre with announcements likely in march,

e £50m already spent and £34.7m to be invested on road and transport related
infrastructure improvements in Argyll and Bute (egg through the development of
Airport and Harbour projects),

e and our commitment to the establishment of the new in-house Business
Gateway service proposed for April to act as a key means for improving our
engagement with the local business community through a “one door approach”
to business advice and information.

| explained that it would be most important, looking to our shared futures, to
maintain dialogue with Chamber of Commerce, the Federation of Small Businesses
and other key partners in order to promote services more effectively and adjust
them to meet business need where possible.

In the area of planning, which was highlighted as an issue at the previous
Economic Summit, | explained how we had been working to influence the
government’s Planning Reform Agenda and remain committed to improving the
processes and timescales for planning approvals and the production of our Local
Development Plan.

| confirmed the Council’s commitment to pursuing the six elements of the
Government’s wider economic recovery programme:-



Page 24

¢ Reshaping capital spending plans

Ensuring all government activity, including on planning regulation, supports
economic development

Intensifying activity and support for tourism and homecoming 2009
Intensifying work around energy efficiency and fuel poverty

Increasing advice to business and individuals

Improving advice to vulnerable individuals.

In addition, | explained that we are ensuring that we access maximum external
funding, especially from Europe, for Argyll and Bute’s continued development.

| concluded, my presentation by explaining that Argyll and Bute Council views
investment in the local economy as being crucial to supporting local business, as
well as in supporting and developing communities. The Council’s actions to date,
clearly demonstrate that we have initiated imagination as well as innovation and
that;
e We have the determination and the in-built flexibilities to succeed,
e That we are in-tune with all that the Government’s Economic Recovery
Programme requires and that we have responded appropriately,
e And importantly, that what we propose meets with the needs of our
communities and businesses

We are clear, as a council, we can only be successful in achieving our goals by
continuing to work in partnerships that include a broad range of local businesses.

Dunoon - Gourock Ferry Crossing Meeting between Inverclyde Council,
Argyll and Bute Council and Scottish Government, Friday, 20 February 2009

| attended the above meeting at the Municipal Buildings, Greenock. Also in
attendance on the day from Argyll and Bute Council were; Councillor Duncan
Mclntyre (Transport Spokesperson), Moya Ingram (Transportation Manager),
Robert Pollock (Head of Economic Development & Strategic Transportation) From
Scottish Government were; Graham Laidlaw (Transport Directorate), Judith Ainsley
(Transport Directorate), Alan McPherson (Transport Directorate). From Inverclyde
Council were; Councillor Terry Loughran, Councillor George White, Councillor
Ronnie Ahlfeld, Aubrey Fawcett (Corporate Director, Regeneration & Resources).
We received apologies from Jim Mather MSP, Councillor Jim Clocherty and
Councillor Robert Moran

Graham Laidlaw outlined the roles and responsibilities of the other Scottish
Government staff in attendance; Alan McPherson would be leading on policy
development and dealing with the Commission and Judith Ainsley would be leading
on Ferries Review and tendering. He also updated the meeting on action taken;
meetings and correspondence, since the previous meeting, including some detail
on the broader Ferries Review issue.

| took the opportunity of emphasising the importance of any tendering process
specifying a combined vehicle and foot passenger service and asked if this could



Page 25

now be taken forward. Aubrey Fawcett endorsed my view, indicating that he had
concerns about the matter being delayed any further, stating that the two Councils
were looking to the Scottish Government to be proactive on this matter. | asked that
the Scottish Government consider an options exercise.

The main outcomes from the meeting were as follow:-

e Councils would provide an economic overview to the Scottish Government
within next 2 weeks. Robert Pollock and Aubrey Fawcett would liaise
accordingly.

e Scottish Government would consider how a tender brief could be developed
and would organise a follow-up meeting with officers from the two Councils
to discuss.

e Scottish Government would arrange for all to meet again in late March after
a planned mid March meeting between the Commission and the Scottish
Government.

e That all of the above actions would be carried out in a manner supportive of
a fully open tendering process

Another meeting is to be arranged by Graham Laidlaw and held in Inverclyde.

Older people and learning disability project board at SNH Boardroom

| chaired a meeting of the Project Board with responsibility for oversight of the
reviews of Learning Disability, and Older People’s Services which the Council has
agreed should be carried out.

The Project Board includes; representatives from Health, service users and their
carers. A considerable amount of work has been carried out in recent months, in
terms of developing options/proposals for both service areas.

There was considerable discussion at the Project Board, about the need for good
communications in relation to these matters, and briefings on progress will be put in
place for Members, and indeed for other interested parties, over the next two to
three months.

Demonstration Project Board Meeting-
Harnessing the Potential of the 3" Sector to Help Achieve Council’s
Corporate Objectives, HIE Office, 26" February 2009

On the above date, | chaired the first meeting of the second phase of the
Demonstration Project Board. There were two main items discussed on the day;
Dialogue with Partners Brief and the Demonstration Project Action Plan.

The Demonstration Project has finished its first phase of research and we are now
ready to have a dialogue with our partners on findings from Phase 1 of the Project
and the proposed follow-up actions. This dialogue will take place through the



Page 26

months of May, June and July 2009. The resulting feedback will be incorporated to
ensure that the proposed actions are fit for purpose. The first stage of this work will
be to look at our own internal processes by speaking with Officers and others within
the Council who work with the Third Sector, to find out what tools and information
they use to engage with the Third Sector. Likewise, we will also be speaking with
our colleagues in Health, Enterprise and Third Sector Intermediaries. This
information will then be used to further inform the Project’s work.

A number of milestones, roles and responsibilities were agreed at the meeting and
the project’s progress will be reported to the board on an on-going basis.

An unscheduled item which arose as a result of an earlier meeting with Kate
Braithwaite of the Carnegie UK Trust was the possibility of Argyll and Bute
participating as one of five UK National Third Sector Flagship projects. | hope to be
able to bring more information to the Executive Committee in a future next Leader’s
Report.

Council Tax

Council tax collections to end of January for 2008/9 are 94.84% - now exactly the
same as last year. By contrast at the end of January we were down 0.07%. The
improvement in December was in part due to re-instatement of discounts which
had been removed at the end of November and adversely affected that month’s
stats. Overpaid accounts are still lower than the previous year’s so we actually
have a very slight increase in performance. Current year sheriff officer payments
are still up on last year’'s now equating to ¢ 0.13%.

We are now monitoring collections on a weekly basis and as at 6 March 2009, for
2008/9 they are now at 95.12% up 0.34% on last year’s. This is encouraging.
Statistics over the last few weeks are quite volatile as payments start to come in for
the new year following annual billing — in the past payments via post offices all
defaulted to the current year. We have gone live with a new cash receipting
system which we believe will not have this particular problem. No doubt there will
be others instead.

Collections for the 2007/08 year are now 96.92%, down 0.03% on last year’s at this
time. Sheriff officer collections for February for all years were £186,788 — down
£19,000 on last February’s. For January and February together, we are now down
£77,000 of the previous year’s — a reduction of nearly 17%.

A presentation to prospective tenderers in respect of the sheriff officer tender was
held on 26 February. Responses are due by 26 March.

Collections of Non-Domestic Rates to the end of February for 2008/9 are 103.89%,
6.91% up on this time last year. This is due to overpayments of £1,676,091 the
majority of which relates to NBC Clyde Properties as they have asked us to retain
these monies to offset against next year’s rates. Excluding overpayments,
collections would be 97.25%, an increase of 0.27%. Collections for 2007/8 are
104.60%, again overstated by overpayments majority of which also relates to NBC
Clyde Properties. Substantial overpayments will be a continuing feature of the NDR



Page 27

statistics over the remainder of the year. Across all years back to 1 April 2005 the
overpayments due to NBC Clyde Properties amount to £5.2m. plus interest. They
have now requested that we make the repayment to them in respect of Faslane,
but not for Coulport or Glendouglas. A repayment of £2.87m will be made.

Councillor Dick Walsh
Leader of the Council
12 March 2009



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 29 Agenda Item 5

Community Services
Spokesperson’s Report — Education and Lifelong Learning

1. Toward Primary School Win Solar Panels

| am proud to announce that Toward Primary School has become one of
the first schools in Scotland to be rewarded with state-of-the-art solar
panels by Scottish Gas for its exemplary green behaviour as part of the
nationwide schools programme, Generation Green.

Generation Green provides schools with specially designed learning
materials and rewards them for taking simple energy saving steps.
Schools are given a ‘Leaf Goal’ and earn ‘Green Leaves’ for undertaking
specific environmental related tasks.

Of the almost 9000 schools now taking part in Generation Green, solar
panels are reserved for the very keenest and greenest schools, such as
Toward Primary. Solar panels are awarded to the first 10 primary and the
first 10 secondary schools that reach their Leaf Goal.

Toward Primary pupils had done tremendously well to win solar panel for
their school and | would like to take this opportunity to thank all the
children for their hard work and also the Head Teacher, Cathleen Russell,
and the community for enabling a small school like Toward to compete on
a national basis. Congratulations to all involved.

2. Visit to Tiree High School

On 1% December | travelled to Tiree with Robert Grant, Head of Secondary
Education, and Malcolm MacFadyen, Head of Community Regeneration,
to view the improvement works that are taking place at the school through
the Capital Programme. A number of upgrades will be taking place at the
school, particularly within the Science department.

| enjoyed the opportunity to visit Tiree High and was impressed with the
schools ability to deliver a range of subjects at certificate level.

3. Dunoon Grammar School (DGS) TV

On Friday 16" January 2009 Dunoon Grammar pupils launched their own
groundbreaking TV station. DGS TV was set up by the pupils in a purpose
built studio within the school, using virtual studio technology.

The flagship show for the station will be a weekly magazine-style show
featuring news, views, music acts and competitions, which will be
broadcast within the school using plasma televisions and multimedia
projectors.



Page 30

At the launch pupils showed their support to Homecoming 2009 by
recording their own version of the current television advert, using Dougie
MacLean’s ‘Caledonia’ song and images of Dunoon.

| was very impressed by the organisation of the event by the pupils and
also the showcase of talents that were on display at the launch. It was a
wonderful day for the pupils at DGS and is an initiative which will benefit
children for years to come.

. Oban High School — Cashless Catering

Wednesday 4" February 2009 saw the official launch of Cashless Catering
at Oban High School. |, along with all the Oban, Lorn and the Isles
Councillors were invited to attend this event.

Many other schools across Argyll and Bute already have this system in
operation and now Oban High School can experience the benefits of
Cashless Catering. Instead of handing over cash each pupil will have a
personal card which identifies his/her Cashless Catering account. Pupils
who carry Young Scot Cards will be able to use these and those pupils
who opt out of Young Scot will be issued with a Cashless Catering only
card.

The cards can be credited with money in a number of ways, for example,
by using the “top up” machines which are conveniently located within the
school or by parents issuing the school with a cheque.

Schools which operate a Cashless Catering System benefit greatly over
those using the traditional cash payment. Benefits include;

- Reduces the need for children to carry cash on a regular basis, which
results in a reduction of theft and bullying

- Pupils entitled to free school meals use the card in the same manner
as everyone else which eradicates the stigma that some pupils
experience

- Service will speed up in the canteen, giving pupils more time to enjoy
their lunch

- Restrictions can be placed on card to prevent your child from buying
particular food types

. Argyll and Bute Schools Concert Band

The Argyll and Bute Schools Concert Band played in Rothesay Joint
Campus on 16" February and in Dunoon Grammar School on 17"
February. | was invited to deliver the vote of thanks at the event in
Rothesay and was very impressed by the array of performances that were
on display throughout the evening. | took the opportunity to thank all the
pupils from across the different secondary schools and also Kathryn



Page 31

Wilkie, Education QIO, who contributed greatly to the organisation of this
event, which is logistically challenging.

6. Examination Results 2008

The examinations results for Argyll and Bute have been published for a
while now but | have not had the opportunity to personally congratulate the
schools in their continued level of high performance in national
qualifications. The authority is above or equal to the national and “family”
(Angus, Dumfries and Galloway, Highland, Scottish Borders and South
Ayrshire) averages in all but the Advance Higher category, where there
was a decrease over the record figure of 2007.

Argyll and Bute schools continue to demonstrate strong performances
across most of the national qualification measures and | commend all
education staff for their hard work and dedication in securing continuous
improvement within the authority.

Councillor Isobel Strong
Education and Lifelong Learning Spokesperson
March 2009



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 33 Agenda ltem 6

Community Services
Spokespersons Report — Social Services

1. Into the Spotlight — Housing, Homecare and Community Health
Services Event

On 2" December 2008 | attended the above event with the Head of Adult
Care, which was held in the Crieff Hydro Hotel, Perthshire. This COSLA
ran conference was set up to address the ways in which housing, care and
health services can work in partnership to enable people to remain in their
own home. The drive for more flexible services and increasing quality will
impact on future service delivery across each of the sectors, which when
coupled with the ageing population provides and even greater challenge.

A number of key speakers from each of the sectors were in attendance to
discuss and explore any future developments and how a more integrated
approach can be taken to deliver sustainable outcomes. Speakers
included;

¢ Nicola Sturgeon MSP, Deputy First Minister and Cabinet Secretary for
Health and Wellbeing, who spoke about the importance of care at
home and the delivery of “Better Health, Better Care”

e Councillor Ronnie McColl, COSLA Spokesperson for Health and
Wellbeing, who delivered a presentation entitled “Excellence in care at
home requires excellence in partnership working”.

e Peter Gabbitas, Director of Health and Community Services, Lothian
CHP, spoke in regard to the delivery of joined up care and how a more
innovative and integrated approach can be taken.

e Colin Mair, Chief Executive, Improvement Service, and Mike Foulis,
Director of Housing and Regeneration, Scottish Government, jointly
delivered a discussion on “What makes a good health, housing and
social care partnership.

In addition to the above speakers, there was a huge array of workshops
arranged throughout the day, covering all aspects of care and housing.
This was a very well organised event which | was pleased to attend as |
found it very informative and was impressed by the diverse range of
speakers who presented on the day.

2. Argyll and Bute Alcohol and Drugs Action Team Lead Officers Group
(ABADATLOG)

| attended a meeting of ABADATLOG which was held at Dunoon Police
Station on 12" December 2008. One of the items on the agenda was an
update on the coordinator post which has now been advertised and which
is likely to be based in either Lochgilphead or Helensburgh. There was
also a lengthy discussion in regard to funding and how this was being
spent. Arising from this a meeting was arranged with Shona Robison to
discuss this issue further — see item 6 below.



Page 34

3. Argyll and Bute Health and Care Strategic Partnership Committee

| attended a meeting of the Strategic Partnership on 19" December 2008.
At this meeting the role of Chairman was transferred from Bill
Brackenridge over to myself, unopposed. Other items of the agenda
included;

e Re-design of older peoples services — it was advised that the Council
have been leading on this project and a short list of options have now
been completed and scored, which will be presented to the Project
Board at end February 2009, coming to the Partnership thereafter.

e Delayed Discharge — the figures for the November census were
discussed and it was noted that there are 71(x) issues particularly in
Oban and Mid Argyll, Kintyre and Islay, where there are bed capacity
issues.

e Integrated Occupational Therapy Service — discussion took place
around the care management role of OT’s and what measures can be
taken to reduce the waiting list. It was noted that a training and
implementation plan would be used to address waiting list issues. This
has been piloted in Bute and Cowal with positive results.

e Jeannie Deans Unit — it was reported that work commences in January
2009 and should be ready for completion in June 2009, with an
audiology and dental facility completed by end July 2009.

4. SWIA Interview

As part of the follow up inspection program | was interviewed on 6™
January 2009, where a number of issues were discussed, including the re-
design of older people’s services, mental health, learning disability and the
communication of changes to staff and partners.

5. COSLA Executive Group — Health and Wellbeing

| attended a meeting of the COSLA Health and Wellbeing Executive Group
on 26" January 2009. A number of policy development issues were
discussed at the meeting, including;

e Towards a Mentally Flourishing Scotland — a report was put before the
group outlining the Scottish Governments proposals for a new action
plan for mental health improvement. This policy will include action to
promote and protect mental wellbeing, reduce the prevalence of mental
health problems and support those experiencing mental health
problems and mental illness. The proposed action plan will set out how
we build on current success from now until 2011 and beyond, looking
at strategic priorities and the infrastructure and support that
Government will put in place to help facilitate implementation and
delivery.

e Review of Older People’s Care — an update on the preparatory work
that COSLA has undertaken in pursuit of the reform of older people’s



Page 35

care was circulated to the group. This paper has been developed in
reaction to the demographic changes that are taking place/impending.
The group endorsed the recommendation to have a national debate
about the future of older people’s services, using post Sutherland work
to facilitate this, and agreed the forward activity to be carried out by
COSLA.

Other topics discussed were; the health of the working age population,
including the promotion of healthy working lives; the recent launch of the
continuous learning framework; and an update on a number of
ongoing/completed consultations in regard to health and wellbeing.

The next meeting is scheduled for 16" April 2009.
6. Meeting with Shona Robison MSP

In regard to item 2 above, a meeting was arranged with Shona Robison
MSP, Minister for Public Health in order to discuss the distribution of
alcohol monies from NHS Highland to the Argyll and Bute Alcohol and
Drugs Action Team.

7. IDEA

A further meeting with IDEA, Islay was held on 23 February 2009 at the
Service Point, Bowmore. The Head of Adult Care was in attendance, as
well as Councillors Horn and Currie. The purpose of the meeting was to
discuss the current financial and management position of IDEA and the
way forward. It was agreed that the Council would continue to support
IDEA by providing recurring funding of £26,000 per year. It was also
agreed IDEA would seek to find alternative funding sources and in order to
achieve long term stability IDEA would look at providing flexible outreach
work with less dependence on traditional patterns of employment and
more us of volunteers wherever possible.

Councillor Donald Mclintosh
Social Services Spokesperson
March 2009



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37 Agenda ltem 7

Consultation began December 2008
Consultation ends 17 March 2009

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL EXECUTIVE

COMMUNITY SERVICES THURSDAY 19" MARCH 2009

“INVESTING IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING: A CONSULTATION” — DRAFT
RESPONSE

1.0 SUMMARY

1.1 This report proposes a draft response to the Scottish Government’s
consultation paper “Investing in Affordable Housing” which was
issued in December 2008. Final responses are due by the 17"
March 2009, therefore a copy of the draft has already been
submitted to comply with this deadline on the strict understanding
that it is still subject to approval.

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 Members are asked to approve the draft response for formal
submission.

3.0 BACKGROUND

3.1 The Scottish Government issued the consultation paper “Investing
in Affordable Housing” in December 2008. Key aspects of the
proposed reforms are, in summary:-

« Housing investment priorities would be determined on a
regional basis and agreed with local authority partners;

« The regional priorities would be set out in Prospectuses
which would be based on Strategic Housing Investment
Plans;

o Lead Developers would operate within the agreed regions,
and there should be scope for there to be more than one
Lead Developer in each of the regions;

« In order to become a Lead Developer, Registered Social
Landlords (RSLs) would be encouraged to form
development consortia that are committed to securing
greater efficiency and more value from the investment in
affordable housing;



3.2

Page 38

« Each consortium should be led by one RSL which would
then bid for subsidy on behalf of the consortium as a whole
and would be a prospective Lead Developer;

« There will be time for RSLs not currently working in existing
consortia to organise themselves and either join a
consortium or set one up;

« There would be two stages in the process: the first stage
would be pre-qualification and only pre-qualified RSLs
would be able to move on to the second stage, which is
bidding for subsidy and for appointment as a Lead
Developer;

« All pre-qualified RSLs, whether acting on their own behalf
or as heads of a consortium, should be able to compete for
subsidy for short-term costed projects; and, if they wish,
seek appointment as a Lead Developer which would
secure for them a conditional guarantee of programme
funding for up to five years;

« Subsidy would only be awarded to those projects which
offer the most competitive price and best match the funding
criteria; and

o Future rounds of competition for subsidy would be
conducted as and when necessary, bearing in mind that,
where Lead Developers have been appointed, much of the
Investment Programme may already have been committed
to them.

The consultation paper contains 24 specific questions and
additional comments are also invited. The annex to this paper
outlines a draft response which was jointly considered and
approved by the Strategic Housing and Communities Forum
on the 27" February 2009.

4.0 Conclusion

4.1

The Government’s proposals for reforms to the Affordable
Housing Investment Programme have important implications
for local authorities and RSL partners. The proposals include
key concepts such as the development of Regional
Prospectuses; the creation of Lead Developers; and the
establishment of Development Consortia.



5.0

4.2

Page 39

The Council and its development partners have some serious
reservations regarding the effectiveness of these proposals
within the context of Argyll and Bute. In the circumstances, the
proposed response has been prepared in collaboration with
key partners and stakeholders on the Strategic Housing &
Communities Forum. While highlighting areas of concern, the
response also provides constructive comment on a way
forward that would protect the interests of the Council, its RSL
partners, local contractors and those who need access to
affordable housing within Argyll & Bute.

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

Policy — The proposed reforms will impact on the Council's
ability to plan strategically and to address local and national
policy objectives. The aims and objectives of the Council’s Local
Housing Strategy and the Strategic Housing Investment Plan
could be severely and adversely affected.

Finance — The effect of the Scottish Government’s proposals
could have significant implications for the local economy, the
construction industry in general, and for the delivery of the
Council’s Strategic Housing Investment Plan.

Legal — The Council would be required to enter into legal
arrangements with any proposed Lead Developer and
Registered Social Landlord consortium for the delivery of
planned objectives.

Equal Opportunities — Regionalisation and proposals for bulk
procurement could have an adverse effect on remote and rural
communities and on those with special housing needs. They
may also inhibit opportunities for local contractors to bid for work.

Personnel — Nil.

Director of Community Services
February 2009

For further information contact:
Mr Malcolm MacFadyen, Head of Community Regeneration
Tel: 01546 604412

Background Papers: For the full text of the consultation
document, visit www.scotland.gov.uk/Consultation/Current




ANNEX: “INVESTING IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING” — CONSULTATION RESPONSE ON BEHALF OF ARGYLL AND BUTE

COUNCIL

QUESTION

RESPONSE

Question 1

To what extent does our assessment of the
current economic situation reflect your
assessment?

Argyll & Bute Council is currently updating its Local Housing System
Analysis and Needs Assessments, but our basic understanding of the
economic situation reflects that of the Government generally, as summarised
in this paper and other publications such as “Responding to the Changed
Economic Climate: More Action on Housing” issued in January 2009.

The Council’s own recent Key Housing Issues paper, produced in
collaboration with partners on the Strategic Housing & Communities Forum
in August 2008, highlighted increasing concerns for Members and RSLs, for
example in securing viable financial packages via private sector borrowing.
The current credit crunch exacerbates these difficulties.

The Council would also support the Scottish Federation of Housing
Association’s analysis, that increasing land prices and development costs
have been the key factors in the recent pressurised housing markets
exacerbated by high Housing Association Grant (HAG) subsidy levels and
reduced Affordable Housing Investment Programme (AHIP) funding, rather
than any minor inefficiencies inherent in historical procurement practices.

This Council and its RSL partners would challenge the Government’s
assertion that at around 14 homes the average size of scheme is low and
“limits scope for process and cost efficiencies”. In rural and remote areas

0t abed



ANNEX: “INVESTING IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING” — CONSULTATION RESPONSE ON BEHALF OF ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

Question

Response

such as Argyll & Bute, this would be considered quite a large project and it
would be impractical to assume that joining up several schemes which may
be miles apart from each other in diverse and isolated communities could in
any way hope to achieve significant cost savings.

Argyll and Bute Council and its partners would also challenge the
Government’s overall assumption that the current procurement system, as
developed and operated within this authority area, does actually exhibit
significant inefficiencies or indeed that the Government’s proposals would
introduce any efficiencies. There is no clear evidence for either assumption.

In addition, we have concerns regarding the impact of the potential policy
changes where economies of scale are sought through the use of large
building contractors who do not normally operate within the authority area.
There is the risk of such proposals impacting negatively on local economies
with fewer jobs for locals and consequent depressed income levels, directly
resulting in an adverse impact on the socio economic opportunities available
to the local population. The Council and its partners do not believe these
proposals support the regeneration agenda, the health inequalities agenda,
nor do they promote the improvements to mental health and wellbeing as
well as physical health which feature in local Community Planning priorities
and national outcomes.

| abed



ANNEX: “INVESTING IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING” — CONSULTATION RESPONSE ON BEHALF OF ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

Question

Response

Question 2

Does the economic situation strengthen or
weaken the case for investment reform at this
time, & why?

This economic situation may be viewed as a temporary anomaly or, in part,
as a necessary corrective to an overheated & unsustainable market,
however, a time of such economic uncertainty does not provide the most
favourable environment for introducing radical procurement reforms. Given
the current reluctance of lenders to risk funding RSL activity, and the direct
impact of the financial crisis on the housing system and on local economies
- for instance on the local construction industry - many stakeholders would
consider this totally inappropriate.

This Council would accept that the recent detrimental reductions in AHIP
and changes in HAG subsidy levels (as referred to in Q1 above), require
review and amendment, however, the specific reform proposals at the heart
of this consultation are less clearly necessary and must not be imposed too
hastily or without due consideration.

Question 3

Do you agree that local authority Strategic
Housing Investment Plans and related strategies
should form the basis for identifying investment
priorities for periods of up to five years?

The proposals for 5 year investment programmes to underpin and enable
long-term, forward planning are welcomed as a positive and practical
approach. It is essential (by definition) that investment priorities should be
based on the appropriate Local Housing Strategy (LHS) and Strategic
Housing Investment Plan (SHIP) and that these be aligned with
Development Plans which are required to take a long-term vision on the
effective supply of land.

Currently, development of realistic and effective SHIPs has been hampered
by the lack of provision of detailed resource assumptions for future years,
however it is hoped that resource allocation will in future reflect the proposals

2y ebed



ANNEX: “INVESTING IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING” — CONSULTATION RESPONSE ON BEHALF OF ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

Question

Response

and projections set out in the later years of the SHIP programme. In fact, the
Council would argue that a 5 year programme should be the minimum period
for investment planning and that anything shorter would be impractical and
ineffective and would not allow for the objectives of greater efficiencies and
improved investment and procurement processes to be achieved.

Question 4

Do you agree with our proposed principles on
which geographic regions for investment will be
based?

This Council has consistently challenged the appropriateness of the regional
approach in previous consultation responses, given the unique and relatively
discrete context of both Argyll & Bute and the majority of the local, rural
housing markets within the area. It should be noted that the majority of the
projects within this area are small in scale and very localised, often on
problematic sites with infrastructure constraints and other restrictive factors
that impact on delivery costs and viability of schemes. The assumption that
regionalisation would secure efficiencies of scale in these circumstances,
therefore, is entirely inappropriate.

Given the exceptions applied to other island authorities, the Council and its
partners consider that there is a compelling case for Argyll & Bute to be
viewed as a particular case too. There are 25 inhabited islands in this
authority, more than any other local authority area in Scotland, and most are
not well interconnected as links tend to be with the mainland, which itself is
divided by long sea lochs that cut deep inland and further fragment already
remote and sparsely populated areas. This extends road links with long drive
times and very often only one road connects settlements. 17% of the local
population live on islands and are reliant on a ferry. This amounts to almost
16,000 persons and 7,500 households. In fact Argyll & Bute has been

¢y ebed



ANNEX: “INVESTING IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING” — CONSULTATION RESPONSE ON BEHALF OF ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

Question

Response

described as “the most diverse local authority area anywhere in the UK”.
There is no strategic or functional rationale for grouping Argyll & Bute with
authorities such as Inverclyde, East & West Dunbartonshire, and
Renfrewshire, as proposed. These authorities are predominantly urban
based and quite distinct in character from the remote rural and island nature
of Argyll and Bute, therefore such regionalisation would not be addressing
like for like.

In addition, the Council also envisages geographical issues and additional
bureaucratic confusions arising between the proposed grouping of local
authorities and other pre-existing, non-contiguous geographies such as the
needs and impact of the Loch Lomond & Trossachs National Park area.
Within Argyll and Bute, it is also the case that the main builders and
developers operate within circumscribed boundaries and the imposition of
the proposed regional boundaries would neither reflect nor serve their
interests in the local housing markets to any significant degree. Previous
experience would indicate that introducing competition into the procurement
process along the lines proposed does not in fact deliver any concrete
benefits nor achieve efficiency savings and may indeed have quite contrary
effects in the long term. Given the geographical extent and complexity of this
authority, there is no clear argument for economies of scale across a wider
region, and it must be borne in mind that housing needs within Argyll and
Bute are particularly localised and so cannot be addressed on a regional
basis.

The scope of the proposals within the current SHIP also demonstrates

i ebed



ANNEX: “INVESTING IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING” — CONSULTATION RESPONSE ON BEHALF OF ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

Question

Response

clearly that Argyll and Bute, as a discrete region in itself, has the capacity to
support an extensive 5 year affordable housing investment programme and
indeed beyond an initial 5 years.

Ultimately, there is also the crucial issue of governance across such a
diverse and artificially constructed regional entity. It is not clear how this
would operate and what, if any, benefits would be achieved. There is no
evidence to suggest this approach would encourage effective competition
and there is a real risk that the high-cost schemes typical of a geographic
area such as this will be put at risk within a wider region.

Argyll & Bute Council is firmly of the view that the local authority’s LHS and
SHIP, subject to effective local governance, are the key building blocks
rather than regional prospectuses.

Question 5

a) Do you agree with our proposed treatment for
Orkney, Shetland and the Western Isles
Councils?

b) Do you agree with our proposed approach for
Glasgow City and City of Edinburgh Councils?

a) See comment for Q4 regarding proposed approach to the island
authorities — this authority would argue that similar exceptional
circumstances apply to Argyll & Bute with our 25 inhabited islands.
Previous LHS/SHIP development work has identified only limited scope
for cross-boundary synergies with neighbouring authorities and we
would anticipate similar marginal outcomes for local procurement
through the proposed regionalisation approach. Indeed, these proposals
could prove in practice to be detrimental to the current and developing
good practice in procurement within this particular authority and may
actually introduce counter-effective inefficiencies in the longer term.

b) The Council and its partners are also concerned that the proposed
approach to Edinburgh, Glasgow and the “island” authorities, will result

Gt abed



ANNEX: “INVESTING IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING” — CONSULTATION RESPONSE ON BEHALF OF ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

Question

Response

in a significantly restricted national “pot” for affordable housing
investment in the other authorities and that, in particular, this will impact
disproportionately and inequitably upon a remote rural authority such as
Argyll & Bute. It is difficult to see the justification for removing so much
of the national investment “pot” if the Government’s aim of securing
efficiencies across all authorities is to be achieved.

However, this Council has remained firmly in agreement with the
concept of Transferred Management of Development Funding as
applied to Edinburgh and Glasgow, and would urge that this approach
should be extended to other local authorities to reflect their strategic role
in relation to housing.

Question 6

Do you agree that Councils, as the strategic
planning and housing authorities, and in
collaboration with RSLs, should advise on the
regions to be adopted as the basis for
Prospectuses?

As stated above, the Council is fundamentally opposed to this proposal on
procurement, and would argue strongly that the approach should be based
on local authority boundaries rather than unwieldy, large regions. However,
if regions are introduced, as strategic housing authorities, it is essential that
Councils are fully involved in the ultimate decision making.

9t abed



ANNEX: “INVESTING IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING” — CONSULTATION RESPONSE ON BEHALF OF ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

Question

Response

Question 7
a) Do you agree the scope of the content
proposed for Prospectuses set out in Table 27?

b) How can we ensure that the housing need of
people with specialist requirements or in more
remote or rural areas are fully reflected in
Prospectuses?

a)

b)

More detail would be required on the actual process for developing
Prospectuses and clarification on how these are to be linked to the
LHS & SHIP. It is not immediately apparent how separate SHIPs
would be collated and how their individual contents might be affected
or compromised by regionalisation, for example, how would
investment priorities across borders be assessed? Also, where the
impact/quality of a regional prospectus is assessed negatively, or is
considered to be problematic, how would this impact on individual
SHIPs? How exactly would the proposals differ from the existing
situation, with Scottish Government assessing individual SHIPs
across their regions? It seems that this proposal would merely
introduce an additional layer of bureaucracy with the associated issue
of uncertain governance. There are critical questions regarding the
practical and effective governance of such an approach, and
ultimately, it is uncertain how these proposals would actually improve
things.

The approach to rural and specialist housing needs would be a crucial
concern for Argyll & Bute Council and it is not self-evident that the
proposals would provide positive benefits to an authority such as this.
It would be important to ensure that the relative needs of these groups
are not adversely affected or outweighed by quick-fix approaches or
crude, numerical/economic efficiency arguments within a regional
context. Some weighting technique would be required, based on
content of LHS and local needs assessments, but there is the risk that
this would be cumbersome and complex.

L ebed



ANNEX: “INVESTING IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING” — CONSULTATION RESPONSE ON BEHALF OF ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

Question

Response

Question 8

a) Do you agree that there is a need to provide
guidance within Prospectuses on maximum rent
levels and is the proposed framework
acceptable?

There is already clear evidence of increasing pressures on rent levels in this
area and Argyll & Bute Council with its RSL partners would agree that any
adverse impact of these proposals on rent levels would be of critical concern,
due to high levels of benefit dependency and compromised affordability
across the housing system. Therefore, if the prospectus concept were to be
introduced contrary to our views, then additional guidance and formal
framework for safeguarding rent levels within the proposed context of
prospectuses would be necessary. There may be scope for undertaking work
to define and standardise the definition of affordability as a basis on which
rents can be measured and set. Local RSLs would have concerns that
maximum rents become the norm and that any RSL with lower rents (for
justifiable socio-economic reasons) would be forced to use the maximum for
HAG appraisal purposes.

gt abed



ANNEX: “INVESTING IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING” — CONSULTATION RESPONSE ON BEHALF OF ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

Question Response
Question 9
a) Are there other issues which would similarly a) Yes, there are a number of additional issues which would benefit from

benefit from guidance?

b) What are these and what is the case for
including them?

b)

clear and detailed guidance.

More guidance is required on the governance and decision-making
processes for the proposed regional structures and on how
prospectuses will be developed and how exactly the LHS and SHIP
will inform these. In addition, if they are to be introduced, clear
guidance on the mechanisms for prioritising investment allocations
across regional prospectuses is crucial.

Further, guidance on issues such as design and space standards,
energy efficiency, would be helpful to ensure that that cost-
efficiencies do not over-ride or compromise the quality standards
currently being provided by RSLs and which the Scottish Government
has made a clear commitment to uphold.

Question 10

a) Is the Lead Developer role proposed here
sufficient to deliver a more streamlined and
effective approach to investment in and
procurement of new affordable housing?

While acknowledging the intentions and principles underpinning this
proposal, Argyll & Bute Council and its development partners require
further evidence of the real benefit of the Lead Developer concept in
practice and within the context of this type of authority. Given the
geographic factors outlined in previous responses, the Council is not
confident that a Lead Developer brought into the area, and lacking
local knowledge or experience of the particular development issues
pertaining to the area, would be able to deliver any real savings or
achieve economies of scale.

In addition, there is a need to provide clarity regarding the distinctive

61 abed



ANNEX: “INVESTING IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING” — CONSULTATION RESPONSE ON BEHALF OF ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

Question

Response

b) Does it adequately balance and recognize the
needs and roles of non-developing RSL
partners?

b)

roles and remits of Lead Developers (as delivery mechanism) and
Local Authorities (as strategic authority), and the relationship between
both. The Council assumes that the Local authority, as strategic
housing body, would oversee and direct the activities of a Lead
Developer, in partnership with a consortium of RSLs.

This is a contentious issue for the Council and RSL partners, and is
likely to create more problems than it resolves, particularly in an area
like Argyll and Bute if, say, external agencies with limited local
awareness and experience were to be considered. It is necessary to
ensure all RSL partners (and others) have appropriate input into the
procurement process and participate in decision-making. Conflicts of
interest between individual RSLs acting as Lead Developers and as
equal members with other landlord functions will need to be resolved
and this will require the establishment of detailed and potentially
complex arrangements.

While the additional proposals for multi developers and flexibility
within the process are potentially helpful, they may also lead to further
complication and therefore undermine the original aims of the
proposal, i.e. to streamline processes and decrease complex
bureaucracy. The integration of local RSLs into consortia is however a
welcome and practical concept. It is the Council’s firm belief that the
Government’s stated aims of efficiency may be best served within
Argyll and Bute by the development of a local consortium of equal
partners. This would build on work that has already been undertaken

0G abed



ANNEX: “INVESTING IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING” — CONSULTATION RESPONSE ON BEHALF OF ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

Question Response
in the area to develop partnerships with local contractors wherein on
site efficiencies are developed.

Question 11 The overall process would appear to be practical however more detail is

What are your views on the routes we propose
for establishing Lead Developers?

required to assess the likely effectiveness. There is a definite role for the
local authority in the process of evaluating and confirming Lead Developer
bodies where these are deemed appropriate. The Council, as strategic
housing authority, would have to assure itself of the credibility and capacity
of any RSL appointed to such a responsible role.

Question 12

a) Do you agree with the proposed principles of
consortia and responsibilities for consortium
heads?

Argyll & Bute Council would welcome the basic principle of the consortium, a
concept which is likely to work effectively within the context of this area,
however, the role and remit of the local authority and all partners would need
to be clear and formally defined. Ultimately, it is envisaged that the Council
should be acting as the strategic lead agency for the consortium, with
responsibility for managing the investment programme while the RSLs within
the consortium constitute the delivery mechanism.

Local consortia should be allowed to develop organic structures suited to
local circumstances and not have “one-size fits all” national norm imposed
externally. Some centrally produced models could be developed on which
local groupings can base their structures. The danger of overly detailed
processes and constrictive structure development (with associated costs,
particularly legal) could actually detract from the fundamental goal of
delivering affordable housing.

|G abed



ANNEX: “INVESTING IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING” — CONSULTATION RESPONSE ON BEHALF OF ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

Question

Response

Question 13

a) Do you agree with the proposals on formation
of consortia, including the requirement of a
formal agreement to govern relationships within
consortia?

b) What guidance would be helpful to support
the sector in setting up consortia and Lead
Developer arrangements?

c) What guidance would be helpful to ensure
tenant and community engagement in decision-
making?

a) The argument for the formation of consortia to streamline
procurement (within the context of local authorities and local housing
markets rather than regions) appears sound and in line with the
principles of Best Value. Formal agreements governing participants’
relationships would be necessary and in Argyll & Bute there is some
practical, positive experience of such formal partnerships within the
context of the Common Housing Register.

b) While detailed, specific guidance would be helpful and legal,
contractual safeguards should be established, the operation of
consortia should be flexible enough to suit local needs.

c) For the future, tenant and community engagement in decision-making
will have to be incorporated within the structures and mechanisms
already existing within the LHS/SHIP processes.

Question 14

a) Do you consider that there may be
circumstances in which consortium
membership should include local authorities or
other non-RSL bodies?

b) In what circumstances would you see this as
appropriate?

As strategic housing authorities, all councils should be involved within the
consortium. Within this authority it would be most effective if the consortium
was contiguous with the SHIP Development Group and consequently the
Council must be included in membership. The Consortium would also be
ultimately responsible to the Council and its activities would be monitored by
our Strategic Housing & Community Forum.

Question 15

Are there circumstances in which bodies other
than RSLs might be eligible to become heads of
consortia and Lead Developers?

Given above comments, where a consortium is part of, or equivalent to, an
LHS/ SHIP development partnership, there would be strong arguments for
the local authority to take lead responsibility (as the Scottish Government

proposals indicate, referring to “more influence for Local Authorities on the

2G abed



ANNEX: “INVESTING IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING” — CONSULTATION RESPONSE ON BEHALF OF ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

Question

Response

allocation of AHIP” and on assessing pre-qualification applications). In
respect of Lead developers, there are also circumstances whereby
authorities planning to undertake significant new build programmes should
be eligible to assume this role.

Question 16
Do you agree that a pre-qualification process
should be included in the new arrangements?

The pre-qualification process is a useful step towards ensuring basic
standards, qualifications, experience & capacity are in place, however, this
process should not duplicate or merely add to existing Regulation &
Inspection processes, e.g., those procedures already in place for RSLs with
development functions. As stated above, the local authority would have a
role in this process, as it would have to be satisfied that the approved vehicle
is fit for purpose.

Question 17

Are the pre-qualification criteria and information
requirements set out at Annex C a reasonable
basis on which to work with the Regulator, the
SFHA and COSLA to refine the pre-qualification
process?

If this approach is to be adopted, then the details set out in Annex C would
require further development of the pre-qualification process in liaison with all
the relevant bodies.

Question 18
Do you agree with the proposed funding criteria
for bids for specific projects?

This Council has concerns regarding the emphasis on competition in the
context of this relatively high-cost area, and believes that the introduction of
an approach based on competitive bulk procurement would be counter
productive and would not achieve the anticipated efficiency savings but is
more likely to increase uncertainty into the tendering process.

Regarding the proposed funding criteria:

Amount of subsidy — The Council agrees that this criterion needs to be
balanced against other criteria to ensure a comprehensive assessment of

oG abed



ANNEX: “INVESTING IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING” — CONSULTATION RESPONSE ON BEHALF OF ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

Question

Response

Value For Money;

Deliverability — The Council agrees that projects should be realistic and
achievable in terms of land ownership; scheduled development plans; and
fully costed requirements;

Quality — The Council agrees that proposals would be required to meet
explicit standards of quality;

Local Authority Endorsement — It is essential that all subsidised proposals
must contribute to the local strategic plans and objectives set out by the
Council and reflect the investment priorities as set out in the SHIP & LHS;
Ownership & Management — The Council agrees that details of ultimate
ownership and management arrangements for proposed units must be
specified.

In addition, further clarification would be required regarding the allocation of
the funding to address local needs and the precise roles and responsibilities
of local authorities (in managing resources through the LHS and SHIP) and

any Lead Developer. The implications for non lead developers in accessing

funding also need to be considered in detail.

Question 19
Do you agree with our proposed approach to
development of an assessment framework?

The Council agrees that the development of a transparent and consistent
assessment framework should be progressed jointly with COSLA and SFHA.
Clarity on the role/input of Local authorities is required. The balance between
objectivity and subjective judgment in assessment must also be clarified. In
particular, this authority would agree that due account is required of the
investment priorities set out in the SHIP and that this must reflect the priority
to be given to both special needs accommodation and the requirements of

G abed



ANNEX: “INVESTING IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING” — CONSULTATION RESPONSE ON BEHALF OF ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

Question Response
remote and rural areas. Assessments must balance and resolve any
potential conflict between these priorities (i.e. special and rural needs) and
the drive to achieve lower unit costs.

Question 20 We would expect local authorities to be fully involved in the appraisal of all

How might we enhance the involvement of local
authorities, RSLs and other stakeholders in the
assessment of proposals?

proposals and that ultimately these must be developed within the context of
the LHS and SHIP and subiject to the existing local authority governance
regime. It is not clear how this governance would be achieved through the
proposed regional model. Further guidance to specify this approach would
be helpful. At the national level, clear and agreed procedures should be set
by the Scottish Government and COSLA in consultation with the SHFA. At
the local level, Councils should liaise with local Housing Investment Division
Offices to assess pre-qualification submissions and bids for AHIP by lead
developers and other RSLs.

Question 21

Do you agree with our proposed approach to the
appointment and management of Lead
Developers?

This Council is not in agreement with the basic concept of Lead Developer
as proposed. (See previous comments). Fundamentally, we do not believe
this is the only effective way for local consortia to operate, however, if this
were to be imposed then more detail on issues such as monitoring and
sanctions against poorly performing lead developers would be helpful. Any
Lead Developer would have to demonstrate, as a minimum,

e clear commitment to developing housing appropriate to the area (and
to delivering the aims and objectives of the LHS and SHIP);

e financial capacity and sound governance;

e the support and agreement of all consortium partners;

GG abed



ANNEX: “INVESTING IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING” — CONSULTATION RESPONSE ON BEHALF OF ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

Question

Response

e fully developed schedules which include detailed costings &
timescales for at least the first 1 to 2 years of the proposed
programme;

e clear proposals for ultimate ownership & management of the new
units; and

e and a Monitoring & Evaluation framework which outlines performance
indicators against which efficiency, effectiveness and value for money
will be measured

As stated above, ultimately, the Local Authority would have to satisfy itself of
the suitability and capacity of any organization to be appointed to operate
within its boundaries.RSL partners also have significant concerns about the
role and responsibilities of a single Lead Developer which is a highly risky
remit and may not be attractive or feasible for one organization itself,
particularly in the current economic downturn. Other models of consortium
structure and delivery should be permissible to suit local circumstances,
rather than incorporation into wider regional structures. The best way forward
for Argyll and Bute is more likely to be achieved through improved on-site
project management and this would be best delivered through a partnership
of equals which embodies local knowledge and experience of tackling the
particular difficulties characteristic of this authority area.

Question 22
a) Do you agree with the overall approach to

grant agreements for Lead Developers as set
out here?

a) In principle, Argyll & Bute Council would agree that Grant Agreements
should reduce cumbersome processes as far as possible and
encourage streamlined efficiency, while ensuring best value is

9G abed



ANNEX: “INVESTING IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING” — CONSULTATION RESPONSE ON BEHALF OF ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

Question

Response

b) What do you suggest we could alter to make
grant payments more streamlined?

sustained. However, clear guidelines on monitoring the delivery of
grant against a schedule of outputs and outcomes would be
necessary.

b) Longer term commitments to future levels of funding should be in
place, as far as possible, to allow developments to proceed with some
assurance of security for developers and partners. A robust but
flexible approach to monitoring progress across a SHIP-based
programme would help reduce the bureaucracy of micro-managed
individual projects.

Question 23
Do you have any comments on the proposed
timetable?

« June 2009: Regional structure confirmed, pre-
qualification prospectus issued and RSLs start
to make provisional plans for joining consortia
and applying to become a Lead Developer

« September 2009: deadline for applications for
pre-qualification

« October 2009: appointment of pre-qualified
RSLs

« November 2009: regional Prospectuses
published and all pre-qualified RSLs invited to
apply for subsidy and for appointment as Lead
Developer

This timetable is extremely challenging and does not appear to follow a
clear, logical sequence. Further consultation and discussion at both local and
national level s is required regarding, for instance, acceptable regions and
the development of prospectuses. It appears that these prospectuses are
supposed to reflect individual SHIPs although these would be under
development at the same time to meet the November deadline for
submission. This seems impractical, to say the least.

Ultimately, this process must sit with the SHIP development & LHS review
processes which most local authorities are currently undertaking and,
therefore, this Council does not consider such a timetable to be realistic or
achievable, particularly at this time of economic uncertainty. The Council and
its partners would have great concerns about the imposition of such far-
reaching reform with undue haste. This is particularly so at this time of

/G obed



ANNEX: “INVESTING IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING” — CONSULTATION RESPONSE ON BEHALF OF ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

Question

Response

« Oct 2009 — Feb 2010: RSLs finalise both their
consortium membership and investment
proposals

« March 2010: Deadline for applications from pre-
qualified RSLs/consortia for funding of specific
projects over 2010-12 and for appointment as
Lead Developer

« April 2010: Competitive awards of subsidy for
2010-2012 and appointment of Lead
Developers for 2010-2015

economic uncertainty when the impact could be damaging to the local
economy and local housing system within Argyll & Bute.

Question 24

Which indicators and what aspects of the
Investment Programme should be included in a
monitoring and evaluation framework?

Monitoring & Evaluation should focus on the agreed LHS outcomes & SHIP
objectives and targets, taking account of cost and quality but with due
allowance for local circumstances and context. However, it is not clear who
would oversee this across a region or how it would be undertaken within
that context. Existing Monitoring & Evaluation structures should be built on
rather than creating further bureaucratic and disassociated structures.

gG abed



Page 59 Agenda Item 8

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL EXECUTIVE
COMMUNITY SERVICES 19 MARCH 2009

MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES IN ARGYLL AND BUTE
- REDESIGN AND MODERNISATION

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1  An extensive Service Review and work on developing options for the
future of Mental Health Services has been in progress in Argyll and Bute
since 2007. This work has involved many local service users, carers, NHS
staff and managers and staff form Argyll and Bute Council, all working
together using a process called “Service Redesign” to plan Mental Health
services for the 21% Century. The Head of Service Adult Care and Service
Manager (Mental Health) have been involved in every step of this process
to ensure the Council is a fully active partner, shaping and influencing the
Process of service redesign.

1.2 A draft response on behalf of Argyll and Bute Council to the consultation is
attached along with a copy of the consultation document “Mental Health
Services in Argyll and Bute — Redesign and Modernisation” from NHS
Highland.

1.3 The CHP and Council have worked closely with an external consultancy
organisation “Research and Development in Mental Health” (RDMH).

1.4 The process was split into three distinct phases. Phase 1 - Needs
Assessment and Local Engagement (completed). Phase 2 - Service
Option Development in Mental Health (completed). Phase 3 - formal
period of Public Consultation which runs from 12" January to 10" April
20009.

1.5 A series of further events have been set to ensure the public and staff of
partner agencies are given time to consider the proposals set out in the
public consultation document entitled “Mental Health Services in Argyll
and Bute — Redesign and Modernisation. Further details of phase 1 and
phase 2 activity is contained within the document previously mentioned.

1.6 The key messages that people reported during phase 1 and phase 2 were:

e Services to be as local to peoples communities as is safe and
achievable

e Seven day a week community Mental Health services

e Crisis response, ideally including home based treatment both to
prevent admission and to facilitate discharge from hospital

¢ Development of psychological services



Page 60

e NHS Community Mental Health staff and Social Work staff to be
working and based together

Adequate support and help for carers

A single point of access for people to the mental health services
Access to inpatient care when needed

Services to Helensburgh and Lomond area must follow same
principles and aims as the rest of Argyll and Bute.

2. OPTIONS

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

The following 5 options are contained within the consultation document:

Option 1 - Minimal Change - some minor changes to inpatient services at
the Argyll and Bute Hospital, some minor improvements in community
based care.

Option 2 - Local Services with Inpatient Care in Community Hospitals
- improvements in community based services, 7 days a week, some adult
inpatient care in local community hospitals, and intensive inpatient care in
either a new 6 bed unit in Lochgilphead or in a hospital of a neighbouring
NHS Board.

Option 3 - Enhanced Local Community Services and a Single, Local
Inpatient Unit in Lochgilphead - Improvements in community based
services, 7 days a week, supported by a new, flexible, adult inpatient
facility based in Lochgilphead.

Option 4 - As Option 3 plus Day Assessment and Treatment Service,
and a Centre for Staff Training - as above plus day assessment and
treatment service, and a centre for ongoing staff training and development.

Option 5 - Community Based Services with No Local Inpatient Care -
expanded and enhanced community based services including specialist
services to enable people to remain in their own community. When
admission to hospital is unavoidable, it may be by arrangement with a
hospital in a neighbouring NHS Board.

3.0 SERVICE COSTS

Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 Option 4 Option 5
Hospital 9.261m 9.318m 7.619m 7.837 5.683m
Services
Community | 4.342m 6.393m 6.038m 6.038m 7.865m
Services
Total 13.603m 15.711m 13.657 13.875 13.549m

Mhredesignexecutive0.Doc

12/03/2009




3.1

3.2

3.3

Page 61

Current Services

Hospital Services £9.261m
Community Services £4.342m
Total £13.603m

Building Costs

Option 1 Option2 | Option 3 | Option 4 | Option 5
10m 4.8m 8.69m 9.59m 2.25m

Council Contribution

The Council have set the budget allocation for Mental Health and this cost
is fixed regardless of which option is chosen.

4. SUMMARY OF OPTIONS 1 TO 5

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Option 1 - This option keeps the current services much as they are, with
only a few small changes.

Option 2 - This option has developments in Primary Care and Community
Care services. Inpatient beds would be available in five of the local
Community Hospitals, and more specialised psychiatric intensive care
services in either a new 6 bed unit in Lochgilphead, or provided outside
Argyll and Bute by another NHS provider. The costs of this option make
it unaffordable in its present form.

Option 3 - This option would have significant developments in Primary
and Community Care services, with a single specialist inpatient Mental
Health unit in Lochgilphead.

Option 4 - This is a variation of option 3. It includes two additional
functions — an Assessment and Day Treatment service where people who
may be facing admission to hospital can be assessed and can have formal
individual and group therapies, plus an Education Centre for staff training,
and to support ongoing clinical staff development.

Option 5 - The aim of this option is to provide a wide range of care for
people in their own home or their own community so that relatively few
people would need in-patient treatment. It includes extended development
of the Community Mental Health Teams. There would be no Mental Health
inpatient beds within Argyll and Bute. People requiring hospital treatment
would be referred out of the area.

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF OPTION 2

5.1

NHS Highland have indicated in section 5.2.6 of the consultation
document that “this option would require substantial additional investment.
The full costing indicates that annual running costs would be in the region

Mhredesignexecutive0.Doc

12/03/2009



Page 62

of £15.7m which is £2m more than current service. This reflects the very
high cost of running 5 small inpatient units.
6. CONCLUSION
6.1  The Council need to consider the content of the consultation document
regarding the Redesign and Modernisation of Mental Health Services in
Argyll and Bute and consider the formal letter of response. The Council is
supportive of option 3 while noting that further refinement of this option will

be explored in relation to the detail of Community Mental Health Teams
and the associated management framework.

James Robb, Head of Adult Care

27™ February 2009

For further information contact:

Allen Stevenson, Service Manager, Mental Health

Mhredesignexecutive0.Doc
12/03/2009



Page 63

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL EXECUTIVE
19 March 2009
CORPORATE SERVICES

EXTRACT OF MINUTE OF SOCIAL AFFAIRS POLICY AND PERFORMANCE
GROUP 9 MARCH 2009

11. COMMUNITY HEALTH PARTNERSHIP'S CONSULTATION PAPER ON THE
FUTURE OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

An extensive Service Review and work on developing options for the future of Mental
Health Services has been progress in Argyll and Bute since 2007. A draft response on
behalf of Argyll and Bute Council to the consultation along with a copy of the
consultation document “Mental Health Services in Argyll and Bute — Redesign and
Modernisation” from NHS Highland was before Members for consideration.

An amended report summarising the main points within the consultation document was
also tabled at the meeting.

Decision

1. To agree the draft response to the consultation and to support Option 3 subject to
the following amendments:-

(@) The importance of crisis beds being area based within the Community
Hospitals should be included within the response;

(b)  The importance of the development of the future configuration and
management of Community Mental Health Teams should be stressed within
the response;

(c) That in supporting Option 3, to make clear that this option should be made
available to clients across the whole of Argyll and Bute including
Helensburgh and Lomond; and

2. To note that the response will be redrafted to take account of the above
amendments and forwarded to the Executive for their endorsement.

(Reference: Report by Director of Community Services dated 27 February 2009,
issued and Amended Report by Director of Community Services dated 27 February
2009, tabled)



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 65

Kilmory, Lochgilphead, Argyll. PA31 8RT
Telephone: 01546 604348 Fax: (01546) 604434
Our Ref: DW/LMC Your Ref:

If phoning or calling please ask for: Councillor Walsh
E-mail: dick.walsh@argyll-bute.gov.uk

Council Website: www.argyll-bute.gov.uk

March 2009

Argyll and Bute MH Consultation
NHS Highland

Assynt House

Beechwood Park

INVERNESS

IV2 3BW

Dear Sirs
ARGYLL AND BUTE MENTAL HEALTH CONSULTATION

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to the above consultation process. Argyll and Bute
Council have been active partners throughout this process. Council Officers have attended
public meetings, Project Board meetings and linked closely with the CHP General Manager,
Locality Managers and Clinicians and Research and Development in Mental Health (RDMH).

The process was split into three distinct phases. Phase 1 - Needs Assessment and Local
Engagement completed. Phase 2 - Service Option Development in Mental Health complete.
Phase 3 - formal period of Public Consultation which runs from 12" January to 10" April 2009
and Council Officers have played an active part in this. As series of public events have been
held across Argyll and Bute to ensure the public and staff are given the opportunity to
consider the proposals set out in the public consultation document entitled “Mental Health
Services in Argyll and Bute — Redesign and Modernisation”.

Argyll and Bute Council welcome the opportunity to be involved in the further series of “mop
up” events during March which will offer the public and staff a further opportunity to consider
the proposals set out in the public consultation document.

Options
Option 1 — The Council recognise this option keeps the current services much as they are,

with only a few small changes. This will not deliver on the Partnerships aspiration for a
modern Mental Health Service fit for the 21%* Century.



Page 66

-2-

Option 2 - This option has developments in Primary Care and Community Care services.
Inpatient beds would be available in five of the local Community Hospitals, and more
specialised psychiatric intensive care services in either a new 6 bed unit in Lochgilphead, or
provided outside Argyll and Bute by another NHS provider. The Council recognise that the
costs of this option make it unaffordable in its present form. This option appears to be
popular with service users, carers and voluntary organisations.

Option 3 - This option would have significant developments in Primary and Community Care
services, with a single specialist inpatient Mental Health unit in Lochgilphead.

Option 4 - This is a variation of option 3. It includes two additional functions — an
Assessment and Day Treatment service where people who may be facing admission to
hospital can be assessed and can have formal individual and group therapies, plus an
Education Centre for staff training, and to support ongoing clinical staff development.

Option 5 — The Council recognise this option is unpopular with users and carers, clinicians
and other Mental Health staff due to the unavailability of direct access to beds within Argyll
and Bute. The Partnership would be dependant on a Service Level Agreement with another
CHP.

Financial Implications of Options

NHS Highland has indicated in section 5.2.6 of the consultation document that “option 2
would require substantial additional investment”. The full costing indicates that annual
running costs would be in the region of £15.7m which is £2m more than current service. This
reflects the very high cost of running 5 small inpatient units. All the other options can be
delivered within existing budget.

Outstanding Issues

Option 2 is popular with service users and a range of stakeholders but is not affordable in its
current form. The Council acknowledges the potential gap in available resources to develop
this option in its current form. The Council recognise this option remains popular with service
users and carers and there will be dissatisfaction from the aforementioned groups if this
option is not pursued.

Contained within option 4 is a central training facility which is argued is essential for the
development of staff skills and training. However, training within localities could deliver a
more local response to identified training needs within option 3. The other issue to consider is
the wider need within the CHP and Council in terms of a training base which is not
exclusively for Mental Health staff.

As the debate evolves around the 5 original options, there may be additional development of
aspects of options 3 and 4. For example, option 2 is very popular with service users and
carers/...



Page 67

-3-

carers because of the availability of acute beds locally. A future development of options 3 or
4 could consider the potential of 24 hour crisis bed in each Community Hospital. The Service
User would then return home with an appropriate support plan. This could avoid a lengthy
transfer to the Lochgilphead area and it may also be affordable within existing budget. The
nature of this debate will shift and change as the public start to consider wider issues and
then provide feedback to the CHP and Council.

A detailed debate on the future configuration and management of Community Mental Health
Teams remains outstanding. It is the Council’s view that it is best placed to manage these
community teams and intends retaining the management of its own staff. We would want to
engage positively with the Argyll & Bute CHP to pursue this to a conclusion as expeditiously
as possible.

Recommendations

The decision to recommend one option is not a straight forward decision for the Council
simply due to the diversity of options contained within the consultation document.

However, the option which presents as the most beneficial in terms of securing a balance
between the centralised/decentralised debate as well as providing quality, safety, affordability
and access to services is option 3.

While recognising the similarities of options 3 & 4, the advantage that option 3 has over
option 4 is the deployment of more services to local geographical areas. Option 4 proposes
adding to the new central unit in Lochgilphead with an additional Assessment and Treatment
service as well as staff training facilities. The advantages of option 3 include:

e This provides a central inpatient facility in Lochgilphead.

e |t also promotes the principle of developing community services in each geographical area
thus ensuring as much revenue and therefore services are delivered in local geographical
areas.

e This is as opposed to option 4 which builds on the central inpatient facility to include a
central base for individual and group therapies.

e It could be more advantageous to provide these services in local areas and keep to a
minimum the need for people to travel to Lochgilphead for specialist treatments.

e This option also builds capacity locally in relation to ongoing staff training.

e This service would cost broadly the same as the existing service, so is affordable.

Conclusion

The Council recognises the five options contained within the consultation document offer
both advantages and disadvantages. The Council is supportive of option 3 while noting that
further refinement of this option will be explored in relation to the detail of Community Mental
Health Teams and the associated management framework. The Council note the principle
that/..



Page 68

4-

that service users in Helensburgh and Lochside should expect the same benefits as a result
of the redesign process as service users in all other areas of Argyll and Bute. The option of
developing the concept of a 24 Hour Crisis bed in each community hospital is a very positive
development and is valuable evidence that the issues raised by members of the public are
having an influence on the development of the options during this consultation process.

Yours faithfully

Councillor Dick Walsh
Leader of Argyll and Bute Council



Public
consultation

' \V

Mental Health Services In
Argyll and Bute - redesign
and modernisation

THIS CONSULTATION RUNS FROM 12 JANUARY 2009 TO 10 APRIL 2009.

This document sets out proposals for the future of
adult mental health services across Argyll and Bute
and explains how you can make your views known.

If you would like this information in a different language or
format (E.g. large print or audio cassette) or to know
details of consultation events in your area please contact

01546 604908




If you wish to have any of this information reproduced in another format
or language, please contact:

Fiona Broderick Argyll & Bute Community Health Partnership
Email address fiona.broderick@nhs.net

Telephone: 01546 604908

Gaelic:
Ma tha sibh ag iarraidh am fiosrachadh seo sa Ghaidhlaig, cuiribh fios gu an
seodladh gu h-airde.

Polish:
Na zyczenie fragmenty tej informacji moga by¢ powielone w innym formacie lub
jezyku, prosze o kontakt na dane podane powyzej

Chinese Cantonese:
R LRI E AR LB oy DL S —Faig A EGE S R B SE R DL R AVIBREEat -

Portuguese:
Se desejar receber partes da presente informagéo reproduzidas noutro formato ou
idioma, utilize os detalhes de contacto supramencionados

Latvian:
Ja JUs vélaties sanemt Sis informacijas dalas, reproducétas cita formata vai valoda,
Lddzu, lietojiet augstak minéto kontaktinformaciju

Lithuanian:
Jei jus norétumeéte, jog Si informacija baty pateikta kitu formatu ar kita kalba,
prasome susisiekti virSuje pateiktais kontaktais

Russian:

Ecnu Bbl XOTHTE NONAYYUTb KaKyto-nMbo 13 aToi MHbopmauunm B Apyrom popmaTte
WU Ha APYrom A3blKe, NOXKanyncTa, BOCNOb3yNTECH BblleyKa3aHHbIMM
KOHTaKTHbIMW AaHHbIMMW

Czech:
Pokud chcete nékteré z informaci reprodukovat v jiném formatu nebo jazyce,
obratte se na nas na nize uvedeném kontaktu

Arabic:
131 &y C"_U'&L._a - UCUAJJ &dd B 0o U?&d}?\c_’ COOUEA ‘CJ b d'&'é iC)Lg‘
SIS ‘U‘”‘L’éd\? n._ag\o\d\ \d\&u.a\d \de'deﬂ}jé \&d\o

Bengali:

aoft 7fn @2 waftr g g @t SRy TETTEETE A SEE IS B,
AT F0A @Ot e metia Geifie o g F=ma

Public Consultation




This is an NHS Highland consultation on
service change; the work on developing Argyll N H S

future models of service has been A
undertaken in partnership with %}Bute N— o/

Argyll and Bute Council. COUNCIL Highland

CONTENTS Page no.

Summary

Part One 4

1. Background

2. Current mental health services 7

3. Reviewing and improving local services

4. Modern mental health services 12

Part Two

5. Options development and appraisal 14
o Option One 14
o Option Two 16
o Option Three 19
o Option Four 20
o Option Five 22

6. Workforce Issues 24

Part Three

7. Hearing your views 25

8. Appendices

e Staff profile and costs 27
* Definitions and acronyms 28
* References and supporting information 30
* Drop in consultation sessions 31
9. Response form 32

Mental Health Services in Argyll and Bute - redesign and modernisation




Summary

This consultation paper sets out proposals for change to mental
health services in Argyll and Bute, and invites you to respond with
your views.

In the following pages we have set out why change is needed, how we have
developed options for the future, who was involved in developing those options,
and the 5 options themselves. We have also described each option, and provided
comments about the benefits to patients and the disadvantages of each option.

There is a glossary of terms in Appendix Two at the back of this document.
A brief summary of the 5 options:

1. Minimal change - some minor changes to inpatient services at the Argyll and
Bute Hospital, some minor improvements in community based care.

2. Local services with inpatient care in Community Hospitals - improvements
in community based services, 7 days a week, some adult inpatient care in local
community hospitals, and intensive inpatient care either in a new 6 bed unit in
Lochgilphead or in a hospital of a neighbouring NHS Board.

3. Enhanced local community services and a single,
local inpatient unit in Lochgilphead -
improvements in community based services, 7 days a week, supported by a new,
flexible, adult inpatient facility based at Lochgilphead.

4. As option 3 plus day assessment and treatment service, and centre for
staff training - as above plus day assessment and treatment service, and a
centre for ongoing staff training and development.

5. Community based services with no local inpatient care - expanded and
enhanced community based services including specialist services to enable
people to remain in their own community. When admission to hospital is
unavoidable, it will be by arrangement with a hospital in a neighbouring
NHS Board.

The NHS Highland Board now wishes to hear the views of patients, carers and
local people on the options, and to hear any other suggestions or ideas about the
future of local mental health services.

Public Consultation




THIS CONSULTATION RUNS FROM 12 JANUARY 2009 TO 10 APRIL 2009.

For details of meetings and events please see the Argyll and Bute section of

the NHS Highland website:
http://www.nhshighland.scot.nhs.uk/CHP/ArgyllandBute/Pages/MentalHealthReview.aspx
Alternatively phone Fiona Broderick on 01546 604908.

There are some key questions on which NHS Highland is seeking your views:

Which option do you suggest best meets the needs of mental health service
users and carers, and why do you favour it?

« Option two would need to be modified to make it affordable. If you favour
option two how do you suggest it could be adapted to make it affordable?

+ Options three and four provide a balance of quality, safety, affordability, and
access to services, but we recognise that some service users have concerns
about local access to inpatient care. Do you have any suggestions that might
address these concerns?

Do you have other ideas or suggestions that have not been considered?

What points do you wish the NHS Highland Board to consider to strengthen the
case for the option you prefer?

At the back of this document there is a pull-out form with these
questions and space for you to record your views.

Services included in this consultation

This consultation is about Adult Mental Health services. It does not include the
following services which are being reviewed through other processes:

+ Addictions - Argyll and Bute Alcohol and Drug Action Team.

+ Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) - West of Scotland
CAMHS Planning Group and NHS Highland CAMHS Implementation Group.

« Dementia Care - Joint local authority/NHS Older Persons Service planning
process.

+ Learning Disability services - Joint local authority/NHS service development
group.

There is no change to arrangements for the highly specialised inpatient services
used by patients in Argyll and Bute:

+ High and Medium Secure care (Carstairs and Rowanbank).

+ Child and Adolescent Mental Health (Gartnavel and Yorkhill Hospitals).

+ Learning disability assessment and treatment (currently private sector).
+ Perinatal care (Glasgow).

Mental Health Services in Argyll and Bute - redesign and modernisation




Part One

1. BACKGROUND

1.1 About Argyll and Bute

Argyll and Bute has a population of over 90,000 spread across 10% of the area of
Scotland. It has more than 4,500 km of coastline, with mainland communities and
25 inhabited islands. It is the second largest council area in Scotland.

The Argyll and Bute population is expected to change over the next 25 years,
with fewer children and adults aged 16-65 and a large increase in the over 65
population. The young and adult population aged 16-65 is expected to decrease
by 17% over the next 25 years, and by 2031 one in four of the Argyll and Bute
population will be over 65.

Much of the economy of Argyll and Bute is serviced based, with the public sector
as the largest employer. The main industries are tourism, agriculture, aquaculture
and telecom related activities. The level of unemployment is lower than the
national average and the crime rate is half the national average.

1.2 Health, Wealth and Wellbeing in Argyll and Bute

According to recent public health reports on the health of people in
Argyll and Bute:

Argyll and Bute has alcohol-related deaths at 50% above the UK average,
which is similar to the rest of Scotland, and there are many alcohol related
health problems.

There are significant problems of drug misuse.

In 2004 it was estimated that the number of patients prescribed
anti-depressants was in line with the rest of Scotland.

Geography and transport cause problems for people in the area.

However:

Overall Argyll and Bute enjoys a healthier lifestyle than the rest of Scotland.
+ People live a little longer than Scotland generally.

“Argyll and Bute is not highly deprived compared to other local authority areas,
but there are still significant numbers of people in deprivation..... Houses with the
same postcode can be at opposite ends of the socio-economic spectrum. In many
rural areas deprived individuals and households are distributed throughout the
patch, with circumstances of deprivation having more to do with an individual's
characteristics than the area in which they live.”

Source: The health of the people of Helensburgh and Lomond 2007

Public Consultation




Current Services And
The Need For Change

2. CURRENT MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

2.1 Overview

The geography of Argyll and Bute creates a real challenge to providers of Mental
Health services - patients and communities are scattered widely across the rural,
remote, and island areas which have very limited transport links. Over the last

25 years some community mental health services have been developed and as a
result, there has been a much lower need for inpatient beds at the Argyll and Bute
Hospital. For example, in 1982 there were over 300 hospital beds in use, now there
are 70 (excluding dementia care).

2.2 NHS Services
Inpatient services
The Argyll and Bute Hospital at Lochgilphead provides:

Adult beds Dementia beds
26 Acute Admission beds 27 Dementia continuing care beds
12 Intensive Psychiatric Care beds 16 Dementia assessment beds

20 Continuing Care (mental illness) beds
12 Rehabilitation beds

Community services

Community Mental Health Teams are still developing. Most areas only have
Community Psychiatric Nursing (CPN) staff, social workers and support workers,
with visiting Medical and Clinical Psychology staff. Only one team has an
Occupational Therapist. Not all teams are together in shared workplaces, and
there are no formal joint team management arrangements although there is
much good joint working. There are no formal liaison services or crisis response
services.

Primary Care

There are no primary care mental health workers to support G.P.s and very few
Clinical Psychology staff. There are various voluntary sector schemes in some
communities, some local authority supported Link Clubs, and one Healthy Living
Centre on Bute. There is some mental health awareness work through the local
NHS Health Improvement Team and the “Choose Life"” suicide prevention initiative.

Mental Health Services in Argyll and Bute - redesign and modernisation




Part One

Current staff profile

The majority of mental health staff are based in the Argyll and Bute Hospital, and
there are relatively few in locality based community services. Appendix 1 presents
the current staff profile, and shows the split between hospital and community staff
at present, and under each option. Appendix 1 also presents a brief summary of
the how the budget is split between these two staff groups.

2.3 Local authority services
Social Work

There is a Service Manager (Mental Health) responsible for all mental health
services (excluding dementia) and Area Managers (Mental Health) supporting
fieldwork and project staff in Bute and Cowal, Helensburgh and Lomond,
Mid-Argyll and Kintyre, Oban, Lorn and the Islands. Staff within these teams are
based in the community providing a range of services e.qg. assessment and care
management. There is a social work community team which provides for service
users at the Argyll and Bute Hospital.

Mental Health Officer Service

The social work service provides a 24 Hour Mental Health Officer (MHO) Service to
all parts of the Council area except Helensburgh which is covered by the West of
Scotland “out of hours” standby service based in Glasgow.

Day Services

The current Day Care services are traditional in nature. These services could be
reviewed and updated so that they are focused on meeting the current needs of
people who would most benefit from day care support. There are currently day

care services in Dunoon, Mid-Argyll, Kintyre and Oban.

2.4 Services for Helensburgh and Lomond

The Argyll and Bute Community Health Partnership has a contract with NHS
Greater Glasgow and Clyde to provide inpatient and community services for the
Helensburgh and Lomond area. This provides for inpatient care at the Vale of
Leven Hospital and a Community Mental Health Team based in Helensburgh. The
provision of inpatient care at the Vale of Leven Hospital is the subject of recent
review and consultation by NHS Greater Glasgow and Clyde.

Public Consultation




Current Services And
The Need For Change

3. REVIEWING AND IMPROVING
LOCAL SERVICES

3.1 History

An extensive service review and work on developing options for the future has
been in progress in Argyll and Bute since 2007. This work has involved many local
service users, carers, NHS staff and colleagues from the Argyll and Bute Council,
all working together using a process called “service redesign” to plan mental
health services for the 21st Century.

This redesign project was set up because the existing local services were felt not
to be meeting the needs of local people. Two of the strong and clear messages
from service users and their carers have been that people want to have more
mental health staff working in their own communities, and they need a range of
services which will help people with different types of need.

3.2 Project aims

The review and redesign was led by the Argyll and Bute Community Health
Partnership (CHP) working closely with Argyll and Bute Council, and supported
by an external consultancy “Research and Development in Mental Health".
The process was in three phases. Phase one “needs assessment and local
engagement” and phase two “service option development and appraisal” are
complete. The third phase is this public consultation.

3.2.1 Phase One - Needs Assessment and Local Engagement

There have been many discussions over the last few years with staff, service
users and our communities about the future shape of mental health services. We
included these previous discussions in the current planning.

Up to date information on local services and future needs was gathered through
launch events and public drop-in events held across Argyll and Bute, along with
almost 50 individual interviews, service user and carer group meetings, staff
meetings, a Service User and Carer Questionnaire, and a G.P. questionnaire.
Inpatient data and community caseload data was gathered and analysed.

Mental Health Services in Argyll and Bute - redesign and modernisation




Part One

People told us what is most important to them:

Services to be as local to people’s communities as is safe and achievable

Seven day a week community mental health services

Crisis response, ideally including home based treatment both to prevent
admission and to facilitate discharge from hospital

Development of services across the range of mental health needs, e.g. from
promoting health and wellbeing, through support for people with mild/
moderate conditions (primary care), and for people with more severe and
enduring problems (community mental health teams)

Development of psychological therapies service, including “talking therapies”
and creative therapies

Services and agencies to work together better, more joined-up working

NHS community mental health staff and social work staff to be working and
based together

Develop stronger links with other services in the communities

+ Use full potential of the voluntary sector, particularly befriending and buddying,
and explore the role of peer support

Adequate support and help for carers

Continuing development of service user involvement in all aspects of planning
and reviewing services

A single point of access for people to the mental health services

Recovery focus to be the basis of all services

Access to inpatient care when needed

Reqular staff training to keep people up to date

Services for the Helensburgh and Lomond area must follow the same principles
and aims as the rest of Argyll and Bute (services provided by NHS Greater
Glasgow and Clyde)

+ Services must be cost effective

Public Consultation




Current Services And
The Need For Change

3.2.2 Phase Two - Options development and appraisal

The information gathered was used to give a perspective of service needs for the
future. These were developed further through a Service User and Carer Event in
June 2008. This was followed in July 2008 by a series of workshops to develop
service options. From this, five options were drawn up and put through an options
appraisal process during August and September 2008. This too involved service
users, carers, staff and other stakeholders. From this work, options two and four
emerged as those most favoured.

The appraisal was based on a number of “quality of service” criteria, and did not
include information about the cost or affordability of the options. Since then,
further work has been done to estimate the cost of each option so that local
people and the NHS Board are clear about the financial implications of decisions
about the future shape of services.

3.2.3 Phase Three - Public Consultation

Financial assessment of the options shows that most of them are affordable as
they would cost almost the same as the current services. Option two would cost
almost £2m more every year than current mental health services, so it is not
affordable unless money is redirected from other local health services. The NHS
Highland Board is keen therefore to set out all the options for wider consultation,
and to hear views on any of these, along with any other suggestions which may
not have been considered.

This public consultation document sets out for further discussion the five options,
and aims to encourage informed debate about how to achieve the best possible
range of services within the various requirements, opportunities and constraints.

Mental Health Services in Argyll and Bute - redesign and modernisation




4. MODERN MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

4.1 General trends

In the UK, and internationally, a modern mental health service

has the following features:

* More care in the community, fewer admissions to hospital

+ Hospital admissions only for people experiencing more severe and enduring
mental health problems

+ Shorter lengths of stay when admission is necessary

+ Long term care through community services, or in a Care Home if care at home
is no longer possible

+ Expanded community mental health teams - broader mix of staff and skills

+ More help available through G.P. practices and locally based teams

« Arrangements for responding to people in crisis

+ Targeted work with people who do not actively engage with the service

« Early intervention and support

4.2 National policy - leading to change

“Delivering for Health” was published in 2005 by the Scottish Government and set
out clear objectives including an aim to improve the health - and mental health - of
Scottish people. It demands a greater and wider effort on improving health and
well being through preventative measures, support for self care and a targeting of
resources on those at greater risk.

Following this, “Delivering for Mental Health” was published in 2006. It set out a
range of national targets for services, and stated a number of commitments for
change. The report emphasised that services cannot be targeted exclusively to
address severe and enduring mental illnesses but must address in some manner
the needs of people with any condition. The national focus has been further
reinforced by "“Rights, Relationships and Recovery”, the national review of mental
health nursing and ‘With Inclusion in Mind" a framework document which sets out
the Local Authorities' duties and responsibilities under the Mental Health (Care
and Treatment) (Scotland) Act 2003, Sections 25-31. The aim is to prevent and
treat illness and to promote health and wellbeing. There is a strong emphasis on
reducing social exclusion, promoting recovery, and tackling stigma.

The expectations are:

- Improved anticipation of the care needs of people who experience mental illness

- Increased mental health services for those living in the community particularly
the most disadvantaged communities

Public Consultation




Current Services And
The Need For Change

- Increased resources and support for self care
- Better use of inpatient services, and crisis services to prevent admission
- Full utilisation of staff skills to improve care

4.3 Modernising services in Argyll and Bute

4.3.1 Does anything need to change?

Feedback from patients and carers tells us very clearly that the clinical and
personal needs of people are not being adequately met by the current services,
despite the best efforts of all. The current services are under pressure trying to
meet the demand for safe and comprehensive care for those with severe mental
health conditions as well as for those with moderate or intermittent problems.

At the same time there is demand for better community services because people
want to be cared for within their local community. Other changes in society also
have an effect, for example there are increasing levels of depression, anxiety and
stress. Treatment options have also expanded within the field of mental health.
For example, some forms of psychological therapy are proven to be effective, and
need to be offered more readily across Argyll and Bute.

There is much excellent community focussed work in place across Argyll and Bute.
However, the ability to develop this further is greatly limited by the fact that so
much resource (staff and money) is committed to running the Argyll and Bute
Hospital.

4.3.2 Looking back in time

Patients receiving care in hospital are housed in a very old building (100+ years)
that was built for very different purposes. The Argyll and Bute Hospital dates back
to a time when people with mental health problems were placed into institutions,
and isolated far from other people. Today, even the best efforts of the dedicated
and caring hospital staff cannot overcome the very obvious inadequacies of the
clinical facilities. Our patients should have suitable private, safe space and areas
that are both restful and therapeutic.

4.3.3 Looking forward

There is much support and commitment to modernise services across Argyll and
Bute, and agreement from staff, service users, carers and others about the urgent
need to make progress now.

Mental Health Services in Argyll and Bute - redesign and modernisation




Part Two

5. OPTIONS DEVELOPMENT AND APPRAISAL

The extensive work with service users, carers, partners and local mental health
staff led to the development of 5 options for the future. The options were then
considered against a list of quality criteria to test out how well each of them would
meet the aims and requirements described earlier in this paper (i.e. the “non
financial” benefits).

Following this, further work was done to estimate the financial costs of each
option, and to compare these to the existing budgets for mental health services.
Decisions about public services need to be informed by a sound understanding of
both the non financial and financial criteria in order to achieve the best outcome
for local people within the available resources. Current NHS expenditure on mental
health care in Argyll and Bute is £13.6m per annum.

The next section describes each of the options and the benefits and weaknesses
identified through the option appraisal process, followed by the financial
implications, followed by an assessment of each option by NHS Highland.

5.1 Option One - Minimal Change

Summary - This option keeps the current services much as they are, with only a
few, small changes.

5.1.1 Primary and Community Based Care

Train a group of community volunteers in "guided self-help” to enable them to
work with and support people with mild depression.

+ No significant change or expansion within G.P. and community based NHS
services. Local health care teams would continue to treat mainly people with
severe and enduring conditions who are at risk of admission.

Provide additional training for staff to provide treatment for people with mild/
moderate mental health issues.

Existing Day Care and support services such as the Link Clubs and local
mental health community projects would be reviewed to ensure they focus

on promoting wellbeing and independence, and to ensure they are reaching
people who might not otherwise seek out this type of service.

5.1.2 Hospital services

+ General inpatient beds would remain in the Argyll and Bute Hospital.
+ The specialist inpatient rehabilitation unit would stay at Argyll and Bute
Hospital.

Public Consultation




Developing Options For The Future

+ The continuing care ward (Arran) would remain in the short term, while staff
support patients and carers to find alternative ongoing care in a more homely
setting, in their own home, in very supported housing, or, if not possible, in a
Care Home.

Bed numbers would make it possible to adapt the existing wards, and to
consider amalgamating some, and making some minor improvements to the
environment and facilities.
Proposed bed numbers:

o Acute and rehabilitation: between 20-26

o Intensive care: 6

o Dementia assessment: 10

5.1.3 Advantages

Continuity of care for existing patients
+ Minimal change for the workforce
Affordable

5.1.4 Disadvantages

* No service developments in primary care
Very limited development of community services
Does not bring services closer to patients’ own communities
Does not strengthen integrated working across health and social services
Little expansion of primary care management of mild/moderate conditions
Does not meet national policy
Does not meet local (community and staff) expectations of service

« Continues to focus on hospital care at expense of community services
Continues to provide hospital care in buildings which are not fit for purpose.

5.1.5 Financial implications

The service changes being considered under option 1should be achievable within
the existing revenue budget for mental health services of £13.6m (see Appendix
1). The capital cost of improvements to bring the Argyll and Bute hospital into
reasonable condition is estimated at over £10m.

5.1.6 NHS Highland Assessment of Option 1

The NHS Highland Board is aware that service users, carers, staff and other
partners involved in developing and appraising the options did not consider this
option to have any merit.

The Board considers this option unacceptable. It does not provide any significant
improvement in services to patients.

Mental Health Services in Argyll and Bute - redesign and modernisation




Part Two

5.2 Option Two - Local services, including inpatient services in
Community Hospitals.

Summary - This option has developments in primary care and community care
services. Inpatient beds would be available in five of the local community hospitals,
and more specialist psychiatric intensive care services in either a new 6 bed unit
in Lochgilphead, or provided outside Argyll and Bute by another NHS provider. The
costs of this option make it unaffordable in its present form.

5.2.1 Primary and Community based Care

Train a group of community volunteers in “guided self-help” to enable them to
work with and support people with mild depression.

Provide additional training for staff to provide treatment for people with mild/
moderate mental health issues.

New specialist primary mental health workers working closely with individuals
experiencing distress from mild mental health problems, and guiding /
supporting G.P.s, other health professionals and staff in voluntary organisations.
Existing Day Care and support services such as the Link Clubs and local

mental health community projects would be reviewed to ensure they focus on
promoting wellbeing and independence, and to ensure they are reaching people
who might not otherwise seek out this type of service.

5.2.2 Community Mental Health Teams (CMHTS)

Would be put in place in all localities, with a range of professional staff
operating a core service Monday to Friday, with an “out of hours" crisis
response service operating 7 days.

These teams would provide full community mental health services to service
users, carers and families in partnership with other agencies and primary care.
They would help people in crisis, support them at home, provide rehabilitation,
medicine management, and psychological therapies.

5.2.3 Hospital services

Between 4-6 inpatient beds would be provided for acute admissions within the
community hospitals in Bute, Campbeltown, Dunoon, and Lochgilphead, and in
the Lorn and Isles Rural General Hospital in Oban.

+ Onlslay an area of the hospital would be designated for acute assessment and
short term care, prior to transferring the patient to acute inpatient care. A
similar arrangement may also be possible on Mull.

Public Consultation




Developing Options For The Future

The Argyll and Bute Hospital in Lochgilphead would close. There would be 6
psychiatric intensive care beds provided either in a new facility in Lochgilphead,
or provided outside Argyll and Bute by another NHS Board.

Staff would support patients in Arran Ward and their carers to find alternative
ongoing care in a more homely setting, in their own home, in very supported
housing, or, if not possible, in a Care Home.

5.2.4 Advantages

Local, responsive, team based care

Services close to home, including hospital inpatient care

Integrated services - supports team working between staff of different
services / agencies

Enhanced primary care services

Provides "“out of hours” crisis response service - 7 days

Expanding and enhancing local Community Mental Health Teams will lower
waiting times for treatments, and provide more psychological therapies
Local beds for acute admissions, provide quick and responsive inpatient
treatment

5.2.5 Disadvantages

No specialist inpatient service e.g. rehabilitation, intensive psychotherapy
Intensive care beds would be isolated from other inpatient beds (which would
be located either in a new build in Lochgilphead, or outwith the area).

Service users may be unable to be admitted to the nearest hospital if local beds
are full, and may need to travel outside local area

Dispersal of clinical expertise - current hospital clinical staff would be relocated
across Argyll and Bute, and would lose professional peer support

Small inpatient units would be prone to peaks and troughs in use, so would be
inefficient use of staff and other resources

Small units would offer staff fairly limited scope for professional clinical
practice, and it may be difficult to retain staff, and to recruit new staff in future
High cost involved in providing hospital based staff to cover all shifts safely
across the 5 local community hospitals

Each community hospital with mental health beds would need either a new
build extension or significant modernisation of existing facilities

Investment in buildings would limit the amount of investment available for
community staff and services

This option is not affordable in its present form

Mental Health Services in Argyll and Bute - redesign and modernisation




Part Two

5.2.6 Financial Implications

This option would require substantial additional investment. The full costing
indicates that annual running costs would be in the region of £15.7m per annum,
which is £2m more than the current service. This reflects the very high cost of
running five small inpatient units each with its own dedicated 24/7 staff team
whilst also providing a full range of local, community services (see Appendix 1).
Building costs are estimated at almost £5m (£4,820,000).

5.2.7 NHS Highland Assessment of Option 2

The NHS Highland Board is aware that this option is very popular with the service
users and carers involved in the options development and appraisal process. It
would deliver some of what people defined as important to them - as listed in
paragraph 3.2.1.

Although local staff welcome the improvements in joint team working, the
clinicians have strong reservations about the sustainability and clinical safety of
small units within community hospitals. They have a concern about the ability to
provide a clinically safe care environment which would meet the needs of the wide
range and mix of patients. The dispersal of hospital staff to small units on five
sites would give much less flexibility to cope with changes in demand. This could
result in people being unable to be admitted in their own locality. Although this
option has good potential to integrate hospital and community based staff, the
existing hospital staff feel they would become isolated from peers and colleagues
in the other locations.

The costs of this option are significantly more than the existing services. This
means it is not affordable. This option needs to be modified to become affordable,
or resources would have to be taken from other local health services and
redirected into mental health care.

The Board is keen to hear suggestions about how this option might be adapted
in order to achieve a balance between the expressed wishes of patients, and the
Board's legal duties and other obligations to provide services which are safe,
effective, sustainable and affordable.

We therefore wish to use this consultation to hear ideas and suggestions from
service users, carers and other people about what is most important in this option,
and what could be changed to make it achievable.

Public Consultation




Developing Options For The Future

5.3 Option Three - Enhanced community services with a single, local
inpatient unit.

Summary - Significant developments in primary and community care services,
with a single, specialist inpatient mental health unit in Lochgilphead.

5.3.1 Primary and Community based Care
+ Same as for Option Two

5.3.2 Community Mental Health Teams
+ Same as for Option Two

5.3.3 Hospital Services

« There would be one hospital site probably in Lochgilphead which would include
the following hospital beds:
o Acute and rehabilitation: between 20-26
o Intensive care: 6
o Dementia assessment: 10
+ The design aims would be to offer therapeutic interventions that meet people’s
needs, in a purpose built unit, offering a modern environment, with domestic
and independent living areas.
« Staff would support patients in Arran Ward and their carers to find alternative
ongoing care in a more homely setting, in their own home, in very supported
housing, or, if not possible, in a Care Home.

5.3.4 Advantages

* Local responsive, team based care

+ Enhanced primary care services - close to home

+ Integrated services - supports team working between staff of different
services / agencies

« Provides "out of hours"” crisis response service - 7 days

+ Expanding and enhancing local Community Mental Health Teams will lower
waiting times for treatments, and provide more psychological therapies

+ Specialist dedicated inpatient unit, providing flexible services - acute,
rehabilitation, and intensive care

+ Creates local base for ongoing staff training

+ The service would cost broadly the same as the existing, so is affordable

Mental Health Services in Argyll and Bute - redesign and modernisation




Part Two

5.3.5 Disadvantages

+ As at present, some inpatients will be at a distance from home, and may feel
isolated from family and friends

+ As at present, some family and friends will have to travel to visit people in hospital

+ May retain the identity of the existing hospital, and not provide real momentum
for change

5.3.6 Financial Implications

A smaller central in-patient facility in Lochgilphead would have lower running
costs than the current Argyll and Bute Hospital. This will enable increased
investment in community services. The full costing of this option has indicated
that annual running costs will be in the region of £13.7m per annum, so with minor
adjustments, it is affordable (see Appendix 1). There will be significant building
costs of £8.69m to build a new facility to replace the Argyll and Bute Hospital.

5.3.7 NHS Highland Assessment of Option 3

This has most of the benefits for patients of Option Two. Having a single inpatient
unit would overcome the concerns of the professional staff, and maintains a
viable and cost effective hospital based clinical team. The Board recognises the
implications for patients, family and friends of having to travel for inpatient care.
However, the developments in primary and community based services will help to
keep many more people at home than is possible at present.

5.4 Option Four - as for Option Three, but also including Specialist Day
Assessment and Treatment Service, and centre for staff training

Summary - This is a variation of option three. It includes two additional functions
- an assessment and day treatment service where people who may be facing
admission to hospital can be assessed, and can have formal individual and group
therapies, plus an education centre for staff training, and to support ongoing
clinical staff development.

5.4.1 Primary and Community based Care
+ As for Options Two and Three

5.4.2 Community Mental Health Teams

+ As for Options Two and Three

5.4.3 Hospital Services

« As for Option Three

Public Consultation




Developing Options For The Future

5.4.4 Specialist Day Service and Education Centre

+ A specialist day assessment and treatment service, and an education centre
would be developed alongside the inpatient service.

+ It would be a focus for very specialist psychological therapies for groups and
individuals (“talking therapies")

+ People living at a distance from the day service would have homely
accommodation if needed for overnight stays, e.g. local B & Bs, hotels.

+ Patients’ travel and accommodation costs would be covered by the Highlands
and Islands Travel Scheme.

« The Centre for staff training would be a permanent, local base for staff
development and training of NHS staff and colleagues in other partner agencies.

5.4.5 Advantages

As for Option Three, plus -

« Specialist day assessment and treatment, avoids unnecessary admission to
hospital

+ Dedicated support for ongoing staff learning and training promotes multi agency
team learning and development.

« A focus on learning encourages the ongoing development of clinical expertise
and practice, and will promote high quality care

+ Promotes ongoing learning for “generalist” health staff - such as G.P.s, health
visitors, and community nurses - who are supporting many people with mental
health problems

* The support for staff learning should encourage recruitment in future years,
helping to sustain local services in the longer term.

5.4.6 Disadvantages

As for Option Three plus -

+ Some resources would have to be shifted from developments in community
based services in order to fund the day treatment service and education centre

+ Some people using day services will need to travel from home and stay in
overnight accommodation

5.4.7 Financial Implications

Annual running costs for this option will be in the region of £13.9m per annum.

With some adjustments, it could be affordable (see Appendix 1). As with option

3, there will be significant building costs, £9.59m to replace the Argyll and Bute
Hospital.

Mental Health Services in Argyll and Bute - redesign and modernisation




Part Two

5.4.8 NHS Highland Assessment of Option 4

In addition to our comments on Option Three, the Board welcomes the inclusion
of a range of day services for people with moderate or more severe conditions.
Helping people to stay out of hospital gives individuals a greater degree of
independence, and can be an important step in assisting people to return home
more quickly.

The Board also welcomes the inclusion of the staff learning and training centre.
Although this has a financial cost, we recognise that staff training is essential

to the ability to provide high quality professional treatments and care. The
emphasis on multi agency training and development is very positive for patients
- joint training is an effective way of helping staff of different backgrounds and
disciplines to work well together.

Overall, option 4 has much in its favour. It meets most of the expressed needs and
wishes of service users and carers, and it supports the clinical and other staff to
continue developing and improving practice.

5.5 Option Five - Intensive Community based services,
with no inpatient facility in Argyll and Bute

Summary - The aim of this option is to provide a wide range of care for people in
their own home or their own community so that relatively few people would need
in-patient treatment. It includes extended development of the community mental
health teams. There would be no mental health inpatient beds within Argyll and
Bute. People requiring hospital treatment would be referred out of the area.

5.5.1 Primary and Community based Care
+ Same as for options two, three and four

5.5.2 Community Mental Health Teams
« As for options two, three and four plus
« Specific role to support people in crisis, supporting people at home

5.5.3 Hospital Services

« When admission is required this would be to a hospital outside of the area. The
Argyll and Bute Hospital in Lochgilphead would close.

+ In crisis, initial assessment and treatment may include short term care at a
community hospital whilst awaiting transfer to an acute hospital.

+ Staff would support patients in Arran Ward and their carers to find alternative
ongoing care in a more homely setting, in their own home, in very supported
housing, or, if not possible, in a Care Home.

Public Consultation




Developing Options For The Future

5.5.4 Advantages

+ Emphasis on treating people in their own community, including people with
severe and enduring conditions

+ Expanding and enhancing community mental health teams will lower waiting
times, provide more psychological therapies, and other professional support

« Enhanced primary care services

+ Significant developments in community teams

« Provides "out of hours" crisis response service - 7 days

+ This would provide a unique opportunity for staff (including students / staff in
training) to develop advanced skills and expertise in community based mental
health care.

5.5.5 Disadvantages

+ Service users requiring admission would have to go out of Argyll and Bute

+ This would mean all patients who need admission, their carers, relatives
and visitors would have to travel to inpatient services, sometimes over long
distances (by road, ferry, '‘plane)

+ Total break in continuity of care between community team and inpatient staff

+ Increased risk of communication failures between staff groups

+ Risk of increasing the readmission rate because admissions are likely to be
short stay

+ Distance to acute hospital site will mean delays in reaching care

« Would rely on staff and carers’ ability to manage and support individuals to
remain at home

+ Significant implications for G.P.s involved in "“out of hours” medical cover

5.5.6 Financial Implications

Significant savings would be made from the closure of the Argyll and Bute
Hospital. These savings would be re-invested in community services and on the
purchase of inpatient beds from a neighbouring NHS Board. The full costing of this
option indicates annual costs in the region of £13.5m. This is close to the current
costs, so it is affordable. There would be building costs of £2.25m. (see Appendix 1)

5.5.7 NHS Highland Assessment of Option 5

In common with options two, three and four, this option has the benefits of
developing and expanding local mental health teams. However, the Board is aware
that local people and clinical staff have expressed real concern at the implications
of having no locally based acute inpatient service. This would have the greatest
impact on people who are very unwell.

Mental Health Services in Argyll and Bute - redesign and modernisation




Developing Options

Pa rt TWO For The Future

Local staff expressed a number of concerns about the loss of continuity of care if
people were receiving hospital care outwith Argyll and Bute. There is a risk that
communication between clinical staff would be more difficult and less effective
for the patient. There is also a concern that this may create a reluctance to admit
patients who require intensive, inpatient care, and that staff may take a higher
degree of clinical risk by attempting to treat and support people in the community
when this is not appropriate.

Contracting with another NHS Board for hospital care also introduces a degree of
financial risk. The costs per admission may be higher than at present. Generally,
a contract of this sort allows limited flexibility, e.qg. to alter the service in light of
experience, or feedback from service users.

By splitting hospital services to another NHS Board, this option does not provide
the fully integrated, team based approach which service users and staff wish to
achieve. In view of this, the Board does not favour option five.

6. Workforce Issues

Our ability to provide local people with good, safe, effective care is very dependent
on our ability to retain and recruit the staff needed to provide care. It is very clear
that bringing change to mental health services in Argyll and Bute will have huge
implications for the staff involved. In addition to the duties of NHS Highland to
patients and service users, we also have legal and moral responsibilities for our
staff.

Approximately 200 staff are likely to be affected by change in mental health
services in Argyll and Bute. Depending on the option selected for implementation,
the greater the dispersal of staff required, the greater the challenges. There
already exists an Organisational Change Group within the Argyll and Bute mental
health service, with responsibility for overseeing and advising on the impact of
change on the workforce.

Once the future shape of local services has been determined, a detailed
programme of work will take place with staff and their representatives to manage
the impact of the change. This will be done in accordance with national and NHS
Highland Organisational Change policies. Staff and their representatives will be
involved in meetings to explore the potential implications, and the opportunities
associated with redeployment.

Public Consultation




Part Three {&ing

7. Getting involved

NHS Highland wants to hear your views on the options in this consultation
document, and to hear any additional ideas or suggestions which will help to
shape the future of local mental health services. There is a tear out section at the
back which you can use to record your views, and return to the FREEPOST address
given. You may prefer to respond by email using the dedicated consultation
emailbox. Details on the response form.

In addition, there will be many opportunities for you to meet local NHS staff in
order to discuss these proposals more fully. Watch out for:

* Press releases in local papers, along with public notices advertising local
meetings and road shows.

+ Webpage - check the NHS Highland CHP project webpage for up to date
information and copies of newsletters http://www.nhshighland.scot.nhs.uk/CHP/
ArgyllandBute/Pages/MentalHealthReview.aspx

* Newsletter - the monthly project newsletter will continue to be produced and
distributed widely to community groups. To add your name to the distribution
list, contact Fiona Broderick on 01546 604908.

« Posters/Flyers/mailings - Events information will be sent to the key community
councils/ groups, voluntary organisations and other interested parties.

« Argyll and Bute Public Partnership Forum (PPF) - members will be kept informed
and encouraged to spread the word around their networks so that as many
people as possible participate in the consultation.

+ ACUMEN, Mental Health Forums, and local health forums have supported the
service user and carer involvement throughout phases 1and 2. We will continue
to link through these networks to circulate information to their members.

+ Community meetings and Road Show Events - discussion and consultation
events will be held in key locations across each of the localities. Wherever
possible we will also respond to invitations from community councils, community
groups and voluntary groups to join your meetings for discussion and feedback.

Mental Health Services in Argyll and Bute - redesign and modernisation




Part Three ‘g

« Staff Briefings/Meetings - staff meetings will be arranged to ensure health
and local authority staff/members are fully briefed and involved and given
opportunities to respond to the consultation.

What happens after the consultation?

All feedback received during the public consultation period will inform the
development of a final set of proposals and recommendations by the Argyll and
Bute Community Health Partnership (CHP). The NHS Highland Board will then
consider the recommendations of the CHP and the report of public feedback, and
make a decision about the future shape of services. Depending on the outcome of
that, and if the Scottish Government considers the proposals to be “major service
change”, they will be submitted to the Cabinet Secretary for Health and Wellbeing
for a final decision.

Once the final outcome is known, it will be communicated widely through the
Newsletter (for details see list above), and through local newspapers.

When will we see progress?

Once a decision is made, planning for implementation will start during 2009. An
Implementation Plan will be produced describing the steps in the process to bring
about change. Introducing change to local services is likely to take 2 - 3 years,
depending on the final decision, and possibly longer depending on the amount and
type of building work required.

Public Consultation




Appendix One

1. Staff profile

All figures relating to staff numbers are expressed as whole time equivalents, not
by head count. Numbers have been rounded for ease of reference.

Current Services

Hospital services 198
Community services 43
Total 241
Option Option Option Option | Option
One Two Three Four Five
Hospital 198 176 131 134 38
services
Community | 43 86 83 83 108
services
Total 241 262 214 217 146

2. Service Costs
All figures relating to the costs of services have been rounded to
the nearest £100,000.

Current Services

Hospital services 9.261Im
Community services 4.342m
Total £13.603m
Option Option Option Option | Option
One Two Three Four Five
Hospital 9.26lm | 9.318m | 7.619m 7.837Tm |5.683m
services
Community  4.342m | 6.393m | 6.038m | 6.038m | 7.865m
services
Total 13.603m 15.711m | 13.657m | 13.875m 13.549m
3. Buildings costs (outline costs)
Option Option Option Option | Option
One Two Three Four Five
10m 4.8m 8.69m 9.59m 2.25m

Mental Health Services in Argyll and Bute - redesign and modernisation




Appendix Two

Definitions and acronyms

The following list includes terms used in this document, and some other terms
which you may hear during the consultation period.

ACUMEN Argyll and Clyde United in Mental Health - a service user and carer led network
Assertive Targeted at people do not actively engage with services, to

Outreach support them to maintain contact with care and treatment

Befriending An informal, normally voluntary, role where two people agree to

and buddying

spend time together in a supportive friendship - sometimes of mutual benefit

Carer Someone who looks after or supports a person with a health condition
CHP Community Health Partnership - part of the NHS Board
Community Mental health team based in the community with a range of

Mental Health
Team

different staff caring for people with more serious mental health
conditions at home.

Complex People who have multiple conditions, or other complex needs but
needs in the who are able to be cared for at home

community

CPN Community Psychiatric Nurse

Crisis Service

Service to help people in crisis and where possible to avoid the need for them
to go into hospital

Day Care Service

Structured support, either individually or in small groups, to offer activity and
purpose to a person’'s day

Dementia

A chronic confusional state

Early Intervention

Service aimed at identifying and treating mental health conditions, or changes
in the condition at a early stage, particularly psychosis

G.P. General Practitioner - the family doctor.

Holistic care Understanding and responding to the broad range of someone’'s needs, e.q.
their health, housing, and community support

Inclusion Means promoting a person's wellbeing and social development, and tackling
issues that cause social exclusion, e.g. poverty and other forms of disadvantage

IPCU Intensive Psychiatric Care Unit; a hospital unit for people who are acutely

unwell, and whose needs cannot be met safely in an open ward e.g. people
who are very disturbed or aggressive, people who are likely to abscond from
treatment and care.

Public Consultation



Appendix Two

Link Clubs Local service user run organisations providing support for people with mental
health problems.
Long stay Care in a residential setting for people who cannot be cared for in their

continuing care

own home

MHO - Mental
Health Officer
Status

An MHO is a social worker with additional training, experience and skills to work
with people with mental health conditions

Option
development
and appraisal

Formal, structured process for developing services and assessing them
objectively. A requirement of the Scottish Government.

Peer Support

Support given between two people where they both have had a similar or
complementary experience

Primary Care

Normally this is the first contact of people with the health system, e.g. G.P,
pharmacist, dentist.

Psychological

A range of psychological treatments, based on two main traditions -

therapies psychotherapy and counselling. Includes cognitive behaviour therapy (CBT),
cognitive analytic therapy (CAT) and dialectical behaviour therapy (DBT)
Public A group of local people who have an interest in health and health services, and

Partnership
Forum (PPF)

who get involved in many, different ways

Recovery

In relation to mental health, this means people regaining at least some degree
of control of their lives, helping them to achieve a meaningful life, and a
positive sense of belonging in their communities

Rehabilitation

A process to help people be as independent as they can be e.g. by learning day
to day life skills which improve confidence and coping.

Service
integration

Different organisation and services being run and managed together

Service User

Someone who uses a service

Severe and
enduring mental
health conditions

Conditions which have long term, serious impacts on people’s lives

Talking therapies

A range of treatments based on talking with a counsellor or psychotherapist,
generally for mild to moderate mental health conditions.

Voluntary or
Third Sector

voluntary and community groups and organisations

Mental Health Services in Argyll and Bute - redesign and modernisation




References and supporting information

National documents

1.

8.

Delivering for Health. Scottish Executive 2005.
Delivering for Mental Health. Scottish Executive 2006.

Delivering for Health: Delivering for Mental Health National Standards for
Crisis Services. Scottish Executive 2006.

With Inclusion in Mind: The local authority's role in promoting wellbeing and
social development: Mental Health (Care and Treatment) (Scotland) Act 2003
Sections 25-31. Scottish executive 2007.

Scottish National Benchmarking Project. Report 2. Scottish Executive 2008.

National Programme to Improve the Mental Health and Well Being of the
Scottish Population. Scottish Executive 2001.

Choose Life: A National Strategy and Action Plan to Prevent Suicide in
Scotland. Scottish Executive 2002.

"See Me" campaign. Scottish Executive 2005.

Local Documents

9.

10.

1n.

12.

13.

A New Vision for Mental Health Services - Building on our Experience. Argyll
and Bute Community Health Partnership 2007.

The Redesign and Modernisation of Mental Health Services in Argyll and Bute.
Argyll and Bute CHP 2008.

The Redesign and Modernisation of Mental Health Services in Argyll and
Bute, supplementary appendixes of project and analysis. Argyll and Bute CHP,
2008.

Population review of Argyll and Bute CHP. Argyll and Bute CHP 2008 and Bed
reduction analysis Argyll and Bute CHP 2008.

The Health of the people of Helensburgh and Lomond. Needs assessment
report, Argyll and Bute CHP 2007.

Public Consultation




Appendix Four

PUBLIC CONSULTATION - MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

IN ARGYLL AND BUTE, January to April 2009.

PUBLIC DROP IN SESSIONS, 2009

LOCATION DATE DETAILS
Oban Wednesday 15.00 - 19.30
Corran Halls 28 January

Isle of Mull Thursday 15.00 - 19.30
Craignure Hall 29 January

Isle of Islay Tuesday 15.00 - 19.00
Bowmore Hall 03 February

Campbeltown Tuesday 15.00 -19.30
Campbeltown Community Centre 10 February

Rothesay Friday 15.00 - 17.00
Moat Centre 13 February

Dunoon Monday 15.00 -19.30
Queens Hall 16 February

Lochgilphead Thursday 15.00 -19.30
Lochgilphead Community Centre 19 February

Helensburgh Tuesday 15.00 -19.30

Victoria Halls

24 February

Mental Health Services in Argyll and Bute - redesign and modernisation




Page 100

Argvll
%}?B%}t/e

COUNCIL

Argyll and Bute MH Consultation

FREEPOST RLUC - KBCH - KKHC

NHS Highland, Assynt House, Beechwood Park,
Inverness 1V2 3BW

E-mail us at: nhshighland.abmh®nhs.net

If you would like this information in a different language or
format (E.g. large print or audio cassette) or to know
details of consultation events in your area please contact
01546 604908




Page 101 Agenda ltem 9

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL EXECUTIVE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S UNIT 19 MARCH 2009

DRAFT EQUALITY SCHEME

1. SUMMARY

This paper outlines a revised approach to meeting the Council’s
equality duties and recommends that a new Draft Scheme (attached) is
circulated for consultation. The new approach includes some actions
to be undertaken corporately when previously they were undertaken by
individual services.

2. RECOMMENDATION

i. SMT recommends that the draft Equality Scheme (Appendix 1)
goes out for consultation

ii. Executive agrees to the proposed corporate approach

iii. Executive agrees to monitor the Equality Scheme via a scorecard
and where appropriate refer elements to the PPG Social Affairs or
PPG Organisational Development

iv. Executive notes the Advice from the Equality and Human Rights
Commission regarding Equality Impact Assessments (App. 2).

DETAIL
3.1  Background

The current Equality and Diversity Scheme incorporated the Schemes
for Race, Disability and Gender. Each of these equality duties
operates to a different timescale due to the timetables dictated by
previous individual equality commissions.

The commissions for Race, Disability and Equal Opportunity have been
replaced by a single Commission for Equality and Human Rights that
was set up on 1 October 2007. The Commission has produced a
single Equality and Diversity Scheme and has recommended that
single equality schemes can be produced as long as actions are
‘levelled up” so that all equality strands meet the highest requirements
of any one equality strand.

The Council’s current Equality and Diversity Scheme has been revised
to align the action plans that were previously separate. A single Action
Plan makes sense as there are actions that have an impact on people

in terms of gender and race and disability.

The Single Equality Scheme will also ensure alignment with the
Council’'s Corporate Plan and with Service Plans. Services have



3.2

Page 102

reviewed their actions and updated the Equality Scheme Action Plan
accordingly.

New Approach
Our objectives are to:

e ensure equality in the development and delivery of our services

¢ to be an equal opportunities employer

e have strong leadership — equality is one of the competencies of the
Argyll and Bute Manager

e improve service delivery

e improve community engagement

e focus on outcomes.

The corporate lead for equalities lies with the Chief Executive’s Unit.
Each Strategic Director has specific responsibility for equalities within
their department’s area of responsibility. There are actions that are
best suited to being carried out corporately, eg translation and
interpretation, producing publications in easy read formats. By doing
this corporately, we will improve our communication with our customers
and also be able to keep track of demand for these services.

Equality training needs to have a corporate approach. The
competency training being developed for the Argyll and Bute Manager
will include equality. There are actions in the plan for equality training
for employees at all levels and elected Members as it is essential that
everyone understands their responsibilities in terms of equality. In
addition to tutor-led development work, there will be a re-launch of the
e-learning resource in April. Both managers and employees will be
encouraged, and expected, to work through the e-learning materials.
The courses will include:

e Age: Realising the benefits of an age diverse
workforce

¢ Disability Confident: Working with disabled customers and
colleagues

e Gender Matters: Creating an inclusive workplace for both
women and men

¢ Religion and Belief: Respecting and accommodating faith and belief
in the workplace

e Sexual Orientation: Respecting lesbian, gay and bisexual people in
the work place

e The Diversity Challenge: Maximising the potential of our diverse
workforce.

We need to improve the way in which we engage with communities.
The new CPP Community Engagement strategy will apply to the way in
which the Council involves seldom heard groups to help improve



3.2

3.3

Page 103

services. This includes disabled people, young, old, people from
different ethnic groups, as well as other under-represented groups.

Services are required to carry out Equality Impact Assessments of
policies (new and when reviewed), functions and projects, to identify
any potential adverse impact and take action to avoid this. An Advice
Note produced by the Equality and Human Rights Commission
(Appendix 2) outlines two cases to demonstrate the importance of
carrying out Equality Impact Assessments. This should be noted.

There is a dual role for communication. The messages about equality
need to be communicated internally but we also need to ensure that we
communicate effectively with our customers and partners. There are
actions in the Equality Scheme to address this.

Consultation about the Equality Scheme

In addition to going onto the Council’s website, the draft Scheme
(Appendix 1) will be circulated to Community Planning partners, other
organisations and voluntary groups for their feedback. The
consultation period will last for at least 6 weeks.

Monitoring the Equality Scheme

When the revised Equality Scheme is agreed, actions and performance
indicators will be included in the performance management system,
Pyramid and monitored by the Equality scorecard.

In terms of Elected Members monitoring the Equality Scheme, SMT
has recommended that Members monitor the Equality Scheme via a
scorecard and where appropriate refer elements to the PPG Social
Affairs or PPG Organisational Development.

CONCLUSION

This report summarises the new approach of the Single Equality
Scheme. The report recommends that the Draft Single Equality
Scheme (App. 1) goes out for consultation and asks for an agreed
approach to monitoring by Elected Members via one of the Policy and
Performance Groups. The Executive is also asked to note the advice
from the Equality and Human Rights Commission.

For further details, contact:
Jennifer Swanson, Policy Development Manager, Policy and Strategy
jennifer.swanson@argyll-bute.gov.uk Tel. 01546 604298




Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 105

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY SCHEME

DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION

CONTENTS
1 INTRODUGCTION. .. .uuiiiiiiiiiiiiitiiitieiieeieeeeee e e e e eeeeeeeaaaaaeeas 3
2 LEGAL DUTIES ..ottt 4
3 ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL PRIORITIES..........cceeeeeeeen. 8
3.1 OUur ODJECHIVES ..o 9
3.2 Organisation and Management of Equalities...................... 9
4 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT ....c.ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii, 10
O RAQGKE ... ettt et a e e e e e aaaaaas 11
5.1 Legal DULY ... 11
5.2 Gypsy/ Travellers ... 11
5.3 Migrant Workers ... 12
5.4 RacCe SUIVEY ... 12
5.5 Interpreting and Translation .............cccouiiiiiiiinne, 12
5.6  Community Safety Partnership..........ccccovvviiiiiiiiinnnn, 12
6 DISABILITY .ottt ittt e 13
6.1 Legal DUty ... 13
6.2 Definition of Disability.........cccuuiiiiiiiiiiii 13
6.3 Involving Disabled People..........coooviiiiiiiiiii, 14
6.4 Pilot Project Summary of Findings ..., 14
7 EDUCATION: DISABILITY EQUALITY SCHEME ................. 18
7.1 Introduction and legislative context ............cccoeeeeeiiiiiineee. 18
7.2 Education legislative framework...............ceiiiiiiinne. 18
7.3 The Role of Schools and arrangements within schools ... 20
7.4 Involving disabled stakeholders..............ouuuiiiiiiiiniiinnnnee. 21
7.5 Equality Impact Assessment .........cooooiiiiiiiiiiiineeeeeee, 21
7.6 Gathering and using information ............ccccccceiiiiiiiiinnne. 22
8 GENDER.. ... 24
8.1 Legal DUty ... 24
9 EDUCATION: GENDER EQUALITY SCHEME 2007- 2010 26
9.1 Introduction and Legislative Context ..........cccceevveeeiennneeee. 26
9.2 Aims of Gender Equality Duty ..., 27
9.3 Equal Pay Statement .........coooiiiiiii 27
9.4 The Role of the Education Authority............cccooeeeiiiiiee. 27
9.5 The Role of Schools and Arrangements within Schools .. 28
9.6 Gender Equality Impact Assessment..........ccccceeeeeveennnnnn.. 28
9.7 Gathering and Using Information...............ccceeiiiinninnne. 29
-1 -



Page 106

9.8 Monitoring and reporting 0N ProgressS........ccvvveeeeeeeeeennnnnn. 29
10 AGE .- 31
10.1 Legislation ... ..o 31
10.2 Population Distribution ... 31
10.3 Future Use of Older People’s Services..........cccceveevnnnnene. 31
10.4 Engaging with Younger People ... 32
11 RELIGION AND BELIEF ..o 33
11.1 Legislation ... 33
12 SEXUAL ORIENTATION.....coiiiiieeeeeieee e 33
12.1 Legislation......cooveeeiiie e 33
13  CONSULTATION AND INVOLVEMENT ....cccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiinns 34
13.1 COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT STRATEGY......cccccuvnn.e. 34
14  PUBLISHING AND PROMOTING ACCESS TO
INFORMATION AND SERVICES........oeiiiiieeiee e 34
15 MONITORING ..ot 36
15.1 Service Delivery Monitoring...........uueeeiiiiiiiniiiiiiiiiieiinnnees 36
15.2 Employee Monitoring ..........cooiieeiiiiiiiiieiieee e 36
15.83 Workforce Profile.........coooeeueiiiiiiii e 36
15.4 ReCrUitMeNt......ccceiiiee e 37
15.5 LBAVEIS ettt 37
15.6 Disciplinary and Grievance and Disputes Procedures..... 37
16 EMPLOYMENT IN ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL........... 39
16.1 Employee Equality Forum ... 39
16.2 Gender Equality in Employment..........cccooeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnn. 39
L TRC  I = U1 11 T S 40
17 ACTION PLAN - EQUALITY DUTY REFERENCES........... 42
INTERIM ACTION PLAN........coiieeeeeeecee e 43
-2 _

v.9



Page 107

1 INTRODUCTION

Our overall aim is that Argyll and Bute should be recognised as
Scotland’s leading rural area.

We aim to achieve this by getting closer to our communities,
valuing our employees and working with our partners. We will
ensure that the services we provide are delivered in a fair,
consistent, efficient and effective way taking into account their
social and environmental impact and the needs and aspirations of
communities and individuals.

We recognise that individuals are different and we need to ensure
there is equality among our diverse communities. Achieving
equality is a driver for improving services to all members of the
community and is integral to the Council’s overall performance.
Equality is about people having equal life chances, equal dignity
and worth, and equal participation. We must continue to strive to
achieve this.

This Single Equality Scheme is intended to enable the Council to
better-address the needs of all members of the communities it
serves by combining all equality actions into one plan.

The Single Equality Scheme replaces the Race Equality Scheme
published November 2002 and revised September 2004, the Equal
Opportunities Policy, and the Equality and Diversity Scheme
published in December 2006 and revised in June 2007. This
Scheme outlines the legislative background and the data about
each equality strand that has been used as a basis for action.

As part of the Council’s commitment to equality we continue to
welcome your views on this Scheme.

Councillor Dick Walsh Sally Reid
Council Leader Chief Executive

v.9



Page 108

2 LEGAL DUTIES

The Equality and Human Rights Commission states:

“It is unlawful for a public authority exercising a function of a public
nature to perform any act which constitutes discrimination. This
applies to all the legal grounds for discrimination. Organisations in
the public sector are expected to lead the way in carrying out their
functions with demonstrable respect for equality and human rights.
In the delivery of services, and in the devising of policies and
procedures, public authorities have a crucial role to play in
promoting the values and practices of a fair and democratic
society.”

The Equality and Diversity Scheme outlines Argyll and Bute
Council’s aims and intentions to promote equality in terms of
service delivery and employment. The Scheme is in accordance
with the Equality Duties Codes of Practice and the undernoted
legislation:

RACE

Anti-discrimination legislation

Race Relations Act 1976 Unlawful to discriminate on
grounds of race, colour, national
or ethnic origin in:

* Housing,

« Employment,

* Education and

» Goods and services etc

Promotion of equality

Race Relations (Amendment) | Introduced race equality duty.
Act 2000 Duty to:

« Eliminate unlawful racial
discrimination;

» Promote equality of opportunity
» Promote good relations between
persons of different racial groups.

-4 —
v.9




Page 109

DISABILITY

Anti-discrimination legislation

Disability Discrimination Act
1995

Unlawful to discriminate on
grounds of disability in:

« Employment,
 Education
» Goods, services, premises etc

Promotion of equality

¢ Disability Discrimination
Act 2005

e Education (Additional
Support for Learning)
(Scotland) Act 2004

Duty on all public organisations
to give due regard to disability
equality by:

« Eliminating unlawful
discrimination.

» Eliminating unlawful
harassment

» Promoting equality of
opportunity.

» Taking steps to take account
of

disabled persons’ disabilities,
even

where that involves treating
disabled

persons more favourably.

» Promoting positive attitudes
towards

disabled persons.

» Encouraging participation by
disabled

persons in public life.

GENDER

Anti-discrimination legislation

e Equal Pay Acts 1970 and
1984

Sex Discrimination Act
1975

Sex Discrimination
(Gender Reassignment)
Regulations 1999

Unlawful to discriminate on the
grounds of sex in

« Employment

* Education

» Housing

» Goods, services etc

-5—

v.9




Page 110

Promotion of equality

The Equality Act 2006

Introduces gender equality duty
- duty to give due regard to
gender equality when carrying
out all functions by:

« eliminating unlawful
discrimination and harassment,
and

* promoting equality of
opportunity

between men and women

AGE

Anti-discrimination legislation

Employment Equality (Age)
Regulations 2006

Unlawful to discriminate on
grounds of age (including all
ages) in

* employment,
» training and
« adult education.

RELIGION / BELIEF

Anti-discrimination legislation

e Employment Equality
(Religion or Belief)
Regulations 2003

e The Equality Act 2006

Unlawful to discriminate on
grounds of religion or belief in
» employment and

« vocational training.

Unlawful to discriminate on
grounds of religion or belief in
the exercise of the functions of
public authorities (some
education related exceptions).

SEXUAL ORIENTATION

Anti-discrimination legislation

e Employment Equality
(Sexual Orientation)
Regulations 2003

Unlawful to discriminate on
grounds of sexual orientation in
employment.

-6 —

v.9




Page 111

e Equality Act (Sexual Unlawful to discriminate on the
Orientation) Regulations | grounds of sexual orientation
2007 (perceived or actual)

« in the provision of goods,
facilities,

services, education

» use and disposal of premises
« in the exercise of public duties

HUMAN RIGHTS

» The Human Rights Act 1998 Prohibition of Discrimination —
* Article 14 right not to be subject to
discrimination

The Council has further, specific statutory duties to develop and
publish equality schemes for race, disability and gender. This
single Equality Scheme shows how the Council fulfils its statutory
duties to promote equality for everyone.

Key Terms

Direct Discrimination: treating a person less favourably than
another on grounds of race, disability, gender, sexual
orientation, religious/political belief or age.

Indirect Discrimination: applying a condition or requirement
that cannot be justified and that prevents people from certain
groups from receiving a service or being employed.

Harassment: unwanted behaviour that has the purpose or effect
of violating a person’s dignity or creates a degrading,
humiliating, hostile, intimidating or offensive  working
environment.

v.9



Page 112

3 ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL PRIORITIES

Argyll and Bute aims to be the leading rural area and the Council’s
agreed themes are set out in its Corporate Plan:

« Vibrant Communities
 Qutstanding Environment
- Forward Looking

The Council’s strategic objectives are:

Promoting our cultural, social and natural heritage and
protecting our unique area
Affecting demographic change, caring for vulnerable
people and lifelong learning
- Creating an attractive, well-connected, modern economy
- Improving, innovative, proactive and successful
organisational development.

These objectives are underpinned by the Council’s core values
and ways of working. We have identified key areas where we wish
to change the way the Council works. They are:

How we were How we want to be

Well managed | — | Well led
: : Empowered and
Hierarchical flexible
Profession centred | — | Customer focused

Consulting clients

!

Involving clients

Performance — an add-
on

!

Performance integrated

Operational focus | — | Strategic focus
Departmental loyalty | — | Corporate commitment
Reactive | — | Proactive
Challenged| — | Challenging
-8 —

v.9



Page 113

The Council’s Equality and Diversity Scheme is underpinned by
key principles, stated in our Corporate Plan, that:

e no-one is disadvantaged because of their race or ethnic
origin, disability, gender, age, sexual orientation, or religion
and belief

e the differences between people are valued and good
relations between groups are promoted

e people are treated fairly and with equal respect

¢ informed assessments are made on the impact of policies
and services

e people are involved in the decisions that affect them and
encouraged to participate in public life.

3.1 Our Objectives

e To have strong leadership — equality is one of the
competencies of the Argyll and Bute Manager

e To improve service delivery

e To improve community engagement

e To focus on outcomes.

3.2 Organisation and Management of Equalities

The corporate lead for equalities lies with the Chief Executive’s
Unit. Each Strategic Director has specific responsibility for
equalities within their department’s area of responsibility.

Equality is a core value for Argyll and Bute Council and therefore
everyone working for or with the Council has responsibilities in
relation to promoting equality of opportunity and good relations
between different groups.

Successful implementation of the Equality Scheme will depend on
a partnership between the Council and the community and
involves:

Elected Members:

to comply with the Equality Scheme

to provide leadership direction and support
to engage with the local community

to provide a scrutiny role

-9—
v.9



Page 114

Strategic Directors:

e to comply with the Equality Scheme

e to provide leadership and support to enable services to
comply with the Equality Scheme

e to oversee and monitor compliance with the Equality Scheme

Employees and staff representatives:

e to comply with the Equality Scheme
e to challenge existing cultures and traditions
e to engage with Community Planning Partners/Contractors

Providers of Goods and Services to and for the Council:

e to comply with the Equality Scheme

4 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The Council has an Equality Impact Assessment toolkit that
incorporates race, disability, gender, age, sexual orientation and
religion/belief.

With this toolkit, all Council policies, strategies and procedures,
both new and revised, are assessed for their likely impact on
different groups of people and individuals. By assessing all new
initiatives, we can identify any possible cause of inequality at the
planning stage and remedy this.

Officers assess the impact of the Council’s functions and policies
on the diverse groups of people within Argyll and Bute by using all
available information and engaging with local groups. The
assessment process also helps to identify opportunities for the
Council to promote equality and good relations between groups
and to help ensure that the Council meets its equality
commitments.

Twice a year, the Council’s Strategic Management Team receives
a report of the Equality Impact Assessments that have been
completed and those that are planned.

-10 -
v.9



Page 115

5 RACE

5.1 Legal Duty

The Council has a statutory duty to have due regard to the need
to:

+ eliminate unlawful racial discrimination

- promote equality of opportunity, and

- promote good race relations.

We know from the census data that people from all ethnic minority
backgrounds are scattered throughout Argyll and Bute, in remote
areas and in towns. There are no concentrations of one group in
any particular area and this can make it more difficult to engage
with people. The Council recognises that having small numbers of
people from ethnic minorities can mean that individuals feel more
vulnerable and isolated.

It is likely that the make-up of the population will have changed
since the 2001 Census and it will be fluid due to migrant workers.

In addition to the resident community recorded by the census, the
Single Equality Scheme takes into account Gypsies/Travellers,
non-resident workers (ie those who live outside Argyll and Bute but
work in the area), visitors to the area and seasonal workers.

5.2 Gypsy/ Travellers

Argyll and Bute Council was one of 11 local authorities that
commissioned Craigforth to carry out research in 2007. The
results are published in the document, “An Accommodation Needs
Assessment of Gypsy/Travellers in West Central Scotland”.

There are 3 official accommodation sites in Argyll and Bute located
at Dunoon, Lochgilphead and Ledaig (north of Oban, near
Benderloch). These 3 sites were formerly owned by Argyll and
Bute Council but are now owned and managed by Argyll
Community Housing Association (ACHA) following the transfer of
all Council housing (including official sites) which took place during
November 2006. However, the Council continues to have a duty
to monitor and review the housing and support needs of Gypsies
and Travellers within the context of the Local Housing Strategy.

-11 -



Page 116

5.3 Migrant Workers

The Council is working with Community Planning Partners to
ensure that the housing, health and education needs of migrant
workers are addressed.

5.4 Race Survey

The Council has worked in partnership with NHS Highland Argyll
and Bute CHP (Community Health Partnership) to carry out a
survey about people’s experience of race equality in Argyll and
Bute. There was a very low response rate to the survey so it will
be difficult to draw useful conclusions from the results.

We will work with our community planning partners to find better
ways of engaging with people from different ethnic groups. We will
use the Community Planning Partnership_Community Engagement
Strategy that focuses on improving our engagement with hard to
reach and_seldom heard groups.

5.5 Interpreting and Translation

The Council uses a service for interpretation and translation as
required. Very few requests for this service have been received
but we will keep this under review. Instead of services accessing
this individually, the Council is going to take a corporate approach
to procuring interpretation and translation services.

5.6 Community Safety Partnership
The Council is part of the Community Safety Partnership which
considers regular reports of racist, homophobic and domestic

abuse incidents. This information is collected and recorded by
Strathclyde Police.

-12-



Page 117

6 DISABILITY

6.1 Legal Duty

The Disability Discrimination Act 1995 places a general duty on the
Council to have due regard to the need to:

- Promote equality of opportunity between disabled people
and other people

+ Eliminate discrimination that is unlawful under the Act

- Eliminate harassment of disabled people that is related to
their disabilities

- Promote positive attitudes towards disabled people

- Encourage participation by disabled people in public life

- Take steps to take account of disabled people’s disabilities,
even where that involves treating disabled people more
favourably than other people.

In addition, the Council has a Specific Duty to produce and publish
a Disability Equality Scheme, to include an action plan to
implement this and report progress on an annual basis. Our
action plan records those actions that relate specifically to
disability.

6.2 Definition of Disability

The Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) protects disabled people.
The Act sets out the circumstances in which a person is "disabled".
A person is disabled if:

e they have a mental or physical impairment

e this has an adverse effect on their ability to carry out normal
day-to-day activities

e the adverse effect is substantial

e the adverse effect is long-term (meaning it has lasted for 12
months, or is likely to last for more than 12 months or for the
rest of their life).

According to the 2001 Census, in Argyll and Bute 15% (13,676) of

the total population have a limiting long-term iliness. Therefore, it
would be reasonable to assume that this is the proportion of the

-13 -



Page 118

population who have a disability. The RNID has advised that one-
seventh of the population is likely to have a hearing impairment
which amounts to approximately 13,044 people in Argyll and Bute.
There are around 1000 people who are blind or visually impaired
registered with the Council’s Community Services. We know, from
the range of support groups and self-help groups in Argyll and
Bute that there is a wide range of disabilities affecting many people
and their families.

6.3 Involving Disabled People

In the past, the Council has tended to consult with disabled
people’s groups on specific issues, for example Lochgilphead
Resource Centre Users Consultation (2002), Learning Disability
Consultation (2004). The results of these were considered when
we developed our last action plan.

We recognised that while these consultations were useful, a one-
off consultation might not bring the same benefits as continued
dialogue. We need to improve the way that we engage with
communities. We have had discussions with disabled people to
identify good ways to work together.

The National Audit Office recommends long-term supported
engagement. This is something that was explored in a pilot project
with groups in Kintyre. In the discussions people told us that we
need better links between disabled people’s groups and the
Council and Community Planning Partnership.

The pilot project, funded by Communities Scotland, was carried
out by ODS Consultants who engaged with disabled people’s
groups in Kintyre between April and June 2006. All groups were
asked for their views on how people with Additional Support
Needs, and their carers, can influence service delivery. The pilot
concluded that there was a need to strengthen the Kintyre
Community Care Forum by bringing groups together and creating
more formal structures of involvement. A summary of these
discussions is shown below.

6.4 Pilot Project Summary of Findings

- There are at least 20 groups in South Kintyre which involve
people with Additional Support Needs, and their carers

-14 -



Page 119

Groups have varying levels of activity, but most are extremely
active with meetings on a regular basis

If individuals had an issue with a service, at present they would
be most likely to contact their Councillor or write a letter

Support groups and friends were also key sources of support,
with some groups taking on a lobbying role to try and influence
service provision

People generally felt that it can take a long time to change any
aspect of service provision and many had a feeling of
powerlessness

Those who relied most heavily on services — such as day and
respite care - were most frustrated about their lack of influence

Most people believed that staff at a local level tried to respond
to issues, but that bureaucracy and resources could restrict
their flexibility

Few people were involved in any kind of consultation, and felt
that information on service changes mainly travelled by word of
mouth

Groups would like to have more influence over service planning
and delivery, through:

- Developing trust and being treated as equal partners

- Having a clear place in the decision making process

- Joint working between groups

«  Support through funding

Local organisations working with people with Additional Support
Needs echoed these views, with a strengthened Community
Care Forum seen as the key route for future involvement.

There are well over 100 disabled people’s groups in Argyll and
Bute. Most of these are support or self-help groups for people with
particular disabilities. There are six Community Care Forums or
Associations in Argyll and Bute and many disabled people’s
groups link to these at a local level.

-15 -



Page 120

In 2005 the Council and Argyll and Clyde Health Board worked
together to consult with Community Care Forums and Associations
about developing partnerships. This consultation considered
current structures, developing new relationships and structures,
and what resources were needed. Information gathered from this
has been used to help formulate the Disability Equality Action
Plan.

The information gathered in these consultations has helped to
identify barriers for disabled people and unsatisfactory outcomes.
This, in turn, has helped to set priorities for action plans and assist
in planning activities.

Disabled people will be involved in implementing the Equality
Scheme when services are conducting equality impact
assessments and gathering evidence. Services are improving
monitoring of initiatives and services so that success can be
analysed.

(Our contact) has been excellent in the Roads department, always
quick to help when we go to him with a problem. We had some
dialogue with the Planning department, but that has gone by the
wayside. We need to try and get this going again.

Fiona Morrison, Oban and District Disability Forum

Argyll and Bute Council expects that the Scottish Parliament will
approve new planning regulations later in 2009. Planning officers
will then re-engage with access panels, and other groups, about
consultation arrangements and discuss how to improve
contributions to the planning process.




Page 121

We would like more Council information presented in Plain

English and / or Easy Read formats. Argyll CVS assists us with

terminology and produces summaries of Council documents for

us.

Seniors Forum / Lomond and Argyll Advocacy Service / Link Club
representatives

Argyll and Bute Council will work with disability groups to produce
Council information in Easy Read formats.

217 -



Page 122

7 EDUCATION: DISABILITY EQUALITY SCHEME

7.1 Introduction and legislative context

This document represents the response of Education to the
Disability Discrimination Act 2005 and the requirements for the
authority to produce a Disability Equality Scheme for
implementation by schools.

7.2 Education legislative framework
The Disability Discrimination Act 1995 states that:

...a person has a disability for the purposes of this Act if he or she
has a physical or mental impairment which has a substantial and
long-term adverse effect on his or her ability to carry out normal
day-to-day activities.’

Under the Education (Additional Support for Learning) (Scotland)
Act 2004, learning disabilities is interpreted more widely. That is,
where:

...a child or young person is unable without the provision of
additional support to benefit from school education provided’

The Act goes on to state:

...all children and young people benefit from school education
when they can access a curriculum which supports their learning
and personal development; where teaching and support from
others meet their needs; where they can learn with, and from, their
peers and when their learning is supported by the parents in the
home and by their wider community.

Children with additional support needs may be identified in a
variety of circumstances: concerns raised by the parents or carers
or through self referral by the child or young person, head teachers
and senior staff, referral from medical services, staged intervention
processes. Support may be identified by the Area Network

-18 -



Page 123

Teams, Psychological Services, allied health professionals, social
work and teaching staff.

For all children so identified strategies are based on the principle
they should receive the best educational opportunities available to
develop to their fullest potential. It is the responsibility of the
education authority to ensure that any physical, systemic or
attitudinal barriers are removed.

The Education (Disabilities Strategies and Pupils’ Education
Records) Scotland Act 2002 requires that the Accessibility
Strategy sets targets to improve access to the built environment,
information and the curriculum. The 2006-2009 strategy was
revised to take into account the Disability Equality Duty.

The Integrated Children’s Services Plan, Joint Health Improvement
Plan, Service Improvement Plan and School Improvement Plans
will be assessed for their impact on the educational achievements
and opportunities of children with disabilities.

A Curriculum for Excellence and the National Priorities are
embedded in the learning experience of our pupils. They apply to
all children at all levels of education and the ambition to encourage
children and young people to become successful learners,
confident individuals, responsible citizens and effective
contributors reflects the spirit behind the promotion of disability
equality and other equality strands. The values of wisdom, justice,
compassion and integrity will become increasingly embedded in
the curriculum and educational experience of pupils in Argyll and
Bute.

The Curriculum Review Group stated:

... the curriculum should emphasise the rights and responsibilities
of individuals and nations. It should help young people to
understand diverse cultures and beliefs and support them in
developing concern, tolerance, care and respect for themselves
and others. In essence, it must be inclusive, be a stimulus for
personal achievement, and through, the broadening of pupils’
experience of the world be an encouragement towards informed
and responsible citizenship’

-19 -



Page 124

7.3 The Role of Schools and arrangements within schools

Schools have a vital role in promoting equality of opportunity, not
just for pupils, but also for staff, parents and the wider community.
Argyll and Bute Council wants all its children to do well at school
and all pupils are expected to have equal educational
opportunities. The 2005 Annual Population Survey states that 30
percent of disabled people of the working age population had no
qualifications, compared to 11.5 per cents of non-disabled people.
The duty to promote disability equality informs HMIE inspection
and the authority’s school review processes. Schools will be
auditing their existing practices, procedures and policies for their
impact on educational opportunity as well as examining the
necessity of using positive discrimination to ensure that pupils with
disabilities are able to access the full range of education services.

The Disability Equality Duty requires that education authorities
should make arrangements for every school under their
management to carry out certain tasks. These tasks are:

- Impact assess each of their policies, practices and procedures.
Training will be provided to support schools in this vital role
which will be supported by effective involvement of disabled
stakeholders;

Gather information — each school will gather information on the
effectiveness of their policies and practices on the educational
opportunities of pupils;

Provide an annual report — each school will provide within their
annual standards and quality reports statements on the
information gathered and impact assessments undertaken;

Action plan — each school will be responsible for implementing
those elements of the action plan which are required by
schools;

Maintain a copy of the Disability Equality Scheme — each school

will maintain a copy of the Disability Equality Scheme and
include it within their own policy file.

-20 -



Page 125

Schools will report annually to the Director of Community Services
using the impact assessment audit tool as well as returning
statistics on a range of issues affecting disabled stakeholders.
These may include bullying, exclusions, involvement in public life
at school, examination results, staffing, involvement of disabled
parents and stakeholders.

Extensive training and support will be offered in the first instance to
senior management but in recognition of the importance of the
modelling attitudes and promoting an inclusive ethos all staff will
be targeted.

7.4 Involving disabled stakeholders

The Disability Equality Scheme identifies the need to involve all
stakeholders - pupils, staff, parents and community members with
disabilities. This should be:

Focussed
Accessible
Proportionate
Influential
Transparent

The geographic nature of Argyll and Bute creates challenges in the
arrangement of authority wide meetings and creation of forums
and groups that all can attend. However new technology should
be used to encourage access for all. The role of the lead officer will
include examining the best wuse of these alternative
communications.

Stakeholder groups should be identified and all schools
encouraged to include them when discussing and developing new
policies and in all key aspects of the DES. Their opinions and
views will be particularly valuable in identifying the barriers they
face, setting priorities, the action plan, gathering evidence, impact
assessment and evaluation and monitoring the DES.

7.5 Equality Impact Assessment
The Council has developed an Equality Impact Assessment toolkit

to be used to consider whether any of its policies or functions
have, or are likely to have, an adverse impact on different equality

29 -



Page 126

target groups. Consideration is given to race, disability, gender,
age, religion and belief, and sexual orientation. Part of the
assessment process includes consulting with people from relevant
equality target groups.

Schools will use the authority impact assessment tool to examine
current and new practices, procedures and policies. Equality
promotion should become embedded into the process of
development of all new policies and should include the
involvement of disabled stakeholders in identifying the relevance
and priority of those policies.

7.6 Gathering and using information

Schools will gather information as part of the routine procedures
which support the compilation of standards and quality reporting.
However the information relevant to the impact of equality of
opportunity for pupils with disabilities will be disaggregated.
Information already gathered includes numbers of those pupils
with disabilities and the assessment and nature of the disability as
well as additional needs in terms of access to the built
environment, the curriculum and information.

Schools will be supported in gathering information on wider issues
eg the needs of parents with disabilities, community members and
staff with disabilities.  Equally important will be gathering
information and views on the development of new policies.

Information may come from a variety of sources: analysis of
attainment and achievement; feedback and complaint; exclusion
figures; research into aspects of school life undertaken by Quality
Improvement Officers and Education Support Officers; surveys;
self-evaluation processes in schools; partnership agencies such as
health, social work. A uniform information template will be used
across all sectors and schools.

Information will be gathered and collated from schools and other
relevant sources to inform the education authority’s annual
standards and quality report and any responses required by
elected members.

Arrangements are in place to support schools in the collection of
data. The management and information system, SEEMIS, will

-99.



Page 127

show whether or not a pupil has declared a disability or been
assessed as having a disability or requires an adaptation to the
physical environment, the curriculum and information.

With the involvement of disabled stakeholders in the gathering of
information it will be possible to ensure that appropriate priorities
will be identified and that methods of obtaining information are
accessible.

-23-



Page 128

8 GENDER

8.1

Legal Duty

The Gender Equality Duty came into force in Scotland in April
2007. Public authorities have a general duty to have due regard,
when carrying out their functions, to the need:

to eliminate unlawful discrimination and harassment
to promote equality of opportunity between women and men.

The specific duties are:

To prepare and publish a gender equality scheme, showing how
it will meet its general and specific duties and setting out its
gender equality objectives.

In formulating its overall objectives, to consider the need to
include objectives to address the causes of any gender pay

gap.

To gather and use information on how the public authority's
policies and practices affect gender equality in the workforce
and in the delivery of services.

To consult stakeholders (i.e. employees, service users and
others, including trade unions) and take account of relevant
information in order to determine its gender equality objectives.

To assess the impact of its current and proposed policies and
practices on gender equality, and to have due regard to the
results of those impact assessments.

To implement the actions set out in its scheme within three
years, unless it is unreasonable or impracticable to do so.

To report against the scheme every year and review the
scheme at least every three years.

This includes the need to carry out:

- Equal pay audit
- Impact assessment.

-924 -



Page 129

Definitions

(from Equal Opportunities Commission Guidance)

Gender Refers to the wider social roles, attitudes, values

Transgender

Transsexual

and behaviours attributed to women and
men by society which structure men’s and
women’s lives. For example, traditionally, a
gender role would suggest that women
should look after children, while men
continue to go to work.

People who identify their gender to be
different from the physical one into which
they were born but who choose not to
undergo medical treatment and simply live
their life in their new gender are not subject
to the same legal protections as transsexual
people.

A person who intends to undergo, is
undergoing or has in the past undergone
gender reassignment (which may or may not
involve hormone therapy or surgery), and it
is this individual who receives protection
under the law.

-925-




Page 130

9 EDUCATION: GENDER EQUALITY SCHEME 2007- 2010
9.1 Introduction and Legislative Context

The need for a Community Services: Education Gender Equality
Scheme as part of Argyll and Bute’s Equality and Diversity
Scheme is intended to enable the Council to better address the
needs of all members of the communities it serves including those
involved in education.

This document represents the response to meet the requirements
of the Gender Equality Duty (GED) which was created by the
Equality Act 2006. This Act amends the Sex Discrimination Act
1975 to place a statutory duty on public bodies, when carrying out
their functions to have due regard to the need to:

¢ eliminate unlawful discrimination and harassment; and
e promote equality of opportunity between men and women

These are the requirements of the general duty and are the core of
the GED.

Unlawful discrimination means:

e direct and indirect discrimination against women and men, in
employment and education, in goods, facilities and services
and in the exercise of public functions;

e harassment, sexual harassment and discrimination on the
grounds of pregnancy and maternity leave;

e discrimination on the grounds of gender reassignment in
employment and vocational training;

e direct and indirect discrimination in the employment field on
the grounds that a person is married or in a civil partnership;

e victimisation

- 26 -



Page 131

9.2 Aims of Gender Equality Duty

The GED requires all Scottish schools and education authorities to
eliminate any sex discrimination which may exist in our education
system, and also to take steps to actively promote sex equality
through the work they do.

It should help us achieve an education service in Argyll and Bute
where:

e all pupils achieve their potential and leave our education
establishments with skills and qualifications that prepare
them for life

e all pupils make choices which fit with their aspirations and
abilities and are not tainted by gender assumptions

e all aspects of a child’s or young person’s educational
experiences tackle discrimination head-on and support
teachers to support equality in the classroom

e excellence in promoting gender equality is recognised by the
authority’s review process and national inspection
frameworks

e we have a gender balanced workforce at all levels and
across all curricular areas and staffing functions in our
education establishments and education authority

e national and local education policies explicitly recognise and
address gender differences and inequalities, supporting
professionals on the ground

9.3 Equal Pay Statement

Argyll and Bute Council carried out a review on equal pay in 2007
in accordance with the Gender Equality Duty.

9.4 The Role of the Education Authority
The Gender Equality Duty requires that listed bodies such as
education authorities should take exact steps known as “specific
duties” to help them meet the general duty.

The specific duties require Community Services: Education to:

-927-



Page 132

1. Gather information on how their work affects women and men,
boys and girls

2. Consult employees, service users, trade unions and other
stakeholders such as parents’ groups and the local community

3. Assess the different impact of policies and practices on both
sexes and use this information to inform the authority’s work

4. ldentify priorities and set gender equality objectives
5. Plan and take action to achieve those objectives

6. Publish a gender equality scheme, report annually and review
progress every three years.

7. Publish an equal pay policy statement and report on progress
every three years.

9.5 The Role of Schools and Arrangements within Schools
Schools have a responsibility to ensure that they

e gather information on the effects of their policies and
practices on gender equality

e assess the impact of those policies and practices on
gender equality

e carry out steps to meet the duty in line with the Community
Services: Education scheme

e report on these activities
9.6 Gender Equality Impact Assessment

The Council has developed an Equality Impact Assessment
toolkit to be used to consider whether any of its policies or
functions have, or are likely to have an adverse impact on
different equality target groups. Consideration is given to gender,
race, disability, age, religion and belief, and sexual orientation. In
terms of gender equality impact assessment the questions asked
of new or existing policies within Community Services: Education
will include

e Does the policy further gender equality?
e Does the policy reinforce gender stereotypes?

-28-



Page 133

e |s there evidence to suggest that boys and girls or men and
women have different needs, experiences, concerns or
priorities in relation to this priority area?

e Could the policy unintentionally disadvantage people of one
sex or the other, or transsexual people?

Part of the assessment process includes consulting with people
from relevant equality target groups.

Schools will use the above Equality Impact Assessment tool to
examine current and new practices, procedures and policies. The
promotion of gender equality should become embedded into the
process of development of all new policies and should include the
involvement of stakeholders in identifying the relevance and
priority of those policies.

A copy of the Equality Impact Assessment toolkit is shown in
appendix 3.

9.7 Gathering and Using Information

Schools will gather information as part of the routine procedures
which support the compilation of annual standards and quality
reports. The information may come from a variety of sources;
analysis of attainment and achievement, exclusion figures,
research into aspects undertaken by QIOs and ESOs, surveys,
self evaluation processes in schools. This will be gathered and
collated from schools using the management and information
system, SEEMIS and a standardised information template.

9.8 Monitoring and reporting on progress

A summary will be produced within the education authority’s
annual standards and qualities report which will include:

e The steps taken to fulfil the gender equality duty and whether
or not the targets have been met

e The results of information gathering, the evidence gathered
and what it indicates

e How the information has been gathered and actions still to
be taken.

-29.-



Page 134

There will be a three yearly report on Community Services:
Education Gender Equality Scheme which will include a review of
the action plan 2007 — 2010.

-30 -



Page 135

10 AGE

10.1 Legislation

The Employment Equality (Age) Regulations 2006 make it unlawful
to discriminate on grounds of age (including all ages) in:

» employment,
* training and
« adult education.

10.2 Population Distribution

In 2008 the Fairer Argyll and Bute (FAB) partnership carried out a
Needs Analysis to help us direct our services to people with the
most need.

This analysis found that older people are more likely to live in rural
parts of Argyll and Bute and this means that service delivery to
older people is complicated by access issues. Younger people
tend to live within the towns.

10.3 Future Use of Older People’s Services

The Council is carrying out an options appraisal to evaluate the
provision of older people’s services by both external and internal
providers.

A programme of consultation meetings, surveys and phone-in
sessions was undertaken with various stakeholders. Home care,
day care, care home residents, families and staff in Mull, Tiree,
Oban, Mid Argyll, Campbeltown, Islay, Helensburgh, Bute and
Cowal all took part.

The results of the responses received are published on the
Council’'s website www.argyll-bute.gov.uk/olderpeopleservices
along with “Frequently Asked Questions” and report from the
independent consultant on feedback from the programme of
meetings.

-31 -



Page 136

The findings from this consultation exercise will be fed into the
options appraisal which will now be undertaken for all older
people’s services.

In order to emphasise the Council’s commitment to genuine
consultation there will be a continuing process whereby the various
stakeholders continue to be engaged in whatever changes are to
take place. Further information will continue to be provided for
people who use services and their carers, for staff, for partners
and for communities as the decision-making process progresses.

10.4 Engaging with Younger People

The Scottish Government, Young Scot and Argyll and Bute
Council are working in partnership to deliver a localised youth
information package under the initiative of Dialogue Youth. The
project aims to ensure young people aged 12 - 26 are fully
represented in community planning, enabling them to make
informed choices by providing information and opportunities,
engaging young people in a range of innovative ways; empowering
young people by providing platforms for them to express their
views.

Argyll and Bute Young Scot / Dialogue Youth information package
includes the Young Scot Card, PASS proof of age scheme,
websites, social networking sites, text messaging, handbooks and
magazines to engage with and support young people to make
informed decisions and choices. Young people are encouraged to
be as involved as possible; there are votes, surveys, consultations
both online and offline on a range of topics from family mediation
to green spaces. Our next planned consultation, in 2009, will
focus on young people and alcohol.

Young Scot / Dialogue Youth has an online toolkit and customises
consultations to make them interesting and user friendly for young
people. This service is offered to Community Planning Partners
free of charge.

-32-



Page 137

11 RELIGION AND BELIEF

11.1 Legislation

Under the Human Rights Act 1998, everyone has a right to
freedom of thought, conscience and belief. As a public authority,
the Council has an obligation to ensure that these are adequately
protected and we will challenge religious intolerance.

Figures from the 2001 Census show that there are broadly similar
proportions of the population with different religious beliefs in Argyll
and Bute compared with Scotland.

Religion and Belief is considered as part of the Council’s Equality
Impact Assessments.

12 SEXUAL ORIENTATION

12.1 Legislation

Legal protection from discrimination on the basis of sexual
orientation applies to everyone, whatever their sexual orientation.
Sexual orientation discrimination includes being treated less
favourably because:

e aperson is lesbian, gay, bisexual or heterosexual

e people think a person is lesbian, gay, bisexual or
heterosexual, or that person is associated with someone who
is lesbian, gay, bisexual or heterosexual, for example a friend,
relative or colleague.

The law applies to direct and indirect discrimination as well as to
harassment and victimisation. The law applies to the private,
public and not-for-profit sectors.

Sexual Orientation is considered as part of the Council’s Equality
Impact Assessments.

-33-



Page 138

13 CONSULTATION AND INVOLVEMENT

We recognise that we need to work in partnership with others to
develop policies and improve services. In order to make these
links effective, we are working with our community planning
partners and neighbouring local authorities to share resources and
information.

In order to structure our consultation and involvement we
developed a Consultation Toolkit to help ensure best practice. We
also adopted the National Standards of Consultation drawn up by
Communities Scotland to use in all consultations.

13.1 COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT STRATEGY

The Community Planning Partnership is developing a Community
Engagement Strategy that aims to ensure that all sections of the
community are fairly represented, have opportunities to participate
and are involved in the decisions that affect them.

We recognise that people with whom we want to consult and
involve may have training needs and we will endeavour to provide
these. Training needs might include understanding Council
procedures and enabling people to have their say.

We will make it a priority to increase the involvement of people
from under-represented groups and extend capacity building to
help those people develop their confidence and skills.

14 PUBLISHING AND PROMOTING ACCESS TO
INFORMATION AND SERVICES

West of Scotland Racial Equality Council has advised on the
languages that are likely to be spoken in Argyll and Bute based on
information from the 2001 Census. Since then the linguistic profile
has changed with the increase in people from Eastern European
countries living and working in Argyll and Bute, and therefore other
languages are now offered in published documents. Additionally,
the area receives visitors from all over the world. Services are
acknowledging this in the information that is published to ensure

-34 -



Page 139

that everyone can access the information they need in their first
language.

All Council documents are published on the website: www.arqgyll-
bute.gov.uk and internet access is available to the public at
Council libraries. Surveys of the Citizens Panel (2001 and 2004)
showed that residents have increasing levels of internet access
with 75% of the public having access either at home, work or
elsewhere. The internet was the most preferred method to access
public services, after newspapers and printed leaflets. The
Council’s website is AA compliant within W3C guidelines and the
Council strives to maintain this level of compliancy.

Council services provide an update on the Equality Action Plan to
the Strategic Management Team twice a year. These reports also
include a record of the number of requests received for information
in alternative formats or languages. We are working to improve
the service of responding to requests for translation and
interpretation by carrying this out corporately.

-35 -



Page 140

15 MONITORING
15.1 Service Delivery Monitoring

Customer-facing services monitor satisfaction levels of service
users to help identify any inequalities. To date, there is insufficient
data to form conclusions however monitoring will continue and this
is reported to the Strategic Management Team twice a year.
Monitoring information will also be used in Equality Impact
Assessments.

15.2 Employee Monitoring

The Council acknowledges the specific duties conferred by the
Act in regard to the ethnic monitoring of employees. In order to
meet these duties the Council collects and monitors data with
reference to ethnic groups as defined by the categories
contained in the 2001 National Census for the following:

Number of employees in post by reference to salary bands;
Number of leavers and reasons for leaving;

Number of applicants for employment, training and
promotion;

Number of employees involved in the Disciplinary and
Grievance and Disputes Procedures.

Reports on the above information are submitted to the Strategic
Management Team on a quarterly basis; to the Executive on a
six monthly basis and included in the Strategic HR Annual
Report, which is an item for discussion on the Council’s
Employee Joint Consultative Committee (EJCC) Agenda. The
EJCC comprises senior Members and senior Officers and
representatives from the main trade unions. The Strategic HR
Annual Report is also available to the public through the
Council’'s Committee Services and through the Council’s
website.

15.3 Workforce Profile
The Council is committed to obtaining accurate ethnic origin

data from its employees and has commissioned a bespoke

-36 -



Page 141

ethnic monitoring report to allow corporate reporting from our
Northgate Personnel and Payroll system on the Council’s
workforce profile. This includes current employees by salary
band. The report highlights areas of potential under-
representation by ethnic groups and areas where the Council
needs to consider Positive Action. Positive Action might include
wider advertising of vacancies within media targeted at the
ethnic minority population with the aim of attracting more
applicants from ethnic minority groups. A further area for
consideration may be the need to target development and
training programmes.

15.4 Recruitment

The Council’s Recruitment and Selection Policy and Procedures
should help us to create a workforce that more closely reflects
the ethnic, gender and disability profile of people in the local
area. It is essential for all recruitment panel chairs to have
equality training.

The Council produces monitoring information on recruitment at
the following stages of the recruitment process:

Application forms received;
Those selected for interview;
Job offers and those who have declined job offers.

The analysis of this information will provide indications where
the Council needs to take positive action.

15.5 Leavers

The Council surveys employees when they leave the Council to
help identify their reasons for leaving. This information is
monitored to identify potential areas of discrimination on the
basis of ethnicity, gender and disability. This allows the Council
to take steps to address any issues or remove any barriers
identified. The information received is reported to Departments
for action as appropriate.

15.6 Disciplinary and Grievance and Disputes Procedures

-37-



Page 142

Instances of disciplinary action and grievances submitted are
monitored by ethnic group, gender and disability. Analysis of the
information provided through this monitoring are used to identify
any patterns of inequality and to make any appropriate
interventions, eg training, to remove any potential discriminatory
practices or actions.

-38 -



Page 143

16 EMPLOYMENT IN ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

16.1 Employee Equality Forum

The Disability Matters Forum provided an opportunity for Council
employees with disabilities to meet and discuss their concerns in
relation to their disability and employment. The Forum agreed to
extend membership to encompass all equality groups and the
Employee Equality Forum was set up in 2008.

The Forum will be consulted from the outset on the development of
new policies and revision of existing employment policies and will
be involved in Equality Impact Assessments. Meetings are held
approximately once every 4 - 6 months and a feature in the
employee newsletter, Work4ce, will aim to encourage more
participants from under-represented groups.

16.2 Gender Equality in Employment

The Council is required to measure its performance in equality in
employment and report this each year. The Accounts Commission
then publishes statistics on the percentage of highest paid 2% and
5% of earners among council employees (excluding teachers) that
are women. The following table shows the figures for the last 3
years:

Percentage of women employees | Percentage of women employees
in the top 2% of earners in the top 5% of earners

2005/06

Argyll and Bute: 27% Argyll and Bute: 32%

Scotland: 32% Scotland: 38%
2006/07

Argyll and Bute: 28% Argyll and Bute: 33%

Scotland: 34% Scotland: 40%
2007/08

Argyll and Bute: 26% Argyll and Bute: 31%

Scotland: 36% Scotland: 44%

-39-




Page 144

In 2007/08 Argyll and Bute Council was ranked 29" out of 32
Councils for both Statutory Performance Indicators. The Council is
committed to improving its ranking and with this is mind the issue
was raised at a meeting of the Equality Forum in September 2008.

Initial discussions highlighted a number of issues including the
timing and location of meetings and the reluctance of some staff to
agree to job share at higher levels. These issues require to be
examined in greater detail and strategies developed to address
them.

The Council already has video conferencing facilities and these
are widely available throughout the area. Greater use of them for
meetings would reduce the need to travel and have the added
bonus of helping the Council to reduce its carbon emissions.

In addition, following on from the Shared Services Diagnostic
Project in 2008, a flexible, mobile and home-working pilot is
currently being undertaken as part of the Council’s Process for
Change Programme within the Improvement Plan. A considerable
number of jobs across the Council have already been identified as
being potentially suitable for flexible working and this will also
reduce the need for employees to travel as well as helping to
improve their work-life balance.

A job share scheme and a flexi time scheme are already well
established within the Council. In addition, the Council makes
every effort to accommodate requests made under flexible working
legislation from employees with childcare responsibilities or those
with caring responsibilities for adults.

16.3 Training

Equality training is featured in the Council’s Induction course for
new employees. Many in-house courses also include elements of
equality training: Recruitment and Selection, Customer Care,
Disciplinary Procedures, and Supervisors Programme. These
courses have been identified to target the areas of greatest need.
Equality training for elected Members will continue to be provided.
The Learning and Development Manager has responsibility for the
Council’s training programme.

- 40 -



Page 145

We are developing training for Argyll and Bute Manager
Competencies and equality is one of these. This will help to
ensure that Managers are aware of emerging issues and best
practice in terms of Equality and Diversity.

We are also discussing joint training or joint procurement of
training with our Community Planning Partners in order to reduce
costs.

The Council will continue to monitor attendance at training courses
and requests for training through the PDR (Personal Development
Review) process to help identify whether there is discrimination
among employees. The Head of Strategic HR is responsible for
ensuring that this is carried out.

The PDR process is used to identify individuals’ training needs and
managers will continue to ensure that employees complete
equalities training as relevant to their role. We have identified that
priority should be given to front-line employees and that training is
tailored to the needs of their role, eg increasing understanding of
religious and cultural issues for home helps who have personal
contact with service users.

While we recognise the importance of equalities training to raise
awareness and increase understanding, employees also need
practical training to improve delivery of services to all members of
the community, for example in the use of aids for disabled people,
eg induction loop, and in cultural issues and how this impacts on
personal care or leisure activities. With regard to this,
consideration is being given to training Council employees as
trainers to deliver on-site training, particularly to part-time staff who
might have difficulty travelling to attend courses.

-41 -



Page 146

17 ACTION PLAN - EQUALITY DUTY REFERENCES

Each equality duty has requirements and each of these has been
given a reference code. The reference code helps us to show in
our action plan which actions relate to which requirements. These
reference codes and requirements are listed below.

We have to pay due regard to the following requirements of the
Race Equality Duty:

R1  Eliminate unlawful discrimination

R2 Promote equality of opportunity

R3 Promote good relations between people of different racial
groups

We have to pay due regard to the following requirements of the
Disability Equality Duty:

D1 Promote equality of opportunity between disabled people
and other people

D2 Eliminate unlawful discrimination

D3 Eliminate harassment of disabled people that is related to
their disabilities

D4 Promote positive attitudes towards disabled people

D5 Encourage participation by disabled people in public life

D6 Take steps to take account of disabled people’s disabilities,
even where that involves treating them more favourably than
other people.

We have to pay due regard to the following requirements of the
Gender Equality Duty:

G1 Eliminate unlawful sex discrimination
G2 Eliminate unlawful harassment
G3 Promote equality of opportunity between men and women

The requirements to eliminate unlawful sex discrimination and

harassment also include discrimination and harassment on the
basis of gender reassignment.

-42 -



Page 147

IMU.VI

SanndIyIp
Buiuses| yum sjdoad
SOA|OAUI ANOJL)

dno.b Bupiom
peay Ase3 ysi|gels3

Slew.o} peay
Ase3 1o / pue
ysi|bu3 ure|d

salep

Salnsesauw SS9JddNg

awo9}no
aA3Iyoe 0] SuoIdyY

ANOAHIAT HO4 ALITVNO3 ONILOINOYHd
NV1d NOILOV NIH3LNI

¢10C - 600C FNIHIOS ALITVNOT ITONIS - TIONNOD ILNT ANV TTADHY

awo9}no
99IAI0S

ABejens | ul psjussaid
labeuep 0102 | yonew.oyur OUNOD JO uoneoluNWWOD | Sl uonewloul | 9q ‘sq
suonedIuNWwWo) yaole b___o__wmooom .bo>an_ uswadw] | 1ounod Aol | ‘¢Q ‘2a
S||IMS pu®B 82UspPIUOD
pIINg O} s[enplAlpul
pue saniunwwog | SeiuNWWwod
Yim yiom Buipjing e JO
Anoedeo pusixg | HUSWSAJOAUL
sdnoJb 106.4e] Alljenba paseaioul
10} SWSIUBLDAW PAAJOAUI | YlIm 82110e.d | .m_o
0102 JuowoBeBus awo0o9q 01 ajdoad owrind| ‘cq‘1q
SAIINOSX3 JeIyD YJoJEN yuswadwy | % shem 1seq Ajyuap| | sisenienby | ‘Y ‘gY

194
Aujenb3




Page 148

I.V.VI

1loddns paseq

e Aq pa1oayje

10} S82INI8S paAoidw|

Alunwwo? [essush ualip(iyo
Buipnjoul ‘Aljigesip | 10} SBWo9oIN0
spoddns paseq | © AqQ peloaye uaipjiyo Buiuies)
Spoo| |eloadg AIUNWWOD BUIAIB9S) 10} s92IAI8S Loddns pue |e|o0s
UM uaIpliyo 1102 " Auigesip B yum Buiuoissiwwod | ‘ayi| jo Ayrenb |
— J821JJO 82IAI8S - 6002 USIP|IYO 0 JOqUINN 10 Buipinoid panosdw] | §q ‘Lq
Aujenba
ajowo.d
(shenins poddns
UOI}OB}SIIES JOWO}SND 1ounoy
£q peunuspi) Buiures Ayjenba | yum Jo jjeyaq
Apople ‘seniiqesip aAey sealojdwo S |1oUN0Y
Lim ajdoad ey} ainsud uo pepiroid K3}
JuBWwaINd0.d . slapinoid 82IMI8S S9OIMBS | ‘2d ‘1Y

sajep

)Y

1ew.o} peay
Ase3 ul paonpoud
SJuUBWINJ0pP X
sainseaw $S999Ng

lewo} peay Ase3 ul
SjUBWNO0P 82NpP0Id

awo02)No
aAdIyoe 0] SUoIoY

awoo1No
99IAIBS

oy
Anjenb3z




Page 149

IAIU—.VI

sollllenbaul
yj|eay aonpaJ pue | Sa9IAISS [BI0|
sabueyd Jnoineyaq | UO SUOISIOBp
ajA1sayl| @ouanpul | pue AldAlBp
yoddng 0] seljunuoddo 92IAIBS
Arejunjop pue Juswaoidwil ulI sdnoub
uonelausbay yieay opinoid 0} asen | sailenbs jo
Alunwwon LLO2 Alunwwon uo WNIOH |  JUBWSBAJOAUI
- J921JJO 92IAIBS - 6002 alAury Buinoddng peseaoul | oq ¢ q
. NOA Se aweg, Jo
so|dioulid 8y} yum aul|
ul ‘aJed |eluapIsal
pooyynpe 40} | pue aydsas ‘uoddns
aleda.d o] papoddns Allunwwod pue
Aujgesip e Aq palosje awoy Jo sabeyoed | saljiwey Jidy}
uaJp|Iyo Jo JaquinN ayodsaq ‘seolnles | pue Aljigesip

sajep
Aoy

Sainsesaw SS9J3IJNg

awo02)No
aAdIyoe 0] SUoIoY

awo2)no joY
aoInieS Aujenbg




Page 150

IG.VI

Jodsuel |
oibajens pue
Juswdojena(

bunssw SNYHLIH
yoea 0} Joud ayepdn

SJ991}J0
Airenba [eoo] yum yul|

OlLIOU02] Auenba yim pepiroid sbunesw podsuels |
10 pesH s1 99In19S Jo peaH | 0 SPE8H = SNVdl1IH
0p

am Jeym anoidwi djay

pue JueAs|al aJe jeyl

uodsuel | SONssI 8y} SSNosIp

oibajens pue
Juswdojena(
OILLOU02]
‘S0INIBS
Aluawy pue
speoy ‘Buluue|d
:90INIBS

JO SpesH

Ajlenuue
pue 0102

Jodsuel] 10 S82INIBS
Aluswy pue speoy
10 Buluue|d wouy
1891)J0 AQ pepusype
9Q 0] [duBd SS822Y
yoea Jo JeaA Jad
Bunieaw auo 1se9| 1y
sainseaw $sa9dooNg

0] ‘Buluue|d pue
spsepuels Buiping
‘bodsuel] ‘sadINIBS
Aluswy pue

Speoy WoJj SI8d1y)0
pue sjpued SS820y
|[BO07 Usamiaq
Juswabebus anoiduwi)

awo02)No
aAdIyoe 0] SUoIoY

slaquiaw
|oued

SS920Y pue
sJ921440 Aq
Buipuelsiapun
panoidwil

pue buLeys
uoljewJoyul
panoiduw|

awoo1No
99IAIBS

¢d ‘1d
9y
Ayjenb3




Page 151

IN.VI

"YSu
Je Buleq se payiuapl
SHINPY 8|gelauinp
10} pepinoid

s| yoddns Aousbe
-J8)Jul pajeuIpI0-0D)

‘palebiisonul 1O
Ai@reudoidde aie | pepienbajes Te

Yl|esH [elusy S)NPY 9|geJaunA JO ale
‘Jobeue) 6002 Bulaqjom pue A1ojes | Msii Je synpy ¢d
901N | Jaquiada(g INOQge SuJaou0d Auy a|qelauNp RS

(joued SS800Y Yoed

10 Jedh Jad Bunssw S92INIBS

Buluueld jo BuO0 ]Se9| Je puane | pue sbulp|ing

peoH {S80IAIeS Ajrenuue sdnoJb s ajdoad 0] SJ1821440 |12UN09) IoUN0D

Aluswy pue DUE 0102 DO|QESIP WOJJ Sjoued SS90y 0] SS8208
speoy Jo pesH YOIBN 5|0BQPES) SISO |eo0| yum abebu] panoiduw| cd ‘1q

Sainsesaw SS9J3IJNg

owod1no

aAdIyoe 0] SUoIoY

awoo1No
99IAIBS

oy
Anjenb3z




Page 152

val

UlleaH [elusiy
‘Aljigesiq
Buiuiea
‘suoneltadQ
:s1abeue
ERIIVELS

‘ooe|d

ul aJe sjuswabuele
Buiuueld a1eo a|gelns
pue passasse spasu
118y} 8ABY Jaye pay0o|
9le oym saljljigesip
Ulim S)npe ||

600¢
lagquwiaoa(g

"9|ge|leAe aJe
dwoy Je dAl| Jouued
Ooym salljigesip yum

sj|npe 10} sjuswaoe|d

aleudoidde
Jo abuel y

panoidwi ase

sawoy aJed
u Buipise HO
senigesia Ne

UM s)inpy
10} saoueyd cd
ajll 8y L ld

peoT

sajep

)Y

Sainsesaw SS9J3IJNg

"SIINPY 8|qeJsu|nA
Bunosjoid ul

Buiyiom uiol 8oueyus
0] paulejuiew

ale swolsAs poddns
1aylo pue Jajlsibay
uol19810.id 1INpY ayL

awo02)No
aAdIyoe 0] SUoIoY

awo2)no joY
aoInieS Aujenbg




Page 153

Imvl

‘Yl[eaH [ejus|y

‘Aljigesiq
Buiuiean
‘suonelsadQ
:s1abeue
ERIIVEIS

Ulim Sjnpe yum
sol|lwe} 10} uoisinoid
uoddns jo ebues e
1oddns pue dojansp

salljigesip

YlM S}inpe O}
sjuswoabueuse pyoddns
alelidoidde apinoid

sell|iqesIp
YLUM S]iNpe JO Si1aJed
1O SPo8U SSOSSk

6002
laquieoaQ

SalI[IgesIp Yim sjnpe
]JO SpPosU SSasse

*A18100S olul
uolelbojul
|IN} 8A8IYOR
0] @oue)sISse
uanIb pue
pauoddns
aJe saol|lwe)
lIdy] pue
salljigesig
Ylm synpy

1O
qd
ed
cd
Ld
cd
ld

Sainsesaw SS9J3IJNg

‘pasealoul
S| sjuswaoe|d
Allunwiwod ul aJe oym
Salljigesip yum sjnpe
J0 uoiuodoud ay |

owod1no

aAdIyoe 0] SUoIoY

awoo1No
99IAIBS

oy
Anjenb3z




Page 154

Ioml

10]BUIPIO-0)

uo buisnooy ‘joyoole
1noge ajdoad BunoA

noA anbojel
* / Hwom mc_som #mmwmm Ulim uolie}insuoy
‘sJop|oydyels/siaulied
Y1IM 1JNSu0d
© sdnolib sanenbs
O spaau Buipnjoul
SJusWISSasse sdno.b o)
pueWwap R Spasu Alenba ‘20 ‘15
labeue Buisnoy a1epdn | |e 4o} suondo .
Juswdojara( ‘ABoleNS SSO|oWOoH poddns | 9d5d
poddng 0102 ® SH pasinal ssessy | pue Buisnoy | <d 1A
Alunwwon yoJIen 10edw| Alenbg panosdw| | 24 ‘LY

‘Sol|lwe)

10} uonuaalelul Ajues
pue uoddns Buipinoid
ul Ayaigoe Aouasbe
-18]ul 8)BUIPI0-02

Sainsesaw SS9J3IJNg

SallljigesIp
awo02)No
aAdIyoe 0] SUoIoY

oWwod1no

}od

aoInieS Aujenbg




Page 155

IFmI

swwe.lboid awuweliboud sdnoib co)
aunn} pauue(d ay] ul uoisnjoul Joy | 1864e1 Aljenba 0} 1D
DUE SJUSLISSaSSY saJnpaoo0.id 1o seale uo 1oedw
woedw Aenbd Aaij0d mau Ayuepl osionpe | 9d
6002 10 swweiBoid PUE SJUSWSSasSY | 10} pauoalos 11d
90IAIBS | Joquiada( JUB.LIND Pale|dLog 10edw| Aujenb3 Jo SO2INIBS ey
O SpesaH AQ IV Sey 90IAI8S YoB] awuwelbo.d a18|dwon | 1o suonoun4 0l |Y
sdnoib
180.4e] Alllenba
JO Spaau
|[sued | Byl ylim aul| %9)
s uazin/sdnoin Ul S82INIBS o1 15
SEINVEIS 186.e | Alenb3g |eloueul
[eloueul4 pue UM SuolElNSUOD | 8 1] ulylim °d
10] “Josiniadng snoinaid WoJy SYNsal uoisinoud | O HA
anjeA 1sag 6002 Buipiebal Aboiells 90IAIBS ey
% Bununoddy | sunp ,0€ pue A2110d4 yum asiel panosdw| 0l |Y

Sainsesaw SS9J3IJNg

NN PUE UBqO
awooIno

aAdIyoe 0] SUoIoY

oWwod1no

}od

aoInieS Aujenbg




Page 156

INmI

SO2IAIBS
JETNIE]o)
pue
suolnouny
1no Alued
ol Ajjiqeul
0] Bulipesg|
Jyels
Aujenb
uby
urelal pue
NJoal

0] aJnjie4

YH olbsjens
JO pesH
pea’

600¢
aunp

— |udy

"YU1|92IN0Say O}ul
paJalus uoljewlou|
"9]0I1UB 80p)IOM

0] 8suodsal aAllISOd
‘soohojdwa Bulisixe
WwoJ} po1o9||00 eleq

600¢ 98d
sajep

)Y

"BlpoW 0}
sasuodsal Buuouuow
sapn|ou| ‘abe

pue aoel ‘Ajjigesip
‘lapuab Aq synse.
ay] asAjeue pue
wolsAg Juswabeue)
Aoueoep s, 1ouno)
ayl BIA sjueoldde

uo Blep 199|109
sainseaw $sa9dooNg

"WIolSAs

||oJAed/qH peleibalul
S IoUN0D By} ol
elep Jsjus o} yels YH
"BOPNIOM

ul 8jo1e BuiMmo||0}
w0} Bulojuow
soljunuoddo

|[enba Buinssi-al

Aq sesakojdwa Bunsixa
WwioJ} Blep 109]|0D

"SpudJ] asAleuy
‘Bulures) ‘uswAhojdwe
0] SS920® 0 Aljenba
0] pJebas yim spuells
Aljenba uo ejep
aako|dwa Joluo
awoo2)no

aA3Iyde 0} suonay

uawAojdwae
ul Anunuoddo
0 Aljenba
ajowo.d pue
UOIlBUIWILIOSIP
JO uoleuIWId
oyl

ul 1SISSE 0}
uoIleUIWILIOSIP
|enuajod

JO seaJe
Anuspl o]

awoo1No
99IAIBS

(%9
‘10 ‘2Y
oy
Anjenb3z




Page 157

Imml

yby
uiejal pue
1nJo8l

0] ain|ie4

HH o16e1ens
JO pedH

6002
aunp

Syjuow 9 —
¥ Aana pjay sbunesy
wnio4 Aujenb3g

ay] WoJ} pa}Nsuod
aq ||IM WwNJ0

ay ] ‘wnio4 Aljenbg
YIIM UOIle}NSuod
panuiuoy

AL
|[ejospssu |
yey} saioljod +d

wawholdwg | €21y

peoT

0102 Aey

‘Jodal

|lenuue s yH olbajens
ul suoljeuIw.s}

pue saoueAsLIb
‘saulidiosip

‘Bulured) ‘suoijowo.id
‘luswAojdwo

1o} suoleoldde uo
uolfewojul ysiignd

600¢
1800190
sajep
Aoy

‘siseq Ajauenb

B uo piwelid

ul synsaJ ayl ysijgnd
pue elep asAjeuy
sainseaw $sadoNg

awo02)No
aAdIyoe 0] SUoIoY

awo2)no joY
aoInieS Aujenbg




Page 158

Ivml

Aujenbae Jo eZ'19
90UBUIBAOL) Buipuelsiepun |
pUE S2INIBS pue |95V EC

J11eIo0Wws( slaquia|\ abpajmousy Ld
O pesH palo8|d J0o} Bulurel | panosdw| | £2°IY
JUBISSOSSY
10edw)| Ayujenb3 ul
uoersibe] . pauleJ] aJe siaquaw
" Qm_ﬁﬁ_u\w 600¢ ABIN wnio Aujenb3
O} 8injied ‘sdnolb pejussaidal
SOOINIOS SRRl VP4
E.>__o_o AJenoiued ‘siaquiaw 50101100
; MaU sloeile "
pue 6002 |udy wnio4 Auenb3 Buissessy joedw|
suoloun;y Aljenb3 ui paajoAul
1no Aueo aq [|IM pue sai191j0d
ol Aujigeul 90pMIOM | JuswAojdwae Bunsixs
01 Buipeg| JO UOIlIPS Y2Ue\ JO UOISIASI/MBU
‘J1e1S 600¢ ul wnio4 Ayrenby jo Juawdojenap
Aurenb USIEBIN | a3 Bunowo.d apoiuy ayjuojasino |  seakojdwa

peoT

sajep

)Y

Sainsesaw SS9J3IJNg

awo02)No
aAdIyoe 0] SUoIoY

awo2)no joY
aoInieS Aujenbg




Page 159

Imml

labeue|
Juswdojena(
pue bululesa

soljunuoddo

Buure.y ol Apusp!
0] siauued buluue|d
Allunwwon yum MIopN

labeue
Juswdojena(
pue bulules

600¢
aunp

"$9SIN0J
Buiutes|-o Jo dn-aye]
alen|eAs 0] WolsAs
Buuoyuow e dn 199

‘paJinbal

SB $8SIN02 89B}-0}
-0k} OS|e pue ‘salhg
-ul-uJean ‘alsqem
Buiuiesl-a s |l1ouNoD
3y} Uo 9|ge|ieAr

8Q 0] 8NUIUOD
$9S4N09 Jey) 8INSuUd
:lJuswdojanaq ¥
Buiurel | - seakojdws
1o} Buiures |

labeue
Juswdojana(
pue Buluies

Sainsesaw SS9J3IJNg

soloualadwon
labeuepy aing

pue ||AB1y - siebeuew
loluas J10oj Buiures |

owod1no

aAdIyoe 0] SUoIoY

slaquia|\
po103|8 pue
soahojdwa
JO S|9A9|

||e Buowe
awo92)no
ChIVETS

9y
Ayjenb3




Page 160

|©m|

"BIpBW 0] sesuodsal
Bulionuow sapnjou|
‘Japuab Aq synsaei
ay] asAjeue pue
WwolsAgS Juswabeuey
Aoueoep s [10Un0)

JuswaAoidwi

10} seale Ajiuapl

0] uoljeoldde jo
Juiod ay1 1e paAisdal

‘'sdno.b
pajuasaidal
-Japun wou}
suoleoljdde

abeinoous
pue

siapuab yjoq
Jo sevhojdwa

YH o1berens ay} eIA syueodde Bjep sapjunijoddo Auenb |~ €9
jo peaH | Buiobup uo BJep 199|090 [enba JONUO | POOD JoBIMY | 2D ‘1D
ss800.4d sjeaddy
uonenjeAg qor ayi jJo
01L0c pamainal
uoISN|oUO0d BuiMo||0})
ounr St 8imonus Aed ainjonis Aed mau | anjea [enba jo
3y} JO JuBWISSOSSE | YoM Jo ‘sqol
seakojdwsa 1oUNo) 10edwi Ayijenba ue 1no | judajeAinba ul
£q pesijnn ase puE Buifired Ag Juswalels | Buiom usw
HH o16eiens m_o_m__m>m x__bmmh ae Aolj0d Aed jenb3g yum pue uswom
10 pesH : . aoueldwoo ainsug | JojAed jenbg | €H ‘1O

sajep

Aoy

S98S/N0J 8dk] 0] 8dk4
Sainsesaw SS9J3IJNg

awo02)No
aAdIyoe 0] SUoIoY

awoo1No
99IAIBS

9y
Ayjenb3




Page 161

INmI

peoT

10]1e2IpU| 9oUBWIOSd
AlunuoddQ enb3g

‘SJoules
10 %G pue %g do} 8y}
ul seafojdwe ajews)
J0 abejusalad Jaybiy
B 9ABY OYM S|IDUN0D)
Jayjo bunoeuod
Buipnjoul ao110e.d
1S9q JO seaJe Ajiuapl

110z |udy | eelodion panosdwy | OF UPIESSSIJONPUOD
‘sjueo|dde

‘sanss| AUe ssaIppe Uooo\nomm»:oocm

0] padojonap Abojeis . 0] sAem Ajlluapl

e pue payoseasas | O ‘Wniod Ayenb3 sy

6002 sI wnio4 Alenbg Buipnjour ‘usw pue
lagquiade( woJy yoegpoe | USWOM UM JInSUOD

sajep

)Y

Sainsesaw SS9J3IJNg

awo02)No
aAdIyoe 0] SUoIoY

awo2)no joY
aoInieS Aujenbg




Page 162

Iwml

peoT

0L0c
aunp

Salep

Aa)y}

soafojdwa
aAl10adsoud

pue seakojdws

l'e 0} pajowo.d

pue padojansp

s1 Aoljod Buiopn
8|qix8|4/buiyiomawioH
salnseaw $s82oNg

N
Aoueoea s 1Iounon

ay} uo Aoijod Buryiom
3|qIx8|4/buryiomawoH
ajowo.id

awo9lno
9AdIYyde 0] Suoijay

awo2)no joY
aoInieS Aujenbg




Page 163

Timetable of Equality Impact Assessments to be completed

Department Assessment Timetable | Comments
Chief Exec’s Health and|2008/09
Unit: Personnel Safety 2009/10
Personnel 2010/11
Training and
Management
Services
Chief Exec’s BV Review of 31/03/09
Unit: Strategic | Strategic
Finance Finance —
various actions
Community: Integrated
Planning and Children’s
Performance Service Plan | 31/03/09
2008-2011
Best Value
Review of
Social Work
Admin
Local
Housing
Strategy
Community: Literacy 31/03/09
Education Numeracy
Corporate: o Benefits 31/03/09 | Benefits Administration
ICT and Administratio postponed due to
Financial n complexity of service
Services delivery through multiple

o Sundry
Debtors

31/01/09

sites

Sundry Debtors on hold
until new debtors system
introduced in January
2009

-59 -




Page 164

Department Assessment Timetable | Comments
Operational: Streetscene | 31/03/09
Roads and Fortnightly
Amenity Refuse
Services Collection

Recycling /

Waste

Minimisation

Refuse

Collection
Operational: School Meals | 31/03/09
Facility Provision
Services Health and

Safety Policy

Hungry4

Success

Leisure and

Sports

provision

Charging

Policy
Development: | DS03: European | 28/02/09
Planning Unit activities

DS09: Core
Path Plan

Development: | DS08: 31/03/09
Transportation | Public/School
and Transport
Infrastructure provision

-60 -




Teb.'09

Page 165
Appenmix 2

Public Authority Advice Note: the Public Sector Duties and Financial

Decisions'

The recent downturn in the economic climate is likely to have a significant
impact on public authorities. Financial constraints have already resulted in
many authorities making important decisions about their operation and the
services they provide. These decisions include efficiency drives; budget
cuts; reorganisations and relocations; redundancies®: and service
reductions.

The Equality and Human Rights Commission is concerned that some
decisions may have a disproportionate effect on different groups of
people, and may be contrary to the statutory equality obligations to which
public authorities are subject.

Recent press reports substantiate these concerns, by suggesting, for
example, that women are more likely to be affected by redundancies than
men, as companies revise their maternity and flexible working policies in
an attempt to save money. R

While acknowledging the difficult economic environment in which public
authorities are now operating, the Commission is emphasising the
mandatory nature of the equality duties, and the importance of public
authorities meeting their duties when making significant decisions.

The equality duties

A positive duty on public bodies to promote race equality was introduced
in 2001, A duty to promote equality for disabled people came into effect
in December 2006°, and this was followed bg a duty to promote gender
equality which came into effect in April 2007".

While each duty places distinct legal obligations on public authorities,
collectively the duties have the common aim of ensuring that the public

' This document is not a definitive statement of the law. Authorities should consult with the relevant
Acts, Regulations and statutory Codes of Practice.

% The Commission has recently published guidance on redundancies and equality issues, A short guide
to managing the downturn and preparing for recovery. See http://www.here4business.net/a-guide-to-

redundancy/

® See http://www.timesonline.co.uk/tol/news/politics/article5581549.ece

* Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000
R Disability Discrimination Act 2005
® Equality Act 2006



Page 166

authorities work to eliminate discrimination and promote equality in their
activities.

This means that when developing proposals and making policy decisions,
including those about finance and service provision, public authorities
must comply with their statutory equality duties. Public authorities must
ensure that decisions are made in such a way as to minimise unfairness,
and do not have a disproportionately negative effect on people from
different ethnic groups; disabled people; and men and women.

Case study: Harrow’ - the importance of taking public sector equality
duties into account

To make savings in light of budget deficits, the London Borough of Harrow
proposed to restrict the provision of adult care services to people with
critical needs only.

A consultation and an equality impact assessment were carried out
regarding the proposed change. During this process, concerns were
identified that the proposed decision would have a differential impact on
particular groups of disabled people.

A report on the issues, including analyses of the results of the
consultation process and the equality impact assessment, was then
considered at a Cabinet meeting, where the Council decided to effect the
proposed change. However, the Disability Equality Duty, and the specific
obligations it places on the Council, was not explicitly brought to the
Councillors’ attention when they made the decision.

The Council's decision was challenged by service users. The Court held
that elected members could not come to a balanced conclusion without
being aware of what its responsibilities were under the Disability Equality
Duty. As a result, the decision to restrict adult care services was held to
be unlawful.

The equality duties are legal obligations which should remain a priority,
even in times of economic difficulty. The duties are an invaluable tool to
help ensure that decisions do not create or perpetuate inequality.

To ensure that they have complied with the equality duties, and to ensure
that any decision made do not unfairly discriminate, public authorities

"R (Chavda and others) v London Borough of Harrow [2007] EWHC 3064 (Admin)




Page 167

should carry out robust equality impact assessments, and consult and
involve relevant stakeholders, as part of the decision-making process.

Equality Impact Assessment

A key requirement of the public sector duties is for public authorities to
carry out equality impact assessment for all relevant policies and
decisions.

When public authorities are making financial decisions, it is vital that such
decisions are equality impact assessed; the impact assessment being
carried out when policy is initiated, as a central part of the policy
development process.

As well as being a legal obligation under the public sector duties, equality
impact assessment is an invaluable tool to assist authorities in ensuring
that the interests of all groups are properly taken into account when
difficult choices about resources are required.

Case study: Southall Black Sisters® - the need to impact assess
decisions

Southall Black Sisters (SBS) provides specialist services to Asian
and Afro-Caribbean women, particularly in relation to domestic
violence issues.

In June 2007, Ealing Council announced proposals to move away
from funding particular organisations (such as SBS), towards
commissioning services (including domestic violence services)
following a competitive bidding exercise.

Despite concerns raised during consultation that plans had not been
equality impact assessed, and that commissioning could disadvantage
grassroots community initiatives, Ealing decided to press ahead with its
proposals.

During discussions about criteria for commissioning domestic violence
services, SBS had highlighted the adverse impact the criteria could have
on pre-existing domestic violence services provided to women from ethnic

Lminority communities, and so-an-equality impact assessment should be

carried out.

! R (Kaur) v London Borough of Ealing [2008] EWHC 2062 (Admin)



Page 168

Ealing carried out belated impact assessments on proposals before
deciding to proceed with the existing domestic violence services
commissioning criteria, resulting in two SBS service users launching a
judicial review of the decision.

Ultimately, Ealing conceded these submissions and withdrew from the
case. However, in an oral judgement, Lord Justice Moses reiterated the
importance of undertaking an equality impact assessment, and also the
importance of carrying out an impact assessment before policy
formulation.

Impact assessment requires public authorities to consider all relevant,
available information in order to anticipate any likely negative impact on
people from different racial groups; on disabled people; or on men and
women,; and seek to avoid that negative impact by taking alternative
courses of action wherever possible.

For example, the equality duties require public authorities to consider the
potential impact of redundancies or reductions in service on race
relations. If ethnic minority staff are disproportionately affected by a ‘last in
first out’ redundancy policy, could this lead to tensions or a sense of
grievance in the community, as well as potentially being indirectly
discriminatory?

Similarly, under the Disability Equality Duty, public authorities are required
to promote disabled people’s participation in public life. ‘Public life’ is
defined very broadly in the statutory Codes of Practice’ and can include
participation in tenants’ associations, school councils, or in public
appointments. Decisions which restrict disabled people’s ability to
participate in such forums, for example by restricting access to community
transport, may hamper an authority’s ability to meet its statutory
obligations. Such decisions may also inhibit the organisation’s ability to
promote positive images of disabled people.

So in making a decision regarding funding or service provision, public
authorities must assess the potential impact of that decision, both positive
and negative, as regards race, disability and gender. Where further action
Is required, public authorities must take this into account. Should a public
authority be unable to avoid any potential negative impact which arises as
a result of the decision, this must be a key consideration of future action,

® For both the England and Wales, and Scotland, Codes of Practice, see
www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/forbusinessesandorganisation/publicauthorities/disabilityequalityd/Pa
ges/Codesofpractice1.aspx

4




Page 169

such as considering the effect of the decision when the financial situation
has improved.

The reality is that, in times of financial constraint, public authorities will
have to make difficult and often unpopular decisions regarding funding
and service provision. The public sector equality duties do not prevent
authorities making these decisions, provided that decisions are taken in
accordance with the duties.

The importance of consultation and involvement

Under Gender Equality Duty, public authorities must consult staff, service
users and other relevant bodies. Under the Disability Equality Duty,
authorities must promote disabled people’s participation and involve
disabled people. Involvement requires much more active engagement of
disabled stakeholders than consultation.

Public authorities should consult and involve relevant stakeholders before
making important decisions. By effectively consulting and involving
stakeholders, as an integral part of their decision-making processes,
public authorities will be able to make better decisions by getting a clearer
picture of the main equality issues in their work; gathering evidence to use
in carrying out impact assessments; and increasing transparency and
openness in decision-making.

Conclusion

Considering the economic climate public authorities are facing it is more
important than ever that authorities meet their statutory equality duties
when making decisions, particularly those regarding finance or service
provision.

All such decisions should be subject to robust impact assessment, which
should entail a sound consideration of relevant data to identify if the
decision may have a negative impact on particular groups, and seek to
avoid this. The decision-making process also requires effective
consultation and involvement with stakeholders to identify and address
relevant issues. When decisions are made, decision makers must have
the relevant data, including the results of equality impact assessment, and
of consultation and involvement, before them to ensure they reach and
informed decision.

Not only are public authorities under a legal obligation to meet the duties,
but the duties also constitute a tool for better decision-making, ensuring



Page 170

that decisions are taken in an accountable manner and do not adversely
affect different ethnic groups; disabled people; or men and women.



Page 171 Agenda ltem 10

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL Executive Committee

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 19 March 2009

REPORT ON PLANNING ON THE CONSULTATION BY THE SCOTTISH
GOVERNMENT ON HOUSEHOLD PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS

REPORT BY HEAD OF PLANNING SERVICES

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 As part of the Government’s modernising planning agenda, the
Government is looking at ways to relax planning controls in relation to
existing dwellinghouse (with few exceptions flats are not included).

1.2  The Government’s objective is to reduce the number of householder
applications in the order of 38%.

1.3 The full consultation paper can be viewed at the Department of
Development Services or on the Government’s web site at
www.scotland.gov.uk .

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS
2.1 It is recommended that:

(i) Members note the contents of the report.
(i) Forward the comments on each of the questions as detailed in
Appendix A.

3.0 SUMMARY OF THE MAIN CHANGES

3.1 The Government propose to increase the level of development by
householders which is allowed without applying for planning permission
by making the following key changes:

* Increasing the limit on such development within the curtilage of a
house from 30% to 40% of the curtilage;

* Increasing the proportional limit of the increase in the size of the
original dwellinghouse from 10% of the total internal floor area to
50% of the development footprint of the original dwellinghouse
(subject to a height limit);

* Relaxing the restrictions on roof alterations on certain rear and side
elevations to allow the construction of dormer extensions or other
extensions which enter the roof;



3.2

Page 172

Relaxing certain restrictions on development near roads;

Introducing new rights covering decking, small porches and
alterations to chimneys;

Introducing a single height restriction of 4 metres for separate
development within the curtilage of a dwellinghouse.

The Government intend to introduce the following changes to standard
conditions and restrictions to prevent overdevelopment as a result of
these changes:

An absolute limit of 60 square metres on the area of the curtilage of
the dwellinghouse which can be developed;

A limit of 40% on the area of the rear curtilage which can be
developed;

No permitted development within 1 metre of the property boundary;

No permitted development over 1 metre in height within 5 metres of
a road if it is nearer to the road than the original dwellinghouse.

4.0 KEY ISSUES RAISED BY THE CONSULTATION PAPER

4.1

* The proposal will result in significant changes to what individuals
can erect within the curtilage of a dwellinghouse without the
need for planning permission.

*  Whilst this will reduce perceived “red tape”, it could result in
increased privacy and amenity issues and neighbour disputes.

* There are a number of concerns with definitions, in particular
“Development Footprint” and “Principal Elevation”.

* Wil result in a reduction in planning fee income across Argyll
and Bute.

e Cumulatively and incrementally such permitted development
could undermine environmental quality in particular the built
heritage of our area.

5.0 CONCLUSIONS

5.1

The general thrust of the consultation is to reduce the need for
planning permission in respect of householder developments by up
to 38%. There is a general move towards greater restrictions in
Conservation Areas and Listed Buildings, but relaxing restrictions
elsewhere. This approach is generally to be welcomed but it is not

2



Page 173

considered that the full impacts on privacy and amenity have been
considered particularly in relation to the concept of a “Principal
Elevation” and increased thresholds for extensions, particularly
relative to terraces and semi-detached properties.

5.2 The ongoing issue of replacement windows in flatted properties is
highlighted, but it is not considered that a reasonable permitted
development right could be introduced due to the impact on the
overall visual quality of a flatted property. In this respect, the ability
to draw up reasonable and sensible permitted development rights
without extensive “exclusions” to protect the overall quality of the
building would be extremely difficult.

5.3 With some exceptions, the changes are to be welcomed, but could
lead to greater staff time being given over to privacy and amenity
complaints due to poorly thought out design and concepts. This in
turn could lead to a greater workload for enforcement officers and
permitted development right determinations.

6.0 IMPLICATIONS

Policy: The changes have no direct impact on Council
Planning Policy.

Financial: The change in permitted development rights are likely
to result in a reduction in income. The extent of the
reduction cannot be calculated due to the lack of
readily available analysis of householder applications.

Personnel: Without changes to definitions and concepts there
could be an increase in complaint investigations and
disputes between neighbours, thereby increasing
enforcement officer workloads.

Equal Opportunity: None.

Author: Neil McKay, tel no. 01546 604172.
Reviewing Officer: Angus Gilmour, tel no. 01546 604288



A1l.

Page 174

APPENDIX A — SPECIFIC QUESTIONS

Development Footprint

It is intended to move from a calculation involving floor area to “development
footprint” in order to calculate the need for planning permission.

Q1. Do you agree with this change from floor area to development
footprint/ground area?

Comment: It is considered that ‘development footprint’ rather than aggregate
floor area would be simpler to calculate for prospective developers and
officers. What constitutes “development footprint” however needs to be
properly defined, in particular in relation to “detached” structures within the
curtilage. Does it include a detached garage within 5 metres? (The definition
in Article 2 is unclear). The suggested percentage of “development footprint”
at 50% was considered quite high and needs to be reduced to 40% to be
consistent with the other percentages. The suggested proposals could allow
fairly long narrow extensions which could have amenity consequences,
particularly for semi and terrace dwellings. For example, a typical semi-
detached house could be provided with a 6 metre by 5 metre extension, were
it to be set 1 metre in from the boundary, which could raise significant amenity
issues.

Principal Elevation, Side Elevations and Rear Elevation

It is proposed to change the simple definition of what requires express
planning permission from an elevation facing a road, to a “principal elevation”

The Government’s proposed approach proceeds on the basis that most
houses have a “principal elevation”. This is generally defined with reference
to the door which forms the main or principal entrance to the house — this is
not necessarily the door most often used, but the one designed as the main
formal entrance to the house — usually the “front door”. This principal
elevation may not be the wall of the house fronting the street on which the
house is located and may not necessarily be the wall of the house which is
designed as the face of the house. In most cases the principal elevation is
easily identified and from that the rear (the elevation opposite the principal
elevation) and side elevations (those connecting the principal and rear
elevations) are self evident.

Comment: Contrary to what the consultation states the current permitted
development rights do not prevent development on elevations facing “roads”,
they just require express planning permission in some instances.

There is total opposition to the concept of “principal elevation” (determined by
the presence of the main entrance). There are lots of examples of houses
where the main public elevation of the building does not include a front door.
It is not uncommon to find a rear and a gable end door and no “front” door as

4



A3.

A4.

Page 175

such. This is particularly the case where houses face a main road but have
access from a minor or service road at the rear. House designs will often not
include a front door facing the main road. There is a continuing need to
safeguard all elevations fronting roads (unless the building was well set back
ie. greater than 20 metres). In the suggested scenario household
developments are likely to end up with all sorts of uncontrolled conservatories
decking etc. in what are front garden situations, where their presence could be
detrimental to the street scene and amenity. There is a need to retain a
simple definition, which would not be so readily open to “differences in
opinion” between neighbours, developers and the Planning Authority over
what is the “principle definition”. The retention of elevations facing a road (as
defined in the Roads (Scotland) Act) is simple and easy to understand.

Permitted Development Rights Near Roads

It is proposed to change the need for planning permission from within 20
metres of a “road” to within 5 metres and restrict development to below
1metre in height.

Q3. Do you believe that issues regarding road safety are sufficiently
addressed by the restrictions on PDR set out in Article 3 of the draft
Householder Permitted Development Order and the height limit of 1
metre within 5 metres of a road?

Comment: The existing 20 metre rule is considered overly restrictive. A
restriction over development 1metre in height within 5 metres of a road, as
suggested, would be more appropriate.

Development within Curtilage of a Dwellinghouse

It is proposed to rationalise and limit the development area within the curtilage
of a dwellinghouse to a maximum of 40% or up to 60 square metres,
whichever is the least.

Q4. Do you agree with the overall limit on development of the curtilage
(excluding the original dwelling) of 40%?

Q5. Do you agree with the additional limit on the development of rear
curtilage of 40%?

Comment: An overall limit of 40% excluding the original dwelling is felt
reasonable given the desire to exempt more developments from the need for
an application.

Q6. Do you agree with an absolute limit of 60 square metres?
Comment: An absolute limit of 60 square metres (as opposed to 30 now) is

felt reasonable given the desire to exempt more developments from the need
for an application.



A5.

AG6.

A7.

Page 176

Designated Areas

It is proposed to reduce the amount of permitted development rights
associated with dwellinghouses in Conservation Area and those relating to
listed buildings, but falls short of removing them altogether.

Q7. Do you agree with the additional conditions and restrictions on
householder PDR in conservation areas contained in the draft
Householder Permitted Development Order?

Q8. Do you agree with the additional conditions and restrictions on
householder PDR within the curtilage of listed buildings as set out in the
draft householder permitted development order?

Comment: It is not considered that a blanket ban on “permitted development”
rights in a conservation area would be necessary and therefore welcome the
additional restrictions proposed. The inclusion of gates, fences, surfaces and
walls which are often of particular significance in such areas is to be
welcomed.

Q9. Should there simply be no permitted development in relation to
conservation areas or the curtilage of listed buildings?

Comment: Itis considered that a blanket ban on “permitted development” for
listed buildings or conservation areas is unnecessary as this would exclude
even modest “development” from taking place, for example up to a 10 square
metre extension or a structure within its curtilage of up to 4 square metres.

World Heritage Sites

The consultation paper seeks views regarding the reservation of Permitted
Development Rights in World Heritage Sites or other such designated areas.
As this does not have a material bearing on Argyll and Bute, no comments to
Q10, 11 and 12 are offered.

Ramps and Handrails

The Scottish Government are seeking the Council’s view on how ramps and
handrails are currently treated in terms of Permitted Development.

Q13. In your experience, do planning authorities treat the addition of
ramps and handrails to the exterior of houses to assist the elderly or
disabled people as requiring an application for planning permission?

Comment: Argyll and Bute Council considers “disabled persons” access
under the existing Class 1, or as being de minimis if very minor works.



A8.

A9.

A10.

Page 177

Flats

There are currently no permitted development rights associated with flatted
properties, (except in relation to satellite and other antennas). The
Government is seeking the Council’s view on any possible extension to
permitted development rights, particularly in relation to windows.

Q14. Do respondents believe that replacement and alteration of existing
windows in flats, without altering the overall size of the window opening
should be permitted development?

Comment: Itis considered that fenestration in flats is an important issue. At
the very least it would be necessary to continue to control glazing pattern,
means of opening and colour to retain some cohesiveness in appearance
across a building, particularly in Conservation Areas. On balance it is
considered it would be difficult to frame permitted development rights if the
above issue were to be included.

Flagpoles

The Government is interested in the Council’s view to extend permitted
development rights to include flagpoles.

Q15. Do respondents believe there should be specific PDR to allow
flagpoles to be erected within the curtilage of a dwellinghouse?

Comment: It was not considered that there was any particular demand for
domestic flagpoles, at this point in time, however, if they became in vogue
there could be visual amenity issues. As such it is considered that the need
for an application remains. If flagpoles did become permitted, these should be
restricted to one only and should be no more than 3 metres in height.

Classes of Householder Permitted Development Rights

The classes in this order are structured to have specific classes of PDR for
various common forms of development. So, for example, decking has its own
class of PDR and cannot be carried out under the provisions of another class.
Some permitted developments may involve a combination of classes, eg.
where an extension to a house increases its development footprint and
requires an alteration to the roof of the original dwellinghouse, then the
development would have to comply with the restrictions and conditions which
apply to both Class 1 and Class 2 in order to benefit from PDR.

Q17 (Classes 1-12): Are the grant of permission and the restrictions and
conditions clear?

Will these controls release a significant number of proposals (see
paragraph 1.3) from the planning application process?

Will these PDR provide adequate controls on amenity?



A11.

Page 178

Are there any changes to the controls which might mean significant
further reduction in planning applications without undermining amenity?

Comment: The issue relative to siting microwave antenna “to minimise its
effect on the external appearance of a building” may well fail the six tests for
planning permission as it is not precise. This test needs to be omitted or
made precise in its definition. This also applies to when a microwave antenna
is no longer required; what is meant by “reasonably practicable”.

It is considered that the increase in thresholds would exempt more proposals
from the need for an application but it is difficult to quantify in terms of
numbers. It is considered that amenity considerations would undoubtedly be
prejudiced by the move towards “principal” elevation and that this was the
most significant flaw in the suggested proposals. No additional relaxations
are recommended.

Hardstandings within Dwellinghouses

At present various forms of hard surface, eg. paving stones, tarmac or mono
blocking can be carried out without permission. Some concerns have been
raised about this type of un-regulated hard surfacing adding to run off from
dwellings which, in times of heavy rainfall for example, can contribute to
flooding and the overflowing of drainage systems.

Q18. Do respondents agree with the addition of requirements on
drainage to PDR for new and replacement hard surfaces over an area of
5 square metres between the principal elevation and the road?

Comment: It is considered that controls re drainage/flooding arising from
hardstandings should not be a planning issue, particularly if consideration is
being given to bringing domestic sized areas under the Building Standards,
which would be more appropriate. This is particularly the case if a soakaway
is involved, which would require a building warrant. In such cases a
soakaway would need to be 5 metres from a boundary which could cause
technical problems, which should stay with Building Standards.

All General Questions

Q19. Do respondents think the changes to permitted development
rights as drafted will achieve the Scottish Government’s aim of
removing a significant amount of householder development from the
planning applications process?

Comment: Difficult to conclude whether additional exemptions will be
‘significant’, as there is no ready means to analyse existing applications.

Q20. If not, what particular alterations to the draft Householder
Permitted Development Order might significantly reduce the number of
householder planning applications?



Page 179

Comment: There are no additional controls that can reasonably be
suggested that would not raise privacy, amenity, design or road safety issues.

Q21: What effects might any suggested changes have on amenity
issues?

Comment: Itis considered that amenity issues would arise as a result of the
“principal” elevation approach (uncontrolled extensions at the front) and the
additional scale of extensions to the rear of attached properties (increased
percentage/area), particularly when it comes to extensions within 1 metre of
the boundary.

Q22: Do respondents believe that the provisions of the draft
Householder Permitted Development Order pay sufficient regard to the
impact on local amenity?

Comment: The introduction of a “principal elevation” in particular could lead
to all forms of dispute between neighbours, developers and planning
authorities, which could have significant effects on amenity. In this regard,
rather than reducing local authorities workloads and making it easier for
developers, there could be significant increases in complaints and time given
over to poor definitions and concepts. There is a need to keep definitions
simple, primarily “elevations fronting a road”. The potential scale of
development within 1 metre of the boundary could also result in a decrease on
amenity.

Q23: If not, what particular alterations to the draft Householder
Permitted Development Order might address some or all of these
issues?

Comment: Itis considered that a length limit on rear extension relative to
semi-detached and terraced properties would be helpful to limit impacts on
attached houses and resulting amenity.

Q24: What particular issues would you like to see addressed in the
guidance accompanying the changes to householder permitted
development rights?

Comment: Itis considered that a national advice note giving examples,
drawings and clarifying interpretation would avoid inconsistencies and aid all
parties.

The consultation raised a series of questions on Regulatory Impact
Assessment and Equalities Impact Assessment but it was considered that
these raised no particular issues.



Page 180

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 181 Agenda ltem 11

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL Executive Committee

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 19" March 2009

Proposed Development Plan Scheme

1 SUMMARY

1.1 The Council is required to produce a Development Plan Scheme and
associated Participation Statement by the Planning Etc. (Scotland) Act 2006.
The Development Plan Scheme is required to be published and be submitted
to the Scottish Government by 31%' March 2009. This Development Plan
Scheme relates to the next Local Development Plan and not the current Local
Plan which is nearing adoption. It will not affect the timetable for adoption of
the current Argyll and Bute Local Plan.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1  That the Council amends as appropriate and approves the Development Plan
Scheme attached in Appendix A of this report for publication and submission
to the Scottish Government.

3 BACKGROUND

3.1 As Members are aware the Planning System has been subject to
considerable change in an effort to make the process more efficient and
transparent. As part of this the Planning Etc. (Scotland) Act 2006 requires
each Planning Authority to prepare a Local Development Plan (LDP). The
LDP is an updated and combined version of the Structure Plan and Local
Plan. The Act also amends the preparation process and procedures
associated with the production of the Plan.

3.2  One such change is that Section 20B of the Planning Etc. (Scotland) Act 2006
requires each Planning Authority to prepare a Development Plan Scheme
(DPS) at least annually. The exact requirements for the content and process
of the LDP and associated DPS are set out in the Town and Country Planning
(Development Planning)(Scotland) Regulations 2008 which came into force
on 28" February 2009 and which was only issued to Councils in January
2009.

3.3 The DPS must set out the Council’s programme for preparing and reviewing
the LDP and what is likely to be involved at each stage. The DPS must
include a Participation Statement which details when, how and with whom
consultation on the LDP will take place, and the Council’s proposals for public
involvement in the Plan preparation process. Regulation 24 also requires the

1



3.4

41

Page 182

DPS to contain a timetable, specifying the month the Council proposes to
publish its main issues report and its proposed LDP along with when it
proposes to submit the LDP to the Scottish Government.

Once the DPS has been produced it is required to be published and copies
placed in all public libraries along with being submitted to the Scottish
Government. There is no requirement to consult on the content of the DPS.

CONCLUSION

The production and submission of a Development Plan Scheme is a
requirement of the Planning Etc. (Scotland) Act 2006 and should be published
and submitted to the Scottish Government by 31 March 2009.

IMPLICATIONS

Policy: The Development Plan Scheme sets out the timetable and
consultation process for the production of the new Local
Development Plan that will replace the current Development
Plan (Structure and Local Plan) in due course.

Financial: None.
Personnel: None.

Community: The Development Plan Scheme sets out the timetable and the
details and extent of the public consultation process for the
production of the Local Development Plan.

For further information contact: Fergus Murray

Telephone: 01631 604293



Page 183

Appendix A

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL -
DEVELOPMENT PLAN SCHEME

The Planning System

Planning affects most people at some point in their lives. The planning system includes
Development Plans. Both the procedures associated with the production of
Development Plans and the actual content and extent of Development Plans is
changing due to the new Planning etc (Scotland) Act 2006.

At the moment, a Development Plan is made up of both a Structure Plan and Local
Plans. They both contain statements (known as policies) which tell you where particular
types of development can and cannot take place. Decisions on planning applications
will normally be made in line with the Development Plan.

The Argyll and Bute Structure Plan was approved by Scottish Ministers in 2002. The
Structure Plan looks at strategic development issues in the long-term. It sets out how
much development should happen and broadly where it should take place.

The Argyll and Bute Local Plan set out more detailed policies and proposals on
precisely where particular development types should be allowed. It is envisaged that the
Argyll and Bute Local Plan will be adopted in the summer of 2009.

The Planning etc (Scotland) Act 2006 requires Argyll and Bute Council to replace the
existing Structure Plan and Local Plan with a single new plan, the Local Development
Plan (LDP). The LDP will set out our long-term vision for future development and land
use across Argyll and Bute.

The Loch Lomond and the Trossachs National Park Authority prepares the LDP for their
area within Argyll and Bute (see map below).



Page 184

Appendix A

Argyll and Bute
Local Development
Plan

and the Trossachs
National Park

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number 100023368, 2008

The LDP will be supported by other documents. These include Strategic Environmental
Assessment; Appropriate Assessment; Supplementary Planning Guidance and Action
Programme.

Strategic Environmental Assessment

In tandem with the production of the LDP, the Council is required to carry out Strategic

Environmental Assessment (SEA). A SEA is a process which helps identify how we can
implement development so that it minimises harm to the environment. The consultation
authorities, who are Scottish Natural Heritage (SNH), Scottish Environment

Protection Authority (SEPA), and Historic Scotland (HS), will assist us with the

SEA. Each stage of the SEA and its environmental report will be publically available for
viewing / comment.

Appropriate Assessment

As the new LDP is likely to have a significant effect on a European site an Appropriate
Assessment will also be required by Regulation 48 of the Habitats Regulations 1984
implementing Article 6(3) of the Habitats Directive (92/43/EEC). A European site is any
classified SPA, SAC, potential SPA, candidate SACs and listed Ramsar sites. The
Council will undertake the assessment and notify Scottish Natural Heritage of its
findings.

Supplementary Planning Guidance

The Council is also in the process of, or committed to producing Supplementary
Planning Guidance (SPG) which will sit alongside the Argyll and Bute Local



Page 185

Appendix A

Development Plan. This SPG provides more detail on the policies detailed in the LDP
and will make sure everyone involved in the planning process, particularly people
putting forward applications for development, are more aware of the Council’s stance on
particular development proposals.

Supplementary planning guidance will form part of the LDP and allows the Plan itself to
be shorter and easier to understand. We aim for the SPG to be approved and available
to use before or when the Argyll and Bute LDP is formally adopted.

The Council currently is of the view that the following SPG is required in association
with the LDP:

Developer Contributions

Planning for managing floods

Open Space Audit and Strategy

Area Capacity Evaluation methodology
Housing Density

Landscape Capacity Studies

Affordable Housing

Designing for Sustainability / Energy efficiency
Biodiversity

Renewable Energy Strategy / Onshore Windfarm Cumulative Impact Study
Woodland and Forestry strategy

Coastal Development Strategy

Greenbelt Masterplan

Crofting

Roads Standards

Housing Layout and Design

There may also be a need to publish site specific development briefs and / or
masterplans

Action Programme

The Council is also required to produce an Action Programme relating to the LDP. This
Action Programme sets out how the main actions set out in the LDP will be achieved
and will identify key organisations tasked with delivery. Action programmes are required
to be adopted and published within three months of the LDP being adopted and be
reviewed every two years.



Page 186

Appendix A

Development Plan Scheme Requirements

The Planning etc (Scotland) Act 2006 requires the Council to produce a Development
Plan Scheme (DPS).

The DPS is a document that sets out the Council’s programme for preparing and
reviewing the Argyll and Bute Local Development Plan (LDP). We will update the DPS
annually to inform people about how the Plan preparation is progressing.

The DPS includes:

e Timetable for producing the Argyll and Bute Local Development Plan;

e Processes involved at each stage of the Plan preparation; and

e Participation Statement (ie. how and when both individuals and organisations can
expect to be involved).

The DPS is sent to the Scottish Ministers.
You will be able to view the DPS in :

e All public libraries; Tarbert, Rosneath, Garelochhead, Cove, Cardross, Oban,
Helensburgh, Dunoon, Rothesay, Campbeltown, Lochgilphead,

e Council Headquarters Offices, Kilmory, Lochgilphead.

e Council Area Offices (with Planning Staff) in Oban, Helensburgh, Dunoon

e  Our website : www.argyll-bute.gov.uk

Production Timetable

The main stages in the production of the Argyll and Bute Local Development Plan and
the associated timescales are detailed in the table below.

Stage | LDP SEA Timescale
1 e Publish the Development e Prepare the Screening | March 2009
Plan Scheme. Report (which to Feb 2010
e Gather evidence to prepare identifies whether a
for Stage 2. SEA is needed) and
send to the
consultation
authorities.

e Publish this decision in
Newspapers and
website.

e Prepare a Scoping
Report




Page 187

Appendix A
(which identifies the
kinds of issues to be
looked at) and send it
to the consultation
authorities.
2 e Prepare and publish Main Undertake SEA. March 2010
Issues report.
e Consult people over 12
weeks.
3 e Prepare, publish and consult | Produce SEA report and Aug 2010
on the proposed LDP and carry out formal
Action Programme. consultation.
e Assess objections and
comments and provide
feedback.
4 e Prepare and consult on Revise the SEA in light of | Aug 2011
changes we make to proposed changes to the
the plan. LDP.
e Assess feedback from the
consultation and the results
of the SEA.
S e Hold a Public Local Inquiry March 2012
(PLI) (if necessary)
6 e Publish recommendations of | ¢ Revise the SEA in light | Dec 2012
the PLI. of proposed changes
e Publish any changes to the LDP.
e Adopt the LDP. e Adopt the SEA report
and publish a post-
adoption statement
(this says how we
have considered the
environmental report
and how we will
monitor the effects the
LDP has on the
environment).
7 e Put plan into place and Jan 2013
monitor our progress. onwards




Page 188

Appendix A

Participation Statement

It is imperative that meaningful participation and engagement takes place with a full
range of stakeholders in the production of the LDP. This participation and engagement
will be carried out in line with the provisions of PAN 81: Community Engagement —
Planning with People, and will be facilitated through the following :-

Workshops and public meetings;

Dialogue with key agencies and organisations;

Liase with Citizen’s Panel

Setting up special phone lines and e-mail addresses;

Providing a form where you can give us feedback;

Putting everybody who responds on a database for newsletters (sent regularly by e-
mail or post or just before consultation documents are issued);

Website based information and document releases;

Providing paper copies of documents at all libraries, council offices with planning
staff, and other important local facilities;

Providing CD copies of documents in response to individual requests;

Carryout appropriate Neighbour Notification.

The key agencies and organisations to be consulted will include (others may be added
in due course) the following :-

Public-sector organisations

Architecture and Design Scotland

British Telecom Scotland

British Waterways

Civil Aviation Authority

Crofters’ Commission,

Crown Estate Commission

Forestry Commission Scotland

Glasgow and Clyde Valley Strategic Development Plan Authority,
Health and Safety Executive

Highland Council,

Highlands and Islands Enterprise,

Historic Scotland,

HITrans,

Loch Lomond and the Trossachs National Park Authority,
Marine Safety Agency

Maritime and Coastguard Agency

Members of Parliament

Members of the European Parliament



Page 189

Appendix A

Members of the Scottish Parliament

Ministry of Defence

NHS (including primary care trusts)

Schools (primary, secondary, and private sector)
Scottish Ambulance Service

Scottish Association for Public Transport
Scottish Enterprise

Scottish Environment Protection Agency (SEPA),
Scottish Government Departments,

Scottish Natural Heritage (SNH),

Scottish Water,

Sportscotland

SPT

Stirling Council,

SUStrans

Transport Scotland,

University of the Highlands and Islands Millenium Institute (UHI)
West Dumbartonshire Council,

West of Scotland Archaeology Service

Private-sector and Community Groups and Organisations —

Action for Planning Transparency
Association for the Protection of Rural Scotland
Association of Scottish District Salmon Fishery Boards
Chambers of Commerce,
Community care forums
Community Councils,

Community health partnerships
Community Planning Partnership,
Community Self Build Scotland
Community trusts and partnerships
Council for Scottish Archaeology
Councillors

Crofters Union

Deer Commission for Scotland
Defence Estates

Disabled Access groups

Energy companies

Estates (large landowners)
Fisheries trusts

Friends of the Earth (Scotland)
Game Conservancy Trust



Page 190

Appendix A

Gypsy travellers

Heritage societies

Highlands & Islands Airports Ltd

Homes for Scotland,

Housing Associations (ACHA, Dunbritton, Fyne Homes, West Highland),
Interest groups,

Keep Scotland Beautiful

Landowners,

Local amenity groups,

National Farmers Union (Scotland)

National Trust for Scotland

Network Rail

Northern Lighthouse Board

Pensioners’ clubs,

Perth and Argyll Forestry Forum

Port authorities

Quarry Products Association

Ramblers Association Scotland

Religious Groups

Renewable energy industry,

Representatives of the development industry,
Residents Associations,

Residents’ associations

Royal Commission on Ancient and Historic Monuments
Royal Society for the Protection of Birds (Scotland),
Royal Town Planning Institute (Scotland)
Schools boards and parent councils,

Scottish and Southern Electricity,

Scottish Civic Trust

Scottish Coastal Forum

Scottish Council for Volunteer Organisations
Scottish Crofting Foundation

Scottish House Builders Association

Scottish Renewables Forum

Scottish Rights of Way and Access Society
Scottish Rural Property and Business Association
Scottish Wildlife Trust

Sea Fish Industry Authority

The Architectural Heritage Society of Scotland
The Woodland Trust Scotland

Visit Scotland

Youth Development Officer

Youth forums



Page 191

Appendix A

General Public —

Innovative consultation methods will be adopted to ensure as many people as possible
can engage with the preparation of the LDP. Particular measures will be undertaken to
encourage certain groups (for example, people with mobility issues, people under 35,
people in full-time work, unemployed people, travellers and ethnic minorities) that have
been less involved in the planning process in the past than other groups of people.

We will make your responses and our feedback available for viewing at each stage and
report back on your responses to our Councillors at key stages.

Participation Timetable

General; DPS & Issues report : Summer 2009 — Spring 2010

Involving :-

Elected Members, members of the public; community groups; private and public sector;
main agencies; consultation authorities.

Form of Consultation:-

e Summary leaflets - making leaflets available to community councils, and sending
them to people who send us application forms for planning permission and building
warrants.

e Targeting hard-to-reach groups — by making leaflets available in job centres, to
travellers’ communities, college students, large employers, and minority
associations.

e Press release and articles in newspapers.

e Providing feedback forms online and in hard copies to ask your views on the ways
we have involved you.

e Providing the scheme and leaflets online and in libraries.

e Making leaflets available in public buildings such as doctors’ surgeries, council
service points, council offices with planning staff and in libraries.

e Asking schools and colleges what they think is important and how we could
communicate with them most effectively.



Page 192

Appendix A

e Launching the development plan scheme (to include community groups, main
agencies and consultation authorities, business groups, and so on). Giving
information to community councils.

Issues Report outcomes; LDP; SEA & Modifications to LDP

Phase Date Consultation Period
Issues Report March 2010 12 weeks

LDP August 2010 12 weeks

SEA Sept 2010 12 weeks
Modifications to LDP August 2011 6 weeks

Involving :-

Elected Members, members of the public; Community groups; Private and public sector;
Main agencies; Consultation authorities;

Form of Consultation :-

e Exhibitions or displays in mobile libraries and libraries, shopfronts and shopping
centres.

¢ Information days or newsletters for the wider public, focusing on hard-to-reach
groups and particular issues.

e Workshops for particular sections of the community.
e Attend meetings held by community councils and community groups.
e Holding ‘sounding board’ meetings.

e Set up an Argyll and Bute wide forum to include focus groups and workshops to
look at ways of picturing on a computer the main issues in the report.

e Schools — working with schools to develop a way of getting
e contributions from young people.

e Go to community forums and youth forums and get people’s views on the report.

e Provide feedback forms online and in hard copies to review methods of involving
people.




Page 193

Appendix A

¢ Hold information days and focus groups.

e Publish information in our newsletter, sending e-mails to people who are on our list
of people to involve.

e Possible roadshow, providing an exhibition in different areas in accessible locations.
¢ Provide documents online and in different languages if required.

e Make a response form available online and in paper so you can give us your views
about the changes.

e Put feedback forms online, and send out paper copies, so you can tell us what you
think of the ways we involved you.

Contact Details

If you wish to comment on the Development Plan Scheme you can do so in the
following ways:-

Phone the Development Policy Unit (Mon — Fri : 9am — 5pm) on:
General — Sheila McKenzie - 01546 604140

Bute, Cowal and Kintyre — Paul Convery — 01546 604278
Helensburgh and Lomond — Mark Lodge — 01546 604280

Mid Argyll, Islay and Jura — Sybil Johnson — 01546 604308

Oban, Lorn and the Islands — Adrian Jackson-Stark — 01546 604312
Development Policy — Fergus Murray — 01546 604312

Send an e-mail to:
sheila.mckenzie@argyll-bute.gov.uk

Write to:

Development Plan Scheme
Development Policy

Argyll and Bute Council
Kilmory

Lochgilphead

Argyll

PA31 8RT



Page 194

Appendix A

You are welcome to visit our main office (by appointment) at:
Development Policy

Argyll and Bute Council

Kilmory

Lochgilphead

Argyll

PA31 8RT

Our website is at
www.argyll-bute.gov.uk
Relevant documents will be placed on this website.

If you need help reading this document (for example, if you need it in a different
language or another format such as in larger text or on audio tape), please phone
Sheila McKenzie on 01546 604140.



Page 195 Agenda ltem 12

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL EXECUTIVE
19 MARCH 2009

TWINNING VISIT TO KORCULA

1. SUMMARY

1.1 This report sets out proposed arrangements for the twinning visit to
Korcula.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 To agree the terms of the report.

3. DETAIL

3.1 The Executive agreed at its meeting on 20 November 2008 to refer
the Provost’s Office the invitation from the Croatian Government to
re-establish the twinning link between Bute and Korcula which was
established by Sir Fitzroy Maclean due to his service to the people
of Croatia after the second world war.

3.2 The Executive agreed to refer to the Provost to consider the
arrangements for such a visit.

3.3  After consultation with the Provost it has been proposed that the
following arrangements should apply.

3.4  The Council should send a delegation with the intent of discussing
how formal twinning links can be re-established and that this
delegation be comprised of
Councillor Isobel Strong, the Depute Provost

Councillor Bruce Marshall, the Chair of the Bute & Cowal Area
Committee.



Page 196

3.5 Itis proposed that they should be accompanied by an officer who
would provide administrative support to the discussions with the
Korcula authorities around how the twinning links might be re-
established to the benefit of both the communities in Croatia and
Argyll and Bute.

3.6 There would therefore be costs incurred in terms of the travel for
the delegation.

3.7  The delegation would report back to a future meeting of the
Executive on the outcome of their meeting on the agreements
reached in terms of re-invigorating the Twinning arrangements.
Members will recollect that the President of Croatia had expressed
an interest in seeing these relations re-established and it would
therefore seem of considerable significance to Croatia that these
links with Argyll and Bute are re-established and therefore the
Council should be minded to participate actively in re-establishing
close contact with the community of Korcula.

3.8 It has been suggested that the Council might wish to extend an
invitation to Sir Charles MacLean (Sir Fitzroy’s Son) to be part of
the Council’s party in meeting with the Korcula representatives if
he were minded to be travelling to Korcula at this time. It does
seem to be an excellent suggestion and the question for the
Executive would be whether they would wish to invite Sir Charles
to attend with the Council delegation.

4. IMPLICATIONS

Policy The Council has a long established twinning
link with Korcula it would seem in the
Council’'s best interest to seek to re-
invigorate this relationship.

Legal None
Personnel None
Financial The costs of travel to Korcula.

For further information contact Charles Reppke on extn. 4192.

3 March 2009



Page 197 Agenda ltem 13

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL EXECUTIVE
19 March 2009
CORPORATE SERVICES

EXTRACT OF MINUTE OF ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT POLICY AND
PERFORMANCE GROUP 11 FEBRUARY 2009

5. PORT ASKAIG REDEVELOPMENT

The PPG considered a report dated 30" January 2009 by the Head of Roads &
Amenity Services outlining the history of the Port Askaig redevelopment project and
reporting on the contractual issues associated with the recently completed Phase 2
Marine Works contract, customer expectations and project management issues.

Decision:
It was agreed:

1. That the history of this project demonstrates systemic problems with the
process for letting and monitoring large capital projects;

2. That insufficient time was given to consider the consequences of the cost
increases;

. To agree to recommend to the Executive that, in view of the degree of
overspend, this project be subjected to financial audit;

4. To request that the Head of Strategic Finance consider the following issues
when compiling his report on procurement of large capital projects, to be
submitted to the June meeting of the PPG:

e The implementation of more robust procedures for estimating costs;

e That it should be identified at an early stage where there are insufficient
professional resources in-house to process matters relating to large
capital projects, and that where such instances are highlighted
consideration should be given to outsourcing such expertise, and the
project pricing adjusted accordingly;

e Thatlegal and financial services are represented on all Project Boards;

e Elected Members to be kept informed of any material changes to large
capital projects;

e To reaffirm the use of the Prince 2 approach to contract management;

e That alternative options for Contractual procedures be considered for
both physical works and consultancy; and

5. That Councillor Currie be provided with a copy of the Port Askaig



Page 198
Redevelopment Contract, together with detail of the £120,000 spend on road
repairs referred to in paragraph 3.18 of the report.

(Ref: Report dated 30" January 2009 by the Head of Roads & Amenity Services,
submitted)



Page 199

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PPG

OPERATIONAL SERVICES 11 FEBRUARY 2009

PORT ASKAIG REDEVELOPMENT

PURPOSE

The Mid-Argyll, Kintyre and the Islands Area Committee had requested that
the Organisational Development Policy and Performance Group examined the
way this project had been handled. A report was submitted to the Executive
meeting on 18 December 2009 and they confirmed that the report should be
referred to the PPG.

This report outlines the history of the project, reports on the contractual issues
associated with the recently completed Phase 2 Marine Works contract,
customer expectations and project management issues.

Questions raised by the Mid-Argyll, Kintyre and the Islands Area Committee
along with answers have been included as an appendix to this paper

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the PPG note the contents of the report and the
actions already undertaken to mitigate against such overspends in the future
and note that the project has provided a high quality facility to maintain the
future ferry services to Islay and Jura for a cost of only £3,118,705 to the
Council

PROJECT HISTORY

In 1999 the Scottish Executive created a Public Transport Fund and invited
Councils to bid for the available funding.

There were considerable problems at Port Askaig with traffic congestion
caused by an inadequate mustering area and the poor structural condition of
the mainland ferry linkspan and the aligning structure for the Jura ferry berth.

A bid for funding for a project estimated to cost £5,500,000 was submitted in
August 1999. An award of £3,750,000 was made in January 2000. The new
access road and mustering area were estimated to cost £3,200,000, the
Terminal building £450,000 and the Marine works £1,850,000. The Council’s
contribution to the works was estimated at £560,000 with an expectation of the
balance coming from ERDF and Marine Grants.



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

Page 200

It was decided at an early date that the project would have to be phased due
to the restricted area at the pier and the specialisation of each of the three
phases. The new access road and mustering area would be constructed first
to remove the congestion from the Port Area. The specialist marine works
would be the second contract with the pier buildings following last once the
marine contractor had cleared the pier area to give sufficient room for access
for the construction of the buildings.

Waterman Consultants were appointed in March 2000 to assist with the
planning process as there was a new requirement for an environmental impact
assessment.

The design of the access road and mustering area was carried out inhouse by
Roads Design. Arch Henderson were appointed for the design and
supervision of the marine works. Facility Services were appointed for the
design and supervision of the building works

Preliminary consultations with Scottish Natural Heritage required a complete
change to the proposed layouts of the port area as they required the existing
pier buildings to be retained against the setting of the cliff faces. This required
significant changes to the proposed design of the mustering area.

A public exhibition of the proposals was held in Bowmore on 24/25 July 2000

Planning was submitted and approved by the Council on 8 November 2000.
There were no formal objections to the planning application. In January 2001
the Scottish Executive called in the application and a public inquiry was held in
May 2001. Planning was approved in September 2001.

In September 2001 the project estimates were revised to £6,201,000. The
main reason for the cost increase was due to changes to the design of the
mustering area. The new access road and mustering area were estimated to
cost £3,640,000, the Terminal building £500,000 and the Marine works
£1,785,000

In April 2002 estimated project costs were continuing to rise and the decision
was taken to revise the design of the access road by reducing the design
standard and thus the costs. This required changes to the environmental
impact assessment and a new planning application was submitted on 20
August 2002 and approved on 24 December 2002

In October 2002 a marine grant from the Scottish Executive was secured for
£970,500. Estimated project costs had risen to £6,896,000. Design and the
Phase 1 works were estimated at £4,429,000, Marine works at £1,700,000
and the buildings at £767,000

Tenders for the phase 1 contract for the parking and mustering were issued
on 1 November 2002 and returned on 16 December 2002.

The phase 1 works had a significant volume of excavated materials to dispose
of. Landfill regulations and land fill tax cost implications led to a rethink of how



3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

3.24

Page 201

to dispose of this material and delayed the start of the phase 1 works until 7
July 2003

In August 2003 ERDF grant of £2,240,000 was confirmed

The tender value of the Phase 1 contract was £3,101,868.00 after adjustment
for the delay of the acceptance beyond the 3 months tender period (This was
an increase of £243,000). Allowing 10% for contingencies the estimated cost

of the contract works was expected to be £3,400,000 at the construction start.
The contractor was | & H Brown.

The site works were completed by 19 November 2004.

The final certified payment to the contractor was £3,291,989. The cost of the
Gate Lodge House was removed from the contract at a value of £120,000 as
was the cost of the road repairs between Port Askaig and Ballygrant at
£120,000. Therefore the comparative value should be £3,531,989 when
compared to the construction start estimate of £3,400,000. £105,803 was
deducted in liquidated damages so the cost to the Council was £3,426,186.

The contract was completed 98 days late but an extension of time of 58 days
was awarded making the contractor 40 days late in completion of an original
contract of 56 weeks. A 10 day extension of time was awarded for adverse
weather, 7.5 days for delays in moving services and 40.5 days for increases in
the volume of rock excavated.

The complexity of the design, the need for two major redesigns, two planning
submissions, two new houses, a petrol station, mitigation of landfill tax costs
and a public inquiry increased the design costs for inhouse staff and external
consultant to £770,000 from an original estimate of £200,000. The phase 1
contract received a Saltire Society Project Commendation in 2005, confirming
the high quality of the design.

The inability to reuse the dressed stone from the demolished gate house led
to significant delays and increased costs for the new gate house from
£120,000 to £354,800

The final cost of the Phase 1 works, including all the design costs was
£5,220,000 against an original estimate of £3,200,000 in 1999 and £4,429,000
in October 2002. | & H Brown were considered to have performed well and did
not pursue any significant claims after completion of the works.

Construction of the marine works should have followed on in 2005 after the
completion of the phase 1 work but this was delayed as land entry was not
available.

In December 2004 the project estimated costs had risen to £8,353,710 with
the marine works estimated to cost £2,800,000 and the pier buildings
£672,000. The marine grant was increased to £1,474,000. This gave a total
income of £7,464,000



3.25

3.26

3.27

3.28

3.29

3.30

3.31

Page 202

Tenders for the marine works were issued on 11 January 2006 and returned
on 9 March 2006. The tender submitted by Carillion was the lowest at
£4,284,078.64. Acceptance was not made within the required 90 days as land
entry was not available. The Council had to accept the application of Baxter
indicies to cover additional costs attributable to the delay in accepting the
tender. The acceptance was issued on 25 August 2006 and the contract start
date was 9 October 2006. It was a 48 week contract.

The tender was 71% higher than the estimated cost of £2,500,000. There was
only a difference of £178,000 between the three lowest tenders indicating that
the tenders were competitively priced. The increase in cost was attributable to
high demand for marine works and costs of steel.

In recognition of the increasing costs of marine works the marine grant from
the Scottish Executive was increased to £3,642,000 in July 2006. The project
costs were now estimated at £10,810,000. £5,280,000 for the phase 1 works,
£4,780,000 for the marine works and £750,000 for the pier buildings. The
income was £9,632,000 making the Council contribution £1,178,000

Another factor in the decision to continue with the works was that the aligning
structure for the Jura ferry was in a state of collapse and the existing linkspan
was in a very poor structural condition. The linkspan was in fact closed in early
2007 forcing the diversion of all mainland ferries to Port Ellen. If the works had
not been undertaken it is likely that the Jura vehicular ferry service would also
have been lost due to failure of the aligning structure.

Carillion were 11 weeks late in completing the installation of the new linkspan
and 23 weeks late in completing all the works. The works were completed on
18 January 2008

Variations to the works during the contract included additional work to the
mainland berth extension due to poor rock conditions, variations to buried
features at the location of the linkspan foundations and significant variations to
the rock levels for the new Jura ferry berthing structure. These will lead to
increased costs and an extension of time. In November 2007 Arch Henderson
estimated the final costs to be £5,984,785. In June 2008 Arch Henderson
estimated the final cost that may be claimed by Carillion to be £6,167,714 but
this was not based on detailed claims from Carillion so has not been included
in the budget estimates

Since completion of the works Carillion have been very slow at substantiating
claims for additional costs and extensions of time and many of the staff
involved in the works have left Carillion. In late November 2008 Arch
Henderson received a substantial claim valued at approximately £2,500,000
taking the construction costs to a possible £6,784,000. This claim is still being
examined but it is unlikely that Arch Henderson will agree this value. The
current estimate of £5,984.785 has therefore been retained. This includes an
estimate of £1,700,000 to cover claims and additional work of which £600,000
has been paid to date.



3.32

3.33

3.34

3.35

3.36

3.37

3.38

3.39

3.40

3.41

3.42

3.43

Page 203

There is a concern that the majority of the Carillion staff involved in the project
have left and this will make agreement of final measurement and claims
difficult. Arch Henderson expect to have asessed the claim early in 2009.

Under the contract the maximum allowable liquidated damages are £125,000
and these have been deducted from monies due to Carillion

Arch Henderson fees have risen substantially due to the long delay in issuing
tenders, the extended construction time and the complexity of the claims.

Estimated fees in 2003 were £70,000 and in 2006 £194,000. The current
estimate fee cost is £535,000

2007/08 was the last year in which marine grant was available. In recognition
of the increasing costs at Port Askaig the Scottish Government included an
additional £1,000,000 in the Council’s capital block allocation in 2009/10 for
Port Askaig

The issue of tenders for the Pier Buildings was delayed until Carillion could
clear the pier area to allow the pier building contractor access. Tenders were
issued on 18 September 2007 and returned on 26 October 2007 as at that
time Carillion were indicating completion of the site works by November 2007.

The lowest tender was submitted by Maclnnes Brothers Ltd at £844,663.58
after correction. Before acceptance was issued Maclnnes Brothers withdrew
their tender so the tender was awarded to the second lowest which was M & K
MacLeod Ltd with a corrected value of £904,351.79.

In December 2007 Hitrans awarded a grant of £300,000 towards the cost of
the pier buildings

The tender was accepted on 24 January 2008 and the start date was to be 10
March 2008. The contract period is 42 weeks. M & K MacLeod were delayed
in starting as Carillion had not cleared the pier area. The delay was 6 weeks.
The actual start date was 21 April 2008.

M & K MacLeod are expected to complete the works by March 2009 and
within the budget of £995,000

On completion of the pier buildings a small contract will be let for the road
resurfacing and footways between the pier building and the Post Office.
Landscaping works in the mustering area are expected to be undertaken in
the Spring 2009. Work is in hand to obtain a standby generator for the
linkspan.

The current estimated project cost is £13,146,000. The total income is
£10,027,295. The cost to the Council is £3,118,705 of which £1,000,000 is
covered by the additional capital block allocation. Claims resolution of the
Phase 2 Marine Works contract is still outstanding and could lead to further
cost increases.



4.1

411

41.2

413

414

415

4.1.6

4.1.7

41.8

Page 204

PHASE 2 MARINE WORKS CONTRACT

The section of the report addresses the performance of Arch Henderson, the
external consultant appointed to design and supervise the construction of the
marine works, Carillion, the contractor appointed to construct the works and
the issue of the public expectations from the works.

Arch Henderson — External Marine Consultant

In April 2000, six consultants with experience in marine work were asked to
submit a pre-qualification tender for a feasibility study, final design and
preparation of tender documentation for the marine works. Timescales
required the planning application information by end July 2000 and tender
documentation by the autumn of 2001.

The timescales were very short as it was driven by the need to meet the
expenditure profile of the Public Transport Funding award

Three consultants were asked to give a presentation on their proposals on 11
May 2000. Arch Henderson was successful and appointed on 15 May 2000.
The appointment was based on hourly costs as it was not possible to fully
define the work required at this stage.

For future contracts consideration has been given to appoint a consultant for
the design work on a fixed price. This approach would require committed
timescales as delays would lead to cost increases. There is also a concern
with a fixed price design contract that the quality of the work may diminish if
the consultant was nearing his cost limit and there is no incentive for the
designers to improve their designs. They would produce the design that was
cheapest to design rather then cheapest to build.

Another alternative considered was a target contract where a target price is
set and the profits/loss are shared between the Council and the consultant.
These are complex to set up and lead to high target prices to ensure a profit
rather than a loss. They also do not encourage efficient design.

The preliminary design work was completed and the planning information was
submitted on time. However due to the public inquiry planning was not
approved until September 2001. The consultant had been appointed with a
specific condition that detail design was not to commence until planning
approval was received to give the Council the opportunity to terminate the
contract if the planning was unsuccessful.

As the works were phased Arch Henderson was under no pressure to
complete the design until completion of phase 1 works. No significant final
design work was undertaken until 2004 when Arch Henderson again
committed resources to completing the design for a 2004 tender issue. The
tender issue was delayed until January 2006 by the Council’s failure to obtain
land entry.

At the time of tender acceptance for construction of the marine works Arch
Henderson fees were £142,603 for a contract estimated to cost £2,500,000



Page 205

(5.7%) However at this time Arch Henderson advised that there was still detail
design required on some elements of the work and that this would be
undertaken during the construction period. This is normal for marine works to
avoid abortive design work if unforeseen conditions are encountered.

4.1.9 Arch Henderson was appointed to undertake the site supervision works as
Roads Design did not have the necessary resources available. This was again
at cost. It is normal practice to pay for site supervision at cost as the levels of
supervision required can vary depending on the site conditions and associated
problems and the performance of the contractor.

4.1.10 Arch Henderson supervised the works on site from October 2006 to March
2008 at a supervision cost of £221,774 on a contract tender value of
£4,282,078 (5.2%). These are very low supervision costs for a contract that
extended from 44 weeks to 81 weeks and which required extensive travelling
costs for site staff. Supervision costs are currently estimated at £230,000 to
allow for dealing with claims and final measurement.

4.1.11 Arch Henderson undertook the remaining design work during the construction
as well as additional design work to deal with unforeseen conditions. This
raised the final design fees to £303,140. Arch Henderson charges all non site
based staff costs as design costs but some may relate to what we would
classify as site supervision costs. The total fee costs are £533,140 which is
12.4% of the tender cost for the marine works.

4.1.12 These fee levels are considered to be high but a significant element is
attributable to the contractor’s poor performance. The Council extended an 18
month contract into one covering 8 years. The construction period extended
from 44 weeks to 85 weeks and we are currently going through protracted
claims and final measurement issues. Once the design work commenced it
would have been very difficult to change the consultant and at the start of the
contract works there was no reason to consider such an action as the fees
charged were reasonable.

4.1.13 Had we used a lump sum contract for the design work the Council would have
been liable for constant variations due to the long delays during the design
period.

4.1.14 With hindsight we should have kept a better control on the completion of the
design work and had a better appreciation of the amount of design work that
was outstanding at the time of the appointment of a contractor. Overall Arch
Henderson have performed well in accepting the long time delays during the
design period and have delivered the design work to match the contract
requirements. We suspect that at times Arch Henderson were under
resourced but considering the extreme timescale changes it would be unfair to
make this a significant criticism.

4.1.15 The initial timescales for the project, required by the PTF funding were totally
unrealistic for a project of this size and complexity. The introduction of the
requirement for Environmental Assessments and the problems raised by the
landfill tax regulations contributed to the delays. The biggest cause of delay to
the marine works was the Council’s inability to secure the required land entry.



4.2

4.21

422

423

424

Page 206

Carillion - Contractor

Tenders were issued for the construction of the marine works on 11 January
2006. The tender could not be accepted within the 90 day period and the
Council had to negotiate with the contractor for additional costs before the
tender was accepted on 25 August 2006. The position was further
complicated by the fact that tenders had been issued to Mowlem but they
were taken over by Carillion before the acceptance was issued.

At the time of the tender issue the construction costs were estimated at
£2,500,000. The lowest tender was £4,284,078. There was only a difference
of £178,000 between the three lowest tenders indicating that the tenders had
been competitively priced. Arch Henderson and the Scottish Executive Marine
section agreed that there had been substantial increases in the costs of
marine works throughout Scotland. There was a considerable pressure to
commence the works due to the poor structural condition of the Jura berth
aligning structure and the existing linkspan. The tender was therefore
accepted.

Carillion’s progress on the contract became a concern early in the contract.
The mainland ferry was diverted from Port Askaig in January 2007, rather
than in March 2007 for a period of only 4 weeks, due to the closure of the
linkspan after a structural inspection. Carillion failed to capitalise on this
benefit and only completed the linkspan closure some 11 weeks later than
required. The progress by Carillion continued to be poor and towards the end
of the contract was very poor. The site works were completed on 1 May 2008
some 37 weeks late. Carillion failed to meet their commitment for clearing the
pier area and this led to a delay in the start of the pier building contract.

Carillion suffered several failures of their temporary works which caused
concern and delayed the completion of the works. There were some
necessary variations to the works for which Carillion will be entitled to an
extension of time. Evaluation of this extension of time has been hampered by
the lack of detail information from Carillion. Intimated variations to the works
(but not agreed) are:

Weather delays £59,000
Additional shipping movements £17.000
Poor rock at new dolphin extension £160,000
Fractured rock between dolphin and main pier £193,000
Delays in completing the link span £338,000
Replace RNLI mooring £43,000
Linkspan variations £54,000
Dowels to piles on Jura berth £84,000
Misc works £160,000
23 weeks prolongation costs £402,500
Additional insurance costs £20,000
Baxter indicies £257,000




Page 207

4.2.5 Carillion had intimated the basis for some claims but did not supply supporting
information until November 2008. This information is now being assessed by
Arch Henderson. They have intimated a claim value in the region of
£2,500,000

4.2.6 The assessment of the claim has to be carried out by Arch Henderson who
supervised the construction works. They check the factual content of the claim
in relation to their site records and assess the contractual validity to see if the
Council is liable for the costs claimed. Roads Design staff will then over view
any proposed settlement before authorising payment. If Carillion do not accept
the settlement offered they have the right to take the dispute to adjudication
and or arbitration.

4.2.7 Many of the Mowlem staff that moved to Carillion at the start of the contract
have now left Carillion and this will make agreement of final measurement and
settlement of claims more difficult.

4.2.8 This contract was let under the ICE Conditions of Contract, Sixth Edition and
the method of measurement was the Civil Engineering Standard Method of
Measurement (3" Edition)

4.2.9 These contracts do not allow for penalties for late completion. Liquidated
damages can be applied but they are expressly forbidden to be a penalty and
only allow for costs incurred by the late completion. In this contract liquidated
damages were set for failure to reopen the linkspan at £10,000 per week with
a limit of £100,000 and £2,500 per week for completion of the whole of the
works at £2,500 per week with a limit of £25,000. The normal expectation is
that a contractor will complete the works as quickly as possible to minimise his
site overhead costs.

4.2.10 Once a contractor starts to under perform on a contract there is little the
Council can do until it reaches a point where the Council may wish to
terminate the contract. This is an extreme measure and would no doubt be
contested in court by a contractor.

4.2.11 We have considered introducing penalty clauses for late completion but
unless the works can be very strictly defined with little chance of variations to
the requirements such clauses would be very difficult to enforce.

4.3 Customer Expectations

4.3.1 The marine works contract has attracted significant adverse reactions from
users of the harbour and the Jura ferry. This is unfortunate as it detracts from
the significant benefits the project has provided.

4.3.2 The Harbour Users Association have implied that the design of the inner
harbour is sub-standard as it does not provide sufficient depth for large fishing
vessels, it does not provide all year sheltered berthing and that the new
berthing deck level is too low and is flooded by the high tides. None of these
items were objectives of the design brief. The main requirement was to
provide a new safe berthing structure for the Jura ferry.



4.3.3

434

4.3.5

4.3.6

4.3.7

5.1

5.2

5.3

Page 208

An open structure could have been constructed and this would have left the
inner harbour fully exposed to all weather conditions, closed off when the Jura
ferry was berthed and with no increased capacity. By constructing a solid
structure we have been able for little additional cost to meet the objective of a
safe berth for the Jura ferry and also to offer significant improvements for the
users of the inner harbour. The harbour users have developed expectations
that were not requested or offered during the design phase.

The Jura ferry users suffered considerable disruption during the works and
this was prolonged by the long delays in completion by Carillion. The new
linkspan was increased in size specifically to allow the Jura ferry to be able to
use it through all states of the tide. The design objective was to create a safer
method of loading the Jura ferry and this has been achieved. The fixed ramp
at the berthing structure was retained to allow Jura ferry sailings if the linkspan
was out of use and for the eventual extension, if required, to a 1 in 8 fixed
ramp in the future.

Since the design was completed the mainland ferry has started berthing
overnight at Port Askaig preventing access for the Jura ferry. This has led to
increased use of the fixed ramp and highlighted its inability to be used at low
water. There are also conflicts with the afternoon sailings of the mainland ferry
and the Jura ferry.

These disruptions are relatively minor and can be dealt with by minor changes
to the timetabling to avoid the conflict while still providing the same number of
Jura ferry sailing. Any design within such a restricted area and dealing with
two distinct ferry services will require compromise or significantly increased
funding.

Many of the items raised that are causing discontent are in fact requests for
further improvements and additional work over and above the current
contract. These have to be considered in the light of available budgets and the
requirements for all the marine infrastructure owned by the Council. With the
current level of predicted expenditure on the original project there is no scope
for additional capital expenditure on the project

Project Management Issues

It is important from the start of any project to have realistic timescales and to
understand the complexity of the project to be undertaken. This project was
driven by the unrealistic timescales of the Public Transport Funding and was
further delayed by the Environmental Impact Assessment requirements,
resolving landfill tax regulations, the unexpected planning inquiry and the
Councils own failure to obtain land entry within the required timescales.

Prince 2 project management has now been introduced for major projects.
This ensures good definition and planning of the project from an early stage
with any risks being highlighted. The project board also have the necessary
power to ensure all services meet required timescales.

The marine work was further delayed by the poor performance of the
contractor. Once a contractor is appointed there is little the Council can do to

10



5.4

9.5

5.6

Page 209

prevent poor performance. We can and do enforce the specification
requirements. Our standard contracts do not contain penalty clauses.
Introducing such clauses would push up the price of contracts as contractors
would build in the additional risk of a potential penalty to their rates. Penalty
clauses would be difficult to enforce as contractors would seek to lay the
blame for any delays on the Council and we would still be in a dispute
position. A penalty clause would only be enforceable if all the risks were
passed to the contractor by having a design and build contract. However
because of the risks involved the tender prices for such contracts tend to be
very high. In this instance the delayed land entry would have led to significant
cost increases had we had such a contract.

Project estimates are always very difficult at the start of a project when many
of the potential issues and problems have not been identified. This project
was particularly complex and required significant major redesigns to reflect the
outcome of the preliminary design works. There was an unexpected and
significant increase in the cost of marine works throughout Scotland at the
time the marine contract was let. The major factor in the increased costs was
the uncontrolled timescales where the project extended from an expected 3
years to 9 years.

With this project the Council bore all the cost risks for delays as the PTF and
ERDF funding was fixed at the start of the project. These cost increases were
significantly mitigated by increased marine grants secured by the design team.
At present the project costs have increased by £7,646,000 but the Council’s
contribution has increased by only £1,600,000.

Significant changes to the marine works were required because of unexpected
poor ground conditions. There is a balance to be struck between the cost of
advanced investigation work and the potential costs of unforeseen conditions
not identified at the start of the works. With hindsight it is easy to say the
ground investigation was inadequate but during the design phase it was
considered that sufficient ground investigation and seabed inspection had
been carried out. The cost of three boreholes was £25,500. To have
guaranteed to have identified the extent of the poor ground conditions found
we would have had to increase this by a factor of 10

11



Page 210

6. IMPLICATIONS

6.1  Policy - None.

6.2 Financial — There are significant claims from Carillion for the Phase 2 Marine
Works contract. If these are successful the Council will be required to fund
them from the capital budget

6.3 Personnel — None

6.4 Equalities Impact Assessment - None

6.5 Legal —None.

For further information, please contact Peter Ward (Tel: 01546 604651).

Stewart Turner
Head of Roads & Amenity Services
30 January 2009

12



Page 211

Appendix 1 — Mid-Argyll, Kintyre and the Islands Area Committee Questions

1. What were the terms of reference to the harbour works designers? - An
outline brief describing the desired improvements was issues to several marine
consultants. They were asked to give a presentation of what they thought was
possible and on the basis of the presentation a consultant was appointed to
develop the proposals

2. What is the specified performance capability (vessel size, wave height, tide
level) and compliance with current system failure reserve standards of the
public linkspan terminal? — This question is not fully understood and
clarification has been sought from the Area Committee. Vessel size for the Jura
ferry was the existing ferry and the normal standby vessel (Loch Class). The
proposed improvements were discussed with Calmac who advised that they were
suitable for any future vessels they may use on this route. Tide levels were as per
tide tables. There was no specified wave height.

3. What is the specified performance capability of the Jura/PA terminal and tie
up berth? - Deck levels were to match the existing pier deck. The vessel size
was up to a Loch Class vessel. The linkspan was to be capable of allowing the
Jura ferry to operate at all states of the tide

4. What is the specified performance capability of the other berths? - The
proposed depth of water in the inner harbour and North harbour was determined
by funding limitations and practical issues as to what was possible within that
budget

5. What is the break down of the 40% harbour works cost over run? - Final
costs have not been agreed so it is not possible to give a final cost or a
breakdown of the increased costs at this point in time. The report details the main
elements currently under discussion with the contractor.

6. What has been the cost of professional fees from public funds, if
confidential, on what authority? — Arch Henderson fees are currently
estimated at £535,000. Waterman fees were £318,000. Internal staff costs are
£565,000

7. Was the extra cost involved in providing the present Jura boat berth
additional to the small boat harbour protective quay more than £5,000? —
This question is not understood. We provided a Jura ferry berthing face which
allowed improvement of the inner harbour. Clarification of this question has been
sought from the Area Committee

8. What is the projected cost of a dedicated linkspan for the Jura boat which
the Council officials undertook to determine and report back on at the Jura
public meeting on 1% July? - The meeting was held on 8 December 2008.
Estimated costs are £900,000 - £1,500,000

13



Page 212

9. What is the projected cost of a wave suppresser to safeguard the Councils
vessel as previously existed for the Jura berth? — The previous berth had no
wave suppressor and no commitment has been made to install one on the new
berth. No work has been undertaken on such a system

10.Will the Council now apply the £1,000,000 windfall extra grant windfall to
restoring the integrity of the Jura link? - The additional £1,000,000 was an
allocation of capital funding towards the costs of the existing works. There is no
spare funding

11.What is the current and projected annual traffic to and from Jura? —

2005/06 2006/07 2007/08
Passengers 71800 73800 72000
Cars 24200 24000 24000
Commercials 4500 4900 4200

Traffic remains steady and the predicted levels are similar to the existing

12.What is the current and projected annual traffic to and from the mainland? -
Calmac are being asked to supply this information

13.Is the Jura ferry loading commercial traffic at the PA/Jura berth? — We have
advised that all commercial traffic should load via the linkspan as it is much safer

14.What are the statistics for Jura crossings delayed or frustrated by berth
issues? — ASP have examined the records in the year before the marine works
commenced and have not been able to identify any disruptions caused by low
tide levels. There was considerable disruption during the berth construction

15.Why is there no nominated harbour master, as laid down on the
Government 2002 code of practice, resident on Islay? — The code states there
should be a harbour master not must be a harbour master. The cost of a full time
harbour master cannot be justified. The technical officer based on Islay is able to
undertake any necessary functions of the harbour master

16.Will the Council be liable for negligence if there is an avoidable marine or
personnel accident? — The Council would be liable for an accident caused by
negligence of its employees. Clarification of the rest of the question has been
sought from the Area Committee

17.What is the status of EU grant and does this require the works to be on
ground with good title? — The final amount of the ERDF grant has been
claimed.

18.Does the Council have good title to the built on the sea bed and the road
and car park?- The Council has acquired all the private land on which the works
are constructed and obtained the necessary lease from the Crown Estates

19.Has the elected Council overseen this major £13,000,000 plus project with a
clear understanding of the objective to achieve an efficient interface for the
islands’ sea link? —The Council has created an effective interface for vehicles

14



Page 213

and passengers utilising the ferry services from Port Askaig. It has constructed
what was agreed through the planning application.

20.Who will carry out an on the spot audit to determine the extent to which the
works are operationally satisfactory, and so value for public money, and
when? - The works as constructed have allowed the Jura ferry to continue to
operate from Port Askaig and for the mainland ferry to continue operations. There
is no proposal for an audit.

15



Page 214

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 215 Agenda Iltem 14

NOT FOR PUBLICATION by virtue of paragraph(s) 8, 9
of Schedule 7A of the Local Government(Scotland) Act 1973

Document is Restricted



Page 216

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 217

NOT FOR PUBLICATION by virtue of paragraph(s) 8, 9
of Schedule 7A of the Local Government(Scotland) Act 1973

Document is Restricted



Page 274

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 275

NOT FOR PUBLICATION by virtue of paragraph(s) 8, 9
of Schedule 7A of the Local Government(Scotland) Act 1973

Document is Restricted



Page 278

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 279

NOT FOR PUBLICATION by virtue of paragraph(s) 8, 9
of Schedule 7A of the Local Government(Scotland) Act 1973

Document is Restricted



Page 280

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 281 Agenda ltem 15

NOT FOR PUBLICATION by virtue of paragraph(s) 8, 9
of Schedule 7A of the Local Government(Scotland) Act 1973

Document is Restricted



Page 288

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3a Executive 19 February 2009
	3b Special Committee for Older People's Services 26 February 2009
	4 LEADER'S REPORT
	5 EDUCATION AND LIFELONG LEARNING
	6 SOCIAL SERVICES
	7 INVESTMENT IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING
	8 MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES IN ARGYLL AND BUTE - REDESIGN AND MODERNISATION
	Extract Executive 19 March 09 from Social Affairs PPG re Redesign of Mental Health Services
	response to MH redesign
	MentalHealthfullconsultationdoc, 09/03/2009 Social Affairs Policy and Performance Group

	9 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY SCHEME: DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION
	Microsoft Word - 200903 Equality Scheme Nov 08 _v 9_, 06/03/2009 Pre-Agenda Briefing of the Executive
	EHRC Advice Note Public Sector, 06/03/2009 Pre-Agenda Briefing of the Executive

	10 REPORT ON PLANNING ON THE CONSULTATION BY THE SCOTTISH GOVERNMENT ON HOUSEHOLD PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS
	11 PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT PLAN SCHEME
	DPS Draft Feb 2009

	12 TWINNING VISIT TO KORCULA
	13 PORT ASKAIG REDEVELOPMENT
	Port Askaig Organisational Development PPG Feb 2009, 11/02/2009 Organisational Development Policy and Performance Group, 06/03/2009 Pre-Agenda Briefing of the Executive

	14 HELENSBURGH OFFICE RATIONALISATION - REVISED OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE
	Helensburgh Office Rationalisation OBC 17 February 2009ver1 2
	APPENDIX Fa
	APPENDIX Fb

	15 JOINT CONTRACTS INVOLVING SCHOOL TRANSPORT AND LOCAL BUS SERVICES - BUTE AND COWAL

